
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, September 4, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 
MEETING TO BE HELD VIA ZOOM ONLY 

  
 
I. This meeting will be held via Zoom. There will be no physical location. For those requiring hearing or speech assistance, contact Relay 

Nevada at 1-800-326-6868 (TTY, VCO or HCO). 

Members of the public may attend the meeting via Zoom at:  
 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88162938547?pwd=4ooZDt7OeZy5l2C2aLgn1EjKvX1kmo.1 

 
 

You may also participate by telephone at 1-669-900-6833 or 1-669-444-9171 (Meeting ID: 881 6293 8547, Meeting passcode: 987363). To 

provide public comment during the meeting via Zoom, please make sure your computer or device has a working microphone. Use the “Chat” 

feature to submit a request to make a comment. When the time comes to make public comments, you will be invited to speak. If you wish 

to provide public comment before the meeting, please contact RTC Agency Services at 1-775-348-0171 prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before 

the meeting and provide the telephone number you will be calling from as well as the item(s) you would like to comment on. When the time 

comes to make public comments, you will be invited to speak. 

II. Members of the public not attending the meeting but would like to provide public comment in advance can do so by one of the following 

methods: (1) emailing comments to: rtcpubliccomments@rtcwashoe.com; or (2) leaving a voicemail (limited to three minutes) at 1-775-348-

0171. Comments received prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day before the meeting will be entered into the record. 

III. The supporting materials for the meeting can be found at https://rtcwashoe.com. If you need to request a copy of the supporting materials, 

please contact RTC Agency Services by phone at 1-775-348-0171 or by email at agencyservices@rtcwashoe.com. 

IV. RTC staff will make reasonable efforts to assist and accommodate individuals with disabilities. Please call RTC Agency Services at 1-775-

348-0171 in advance so that arrangements can be made.    
V. RTC staff will make an audio and video recording of the meeting. The recording will be a public record. Committee members and members 

of the public who do not wish to be shown on the video should turn their cameras off during the meeting. 

  
 
 
ITEM 1  Roll Call/Call to Order 

 
ITEM 2  Action Item: Approval of Agenda (For Possible Action) 

 
ITEM 3  Verbal Instructions required by Assembly Bill 219 (2023) – RTC staff will read the 

following before Item 4 – Public Comment: 
 

If you are participating via Zoom, to provide public comment during the meeting please 
make sure your computer or device has a working microphone. Use the “Chat” feature 
to submit a request to make a comment. When the time comes to make public 
comments, you will be invited to speak. 
 
If you are participating by telephone, to provide public comment you should have 
contacted RTC Agency Services prior to 4:00 p.m. yesterday and provided the 
telephone number you would be calling from as well as the item(s) you wanted to 
comment on.  When the time comes to make public comments, you will be invited to 
speak. 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88162938547?pwd=4ooZDt7OeZy5l2C2aLgn1EjKvX1kmo.1
mailto:rtcpubliccomments@rtcwashoe.coml
https://rtcwashoe.com/news/board-meeting-notes/?archiveyear=all&committee=Citizens+Multimodal+Advisory+Committee+%28CMAC%29
mailto:agencyservices@rtcwashoe.com


ITEM 4  Public Comment - please read paragraph III. near the top of the agenda page 
 

ITEM 5  Action Item: Approval of the August 7, 2025, Meeting Minutes (For Possible Action) 
 

ITEM 6  Receive a Presentation on and Discuss the Draft Central Sparks Neighborhood 
Network Plan 

 
ITEM 7  Receive a Presentation and Provide Feedback on the Draft Public Participation Plan 

 
ITEM 8  Member Items – development updates and other updates 
 a) City of Reno b) Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority 
 c) City of Sparks d) FHWA 
 e) Washoe County f) Air Quality Management Div. (AQMD) 
 g) NDOT h) TMRPA 
 i) WCSD j) Reno-Sparks Indian Colony (RSIC) 

 
 
ITEM 9  Agenda Items for Future TAC Meetings  

 
ITEM 10  RTC Staff Items  
 
ITEM 11  Public Comment - please read paragraph III. near the top of the agenda page 
 
ITEM 12  Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Posting locations:  RTC principal office: 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV; RTC website: www.rtcwashoe.com; State Website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


 

1 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 7, 2025 

 
TAC MEMBERS PRESENT 

 
 
 Julee Olander Washoe County Community Services 
 Scott Carey City of Sparks Community Services 
 Candace Stowell Reno-Sparks Indian Colony 
 Chris Tolley Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 
 Khalil Wilson City of Reno Public Works 
 Angela Fuss City of Reno Community Development 
 Lissa Butterfield Reno Tahoe Airport Authority 
 Craig Petersen  Northern Nevada Public Health – Air Quality Management 

Division (NNPH AQMD)  
 Murph Glover Nevada Department of Transportation  
 
 

RTC STAFF 
 
  Marquis Williams Xuan Wang 
  Vanessa Lacer LaShonn Ford 
  Graham Dollarhide  
  Trisha Starkey  
 

TAC GUEST 
 

 
 
ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The Technical Advisory Committee meeting was conducted as a Zoom meeting. Scott Carey Chair 
called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
ITEM 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted. 
 
ITEM 3. VERBAL INSTRUCTIONS REQUIRED BY ASSEMBLY BILL 219 (2023) 
 
RTC staff read the instructions required for participating via Zoom and participating via telephone. 



 

2 

ITEM 4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments given. 
 
ITEM 5. APPROVAL OF THE JULY 10, 2025, MEETING MINUTES  
 
The TAC July 10, 2025, meeting minutes were approved as submitted. 
 
Lissa Butterfield entered the meeting at 9:06 a.m. 
 
Khalil Wilson entered the meeting at 9:09 a.m. 
 
ITEM 6. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED FFY 2025-2029 REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (RTIP) 
 
Graham Dollarhide, RTC Planning Manager, gave a presentation on the proposed FFY 2025-2029 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). Graham highlighted minor administrative 
modifications and project updates. 
 
Julee Olander raised a question about the Grand Canyon Boulevard sidewalk project and why it was 
included, which was clarified as approved through a separate transportation Alternative Set-Aside 
Program.  Khalil Wilson added that the City of Reno conducted a prioritization process for the City’s 
wards and provided RTC with a list of streets; he confirmed the selection for Grand Canyon 
Boulevard went through the prioritization process. Candace requested more specific statewide safety 
performance measures for the RTC jurisdiction, which Graham will include in the upcoming Vision 
Zero plan update. 
 
Julee Olander made a motion to approve the proposed FFY 2025-2029 Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (RTIP).   
 
Craig Peterson seconded. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 
ITEM 7. DISCUSS AND PROVIDE COMMENT ON THE DRAFT CENTRAL RENO 

NEIGHBORHOOD NETWORK PLAN 
 
Marquis Williams, RTC Senior Technical Planner, discussed and provided comments on the Draft 
Central Reno Neighborhood Network Plan. 
 
Candance Stowell discussed concerns about the draft Neighborhood Plan, particularly regarding 
Kietzke Lane improvements, including East Second Street, Harvard Way, and Marjorie Avenue. 
Candace highlighted the need for short-term safety measures on Kietzke Lane, citing its dangerous 
conditions and recent fatalities. Marquis explained that while Kietzke Lane was acknowledged as a 
concern, quick-build improvements were focused on parallel routes due to resource constraints and 
ongoing NDOT projects. Graham added that Second Street was considered for inclusion in the 
program but was excluded due to budget constraints and was recommended for implementation for 
the RTP. 



 

3 

 
 
ITEM 8. MEMBER ITEMS – DEVELOPMENT UPDATES AND OTHER UPDATES 
 
Scott Carey, with the City of Sparks spoke about a pilot project in Victorian Square for special 
events.  In July the City of Sparks began an adaptive reuse project on Sullivan Lane to convert a 
1970’s office building into a daycare facility.  The City of Sparks continues to work closely with the 
Kiley Ranch Marketplace Shopping Center in Spanish Springs. 
 
Candance Stowell, with the Reno-Sparks Indian Colony (RSIC) announced the release of an RFP for 
design engineering services for a new multi-purpose Justice Center for travel police, human services 
and travel court divisions.  
 
ITEM 9. AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE TAC MEETINGS 
 
Graham Dollarhide, with RTC Washoe mentioned that the draft Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan 
would be available for review in the coming month.  
 
ITEM 10. RTC STAFF ITEMS  
 

• Future RTC planning studies  
 

ITEM 11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments given. 
 
ITEM 12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:39 a.m. 



 
 
MEETING DATE: September 4, 2025  AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
To: Technical Advisory Committee 
 
From: Marquis Williams 
 Senior Transportation Planner  
  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Receive a presentation on and discuss the draft Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan. 
  
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan (NNP) kicked off in October 2024 based on a 
recommendation from the Active Transportation Plan (approved in September 2024). The NNP is 
meant to increase the number of walking and biking trips within the Central Sparks neighborhood 
by improving safety and comfort along key corridors. The Plan recommends traditional bicycle and 
pedestrian infrastructure improvements as well as low-cost, quick-build improvements. The Plan 
also recommends before and after improvement data collection to measure the effectiveness of the 
improvements in the creation of a comprehensive and responsive active transportation network 
accessible to a broader cross-section of our community.  
 
The Central Sparks NNP recommends fourteen corridors for quick-build style transportation 
improvements. In total, 16.3 miles of roadways are recommended for improvements across the 
neighborhood, including 12.6 miles of neighborhood byways and 2.2 miles of protected bike lanes. 
The NNP includes a cutsheet for each corridor project recommendation, detailing the project extents, 
approximate cost, potential intersection enhancements, and a conceptual cross-section. Based on 
funding availability and construction feasibility, many recommended quick-build projects are 
expected to be implemented using funds from the RTC Active Transportation Program. 
 
The Central Sparks NNP will be available for public review and comment at 
rtcwashoe.com/neighborhood starting on September 1. The draft Plan is scheduled to be presented 
at the September 19, 2025 RTC Board meeting with anticipated approval of the final Plan at the 
October 17, 2025 Board meeting. 
 
Attachment  
 
 



Central Sparks 

DRAFT Neighborhood Network 
Plan  

September 2025

ATTACHMENT



Acknowledgments 

The Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan was developed through collaboration with partner agencies 
and local organizations. Additionally, this project involved RTC staff from all departments including Planning, 
Public Transit, and Engineering. This planning process relied on engaging with residents and staff at local 
agencies with direct knowledge of current challenges within the neighborhood. Staff from partner agencies 
and members of the public provided detailed feedback and input during the planning process as part of the 
Neighborhood Network Plan Steering Committee. This group helped provide context to the public comments 
and inform the identification of recommended improvements. Those listed below helped to guide the 
development of the plan and will continue to support the implementation of project recommendations at 
their various roles at agencies and organizations throughout the community. 

RTC Washoe Project Team 
• Marquis Williams, RTC Planning
• Graham Dollarhide, RTC Planning
• LaShonn Ford, RTC Engineering
• Sara Going, RTC Engineering

Neighborhood Network Plan Steering Committee Member Organizations 
• City of Sparks
• Washoe County School District
• RTC Washoe

Each organization above was represented by one or more staff members during Steering Committee 
meetings. The Steering Committee also included three members of the public from the Central Sparks 
neighborhood.  

Consultant Team 
Cole Peiffer – Alta Planning + Design 

Dave Foster – Alta Planning + Design 

Chloe Ward – Alta Planning + Design 

Sierra Rodriguez-Torres – Alta Planning + Design 

Lauren Ball – MJT 

ATTACHMENT



Table of Contents 
Acknowledgments ................................................................................................................................................. i 

Table of Contents ...................................................................................................................................................ii 

Chapter 1: Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 1 

Neighborhood Description ................................................................................................................................... 1 

Connections with Other Plans .............................................................................................................................. 3 

Plan Process .......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Plan Contents ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Chapter 2: Neighborhood Profile ................................................................................................................4 

Neighborhood Demographics ...............................................................................................................................4 

Existing Neighborhood Network ...........................................................................................................................6 

Chapter 3: Biking and Walking in Central Sparks Today ...............................................................................10 

Community Engagement .....................................................................................................................................10 

Data Insights and Analysis: Understanding Trends ............................................................................................. 17 

Chapter 4: Addressing Central Sparks Needs ........................................................................................... 32 

Neighborhood Network Plan Implementation Strategy ..................................................................................... 32 

Programmatic and Policy Enhancements ........................................................................................................... 33 

Neighborhood Network Improvements ............................................................................................................. 40 

Implementation .................................................................................................................................................. 46 

Stay Connected ................................................................................................................................................... 46 

ATTACHMENT



Chapter 1: Introduction 

The purpose of this Neighborhood Network Plan (NNP) is to improve the pedestrian and bicycling experience 
in the Central Sparks neighborhood through the implementation of quick-build style infrastructure. The 
primary objective of this plan is to make improvements within the Central Sparks neighborhood which 
encourage more trips to be made by walking, biking, or taking transit. This NNP applies the regional vision, 
goals, and priorities from the regional RTC Washoe Active Transportation Plan (ATP) and identifies 
improvements that can be rapidly implemented across the neighborhood to help provide increased 
connectivity and comfort to people walking and biking. The RTC developed this plan using in-depth data 
analysis combined with partner agency collaboration and direct engagement with members of the public. 

Neighborhood Description 
The Central Sparks neighborhood, generally bordered by I-80, the Truckee River, McCarran Blvd, Oddie Blvd, 
Prater Wy, and Sparks Blvd, offers a variety of destinations (Figure 1). It features over 28 schools, parks with 
playgrounds, sports courts, and trails, including the Sparks Marina Park. Entertainment is centered around 
the I-80 corridor, with venues like casinos, theaters, water parks, and museums. Employment hubs include 
the Northern Nevada Medical Center, Nugget Casino Resort, Outlets at Legends, as well as industrial areas 
south of the I-80 corridor. The neighborhood also offers community spaces like churches, libraries, and local 
markets like the El Rancho Farmers Market.  

Visitors to the Sparks 
Marina enjoying the 
shared use path.  

ATTACHMENT



Figure 1. Central Sparks Neighborhood Area 

ATTACHMENT



Connections with Other Plans 
This NNP recommends projects for quick-build implementation through RTC’s Active Transportation Program. 
Improvements identified in this plan not inclusive of large-scale improvements, although the Long-Term 
Needs section of Chapter 4 includes a high-level list of needs that could be addressed by means beyond 
quick-build. These long-term needs and other higher-scale active transportation projects can be addressed 
through other planning processes such as the Regional Transportation plan, specific area plans, corridor 
studies, etc. 

Plan Process 
This NNP follows the process outlined in the ATP and applies a regional vision, goals, and analysis to the 
Central Sparks neighborhood. This process included two phases of public engagement featuring multiple in-
person events and online elements. In addition to public engagement, the RTC used regional data analysis to 
identify neighborhood issues and areas of need based on demographics, roadway context, and crash history. 
By integrating community insights with data findings, the plan highlights and addresses the most pressing 
challenges for people walking and biking. The result is a quick-build implementation strategy designed to 
rapidly enhance connectivity and comfort throughout the neighborhood. 

Plan Contents 
This plan describes the planning process, data analysis findings, community engagement findings, and 
recommended improvements across four chapters as described below.  

• Chapter 1 – Introduction
o This chapter provides an overview of the project and connection with other planning

processes.
• Chapter 2 – Neighborhood Profile

o This chapter highlights demographic and socioeconomic data across the neighborhood and
highlights areas of need.

• Chapter 3 – Biking and Walking in Central Sparks Today
o This chapter presents key findings from community engagement and data analysis, offering

a snapshot of current walking and biking conditions in the Central Sparks neighborhood.
• Chapter 4 – Addressing Central Sparks Needs

o This chapter provides an overview of quick-build style improvements and identifies
recommended quick-build improvements throughout the neighborhood.

ATTACHMENT



Chapter 2: Neighborhood Profile 

To better understand the context and needs of the neighborhood, the RTC reviewed various datasets to 
compare the Central Sparks neighborhood with the broader Reno/Sparks area—also known as the greater 
Truckee Meadows region—to identify focused needs within the neighborhood. This section includes a 
summary of socioeconomic data and a summary of the common destinations throughout the neighborhood 
for context. Additional information about datasets and analysis methodologies are included in Appendix A. 

Neighborhood Demographics 
The Central Sparks neighborhood has a young, diverse population with a high population density compared 
to the broader Reno/Sparks area. It is notably younger, with a higher proportion of people under 5 to age 34 
and fewer people over 55. The neighborhood also has a larger percentage of Hispanic/Latino residents, and a 
smaller percentage of White Alone residents compared to the Reno/Sparks area.  

Population density in Central Sparks is approximately 20 times higher than the regional average, with the 
densest areas between McCarran Blvd, Oddie Blvd, Prater Wy, and Sparks Blvd. The Central Sparks 
neighborhood exhibits a wide range of household incomes, with areas like the northeast (Vista Blvd, Sparks 
Blvd, and Baring Blvd) having a median income of $133,500, while other areas, such as between Oddie Blvd, 
Prater Wy, and El Rancho Dr, have a median income of $30,000 (as seen in Figure 2). Overall, the 
neighborhood's median household income of $75,848 is slightly below the Reno/Sparks median of $85,969. 

In Central Sparks, 7% of households lack access to a 
vehicle, matching the regional average. Certain 
areas south of Prater Wy and along the I-80 corridor 
have higher rates, reaching up to 15%. Furthermore, 
the neighborhood faces housing affordability 
challenges, with an average of 32% of households 
being cost-burdened, paying over 30% of their 
income on housing. However, some areas south of 
Prater Wy contain census tracts with 55% of 
households that are cost-burdened, which is higher 
than the regional rate of 31% of households being 
cost-burdened.  

A person walking and a person using a wheelchair to 
cross Victorian Avenue at Rock Boulevard.  

ATTACHMENT



Figure 2. Median Household Income in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Existing Neighborhood Network 
Pedestrian Facilities
The pedestrian network includes sidewalks and crossing features like painted crosswalks and rectangular 
rapid flashing beacons (RRFBs). The RTC assessed sidewalk availability on arterials and collectors, scoring 
them from zero (no sidewalks) to two (sidewalks on both sides). In Central Sparks, arterials scored an average 
of 1.34, and collectors scored 1.52, showing that over half of all collectors and arterials1 have sidewalks on 
both sides of the street (see Figure 3). However, gaps and a lack of sidewalk buffers along major roadways 
like McCarran Blvd and Greg St are safety concerns for residents, especially where missing facilities cause 
pedestrians to walk within the roadway. Refer to Appendix A for more details.  

1 Arterials provide longer through travel between major trip generators while collectors “collect” traffic from the local roads and connect to 

larger roadways. For more information on roadway classifications, visit https://www.dot.nv.gov/home/showdocument?id=6654.  

Pedestrians crossing McCarran Blvd at Prater Way in the crosswalk (above). Sidewalk lacking sidewalk buffer and regular 
maintenance on Rock Blvd (bottom left). The Rock Blvd bridge (bottom right) currently lacks sidewalks and acts as a barrier for 
people walking trying to cross the Truckee River.  

ATTACHMENT

https://www.dot.nv.gov/home/showdocument?id=6654


Bicycle Facilities 
The Central Sparks area has 37.2 miles of bike facilities as shown in Table 1. Of these, 22.1 miles (nearly 60%) 
are unprotected facilities (bike lanes and shared lanes), which can create higher-stress environments for 
people biking compared to protected facilities such as shared-use paths or protected bike lanes. Overall, the 
existing bicycle network in the neighborhood covers 69% of the 53.7 miles of arterials and collectors (Figure 
4). Unprotected facilities such as bike lanes on roads with speeds above 30 miles per hour (mph) can be 
uncomfortable for most users. As a result, many long stretches of bike lanes provide connectivity but remain 
difficult routes. Additionally, the existing bike network in the neighborhood includes multiple gaps such as 
along Greg St, Glendale Ave, and Vista Blvd, or along McCarran Blvd between Prater Wy and I-80, where the 
region’s only separated bike lane passes through. There are many opportunities to expand and improve the 
bike network in the area. Refer to Appendix A for more details.  

Protection 
Facility 

Type 
Mileage 

Unprotected 
Bike Lanes 21.3 

Shared Lane 
Facilities 0.8 

Protected 

Shared-Use 
Paths 12.6 

Separated Bike 
Lanes  2.5 

Total 37.2 

Unprotected facilities – On-street facilities marked with roadway striping that indicate the shared use of a travel lane by 
bicycles or dedicated space in a bike lane (example: bike lane on McCarran Blvd above).  

 Protected facilities – Facilities that are separate from vehicle traffic by a physical barrier or are in a separate right-of-way from 
vehicle traffic (example: Truckee River Path at Rock Park below) 

Table 1. Bicycle Facilities in Central Sparks by 
Mileage (Sept. 2024) 

ATTACHMENT



 

 

 

Figure 3. Sidewalks on Arterial and Collector Roads in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



 

Figure 4. Existing Bicycle Facilities in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Chapter 3: Biking and Walking in Central Sparks Today 

Community Engagement 
The RTC engaged with residents and stakeholders within the Central Sparks neighborhood throughout the 
development of this NNP across a variety of strategies including in-person and virtual meetings, in-person 
pop-ups, a walking audit, an interactive map, and Neighborhood Network Plan Steering Committee meetings. 
Engagement occurred across two distinct phases with the first phase focused on listening to the community 
and identifying issues and the second phase focused on community review and refinement of draft 
recommendations. This section summarizes the engagement efforts and findings from the Central Sparks 
NNP process. For greater detail about specific meetings, please refer to Appendix B. 

Phase 1 

Community Workshops & Pop-Ups 
The RTC engaged with the community through a 
community workshop and two pop-up events that 
were attended by over 60 people during the first 
phase of engagement. The community 
engagement workshop for the Central Sparks NNP 
took place at Sparks High School on January 29th, 
2025. The first pop-up event took place at the 
Sparks Marina near Lighthouse Coffee on February 
22nd, 2025. The second pop-up event was at the 
West Wind El Rancho Swap Meet at 555 El Rancho 
Dr on March 9th, 2025.  These events provided an 
opportunity for community members to share 
their concerns related to walking, biking, and 
accessing transit in the neighborhood. Attendees 
were invited to provide comments either by 
drawing or posting a sticky note on paper maps of 
the Central Sparks neighborhood to highlight 
missing infrastructure and/or other challenges. In 
addition to the map exercise, participants were 
provided with an overview of the project and were 
connected with project resources to stay engaged, 
including the interactive online map and project 
website. All outreach materials were provided in 
both English and Spanish, including the interactive 
map.  

Community Workshop at Sparks High School 

Pop-Up event at the West Wind El Rancho Swap Meet 

ATTACHMENT



Interactive Map 
The interactive map allowed community members to identify areas of concern and provide comments on the 
existing network. Over 280 comments and over 650 votes on comments were received through the 
interactive map, as shown in Figure 5. Community members highlighted issues across the neighborhood, 
which included the following major themes:  

• Sidewalks and Pathways: There were calls for wider, more accessible sidewalks, particularly for
wheelchairs and strollers, and improved connections for pedestrians, especially near hospitals,
schools, and transit hubs. Additionally, many suggest creating or extending connected bike paths,
particularly along the Truckee River, and improving access to key destinations such as the Sparks
Marina, Victorian Square, and the Industrial Area to access job centers.

• Crosswalk Safety: Several comments emphasize the need for better crosswalk infrastructure,
including light-up signs, pedestrian refuges, better visibility, and traffic signals that prioritize
pedestrians.

• Lack of High-Quality Bike Lanes: Numerous comments highlight areas where bike lanes are either
missing, inconsistent, or inadequate, urging for safer, continuous bike lanes, especially on popular
routes (e.g., McCarran Blvd, Prater Way, Greg St, and Rock Blvd).

• High Vehicle Speeds: Community members expressed concerns over high vehicle speeds on major
roadways and on wide roadways within residential areas. Comments highlighted a desire for lower
vehicle speeds at intersections and along roadways through the use of traffic calming measures such
as speed humps, roundabouts, or road redesigns to make streets safer for pedestrians.

• Lighting Issues: Poor street lighting, particularly in high-traffic areas or near bus stops, is a recurring
concern for pedestrian and bicyclist safety.

Additionally, community members frequently identified specific streets and intersections as barriers for 
walking and biking including McCarran Blvd, Rock Blvd, and Pyramid Way. Community members noted 
concerns about interactions with high-speed vehicles and a lack of separation on these streets generally. 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 5. Interactive Map Comments 

ATTACHMENT



Steering Committee 
The Steering Committee was composed of community members and representatives from the City of Sparks, 
Washoe County School District, three members of the public, and RTC Washoe. Community members were 
invited to join the committee during engagement events, where they could sign up to participate and share 
their insights throughout the planning process. Members met to assess existing conditions and take part in a 
walk audit, which identified key areas for improvement and directly informed the plan’s recommendations 

Members of the Steering Committee documenting existing conditions on the neighborhood map 

 

Resulting input map from Steering 
Committee #1 which helped identify 
existing issues within the 
neighborhood.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT



Walk Audit 
On April 8th, 2025, the Steering Committee conducted a walk audit within the Central Sparks neighborhood. 
A Walk Audit is an on-the-ground assessment in which participants walk along specific corridors and 
intersections to evaluate infrastructure, accessibility, and overall safety for people walking and biking. During 
the half-day effort participants observed 6 corridors identified through public comments and the existing 
conditions analysis. At each location, participants documented challenges and shared observations, which 
were then compiled into a summary of issues for further review (Appendix C). While not all sites reviewed 
are suitable for quick-build implementation, the findings helped shape the plan’s recommendations and will 
continue to inform future large-scale roadway projects.  

     

Members of the Steering Committee 
discussing the intersection of 4th 
Street and Prater Way.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

      

 

 

 

 

 

Members of the 
Steering Committee 
observing the 
intersection of Lincoln 
Way and Howard 
Drive. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Phase 2 

Steering Committee 
Drawing on feedback from the community engagement process and the Steering Committee, the project 
team developed a draft set of recommendations. During the Steering Committee’s final meeting, members 
reviewed the draft recommendations using three interactive online maps, which allowed them to explore 
and provide targeted comments on proposed improvements. This input played a key role in refining and 
finalizing the recommendations for the NNP.  

 

 

Members of the Steering Committee reviewing draft recommendations during Steering Committee meeting #2. 

 
 
 
Active Transportation Plan (ATP) Process 
During the development of the ATP (from 2023 to 2024), the RTC received 63 comments specific to the 
Central Sparks neighborhood. These comments highlighted challenges faced by people walking, biking, and 
accessing transit, and provided an early understanding of key issues in the area. These public comments 
helped provide a baseline understanding of existing issues within the neighborhood and provided context for 
the feedback gathered during the Central Sparks NNP engagement process. A full summary of the ATP 
comments is provided in Appendix A. 

  

ATTACHMENT



What We Heard from the Community 
Over the course of the project, we engaged directly with over 130 
community members and received over 650 interactions including 
comments and votes through the interactive map. Comments gathered 
during the project touched on all elements of active transportation from 
connections to transit stops to concerns about using shared-use paths. 
The project team focused on comments related to active transportation 
that could be addressed through quick-build implementation as part of 
this project but have archived all comments for future consideration. 
Across all comments received from community members for this project, 
four key themes emerged as leading issues for people walking and biking 
in the neighborhood:  

Connectivity 
• Many participants highlighted gaps in sidewalks and the lack of a continuous, connected bike 

network as major barriers to choosing walking or biking for daily travel. Community members noted 
instances where abrupt or unclear transitions in infrastructure make it inconvenient and, at times, 
unsafe for users to reach their destinations.  

Traffic Calming  
• Community members expressed a desire for increased traffic calming elements. Curb extensions and 

narrowing travel lanes were suggested to lower vehicle speeds on residential streets to improve 
safety and make walking and biking more welcoming for all users 

Lighting  
• Community members also noted that poor lighting in key areas, such as along paths, intersections, 

and around parks, reduces the sense of safety—especially during early morning or evening hours. 
Improved lighting is seen as essential for both real and perceived safety for people walking or biking. 

Crossing Safety 
• Community members expressed safety concerns related to crossing roadways with high speeds and 

high volumes that do not have signalized intersections. Crossings that provide access to schools and 
parks were of particular concern, as parents voiced worries about their children having to cross these 
streets alone. 

 

The themes identified through community input, combined with data analysis, played a central role in 
shaping the recommendation scenarios and determining which projects to move forward. Each 
recommendation was developed to respond directly to these priorities while remaining feasible within the 
neighborhood’s scope and funding limitations.  

ATTACHMENT



Data Insights and Analysis: Understanding Trends 
To better understand current conditions and identify opportunities to increase active transportation, the RTC 
analyzed datasets related to safety, equity, and roadway conditions for people walking and biking, as well as 
the potential for shifting short trips away from vehicle use. This analysis builds on the regional work 
completed for the ATP, with a focused lens on Central Sparks to identify priority areas for improvement—
particularly where data insights align with community feedback. For additional details on data sources and 
methodologies, refer to Appendix A. 

Roadway Speeds 
The posted speed limits for vehicles are a key factor in ensuring the safety and comfort of active 
transportation users across the transportation network. Higher vehicle speeds increase the risk of serious 
injury or death in the event of a crash, particularly for people walking and biking (Figure 6). Within the 
Central Sparks neighborhood, roads with high-speed limits include McCarran Blvd, Sparks Blvd, Pyramid Wy, 
and Vista Blvd (Figure 7). It is crucial to consider speed not only for safety but also for the comfort of people 
walking and biking, as higher vehicle speeds generally lead to a greater need for separation between vehicles 
and active transportation users. For this reason, posted speeds are a primary factor in the determination of 
the Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress (BLTS) and Pedestrian Experience Index, which are both further described 
below (pages 24 – 27). 

 

Figure 6. Risk of Death for People Walking Based on Vehicle Speeds (NTSB, Smart Growth America) 

 

ATTACHMENT



 

Figure 7. Posted Speed Limits in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Safety 
The RTC conducted an analysis of the arterial and collector network to identify roads and intersections with 
the greatest safety needs as part of the Truckee Meadows Vision Zero Action Plan. As a part of this plan, the 
RTC developed a High-Injury Network (HIN) for the region, which identifies those places which have the 
highest crash rates, level of frequency, and crash severity across the county. The Central Sparks area contains 
16 HIN corridors and 26 intersections, representing a significant portion of the region's dangerous roadways 
(Figure 8). These findings highlight the need for targeted safety improvements, particularly on high-speed 
road segments and high-crash corridors.  

Additionally, recent crash data (2019 – 20232) highlights an on-going need for safety improvements with a 
total of 202 crashes, including 8 fatalities and 184 injuries involving a person walking or biking (Table 2). Of 
these, the majority (132) involved pedestrians, while 70 were related to cyclists.  

Table 2. Total Crashes By Mode 

Total Crashes by Mode 

Crash Severity Pedestrians Bicyclists Total 

Fatal 4 4 8 

Injury 118 66 184 

Property 10 0 10 

Grand Total 132 70 202 

2 Data provided by Nevada Department of Transportation. Data excludes December 2023 due to limited 
availability 

McCarran Boulevard at Wedekind Road looking east (above). This section of road from Wedekind Road to Rock Boulevard is on 
the High-Injury Network and currently lacks sidewalks and a comfortable bicycle facility. 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 8. High-Injury Network in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Intersections vs. Segments 
Crashes occurred nearly equally at intersections and roadway segments. However, crashes at intersections 
accounted for two-thirds (63 percent) of fatalities for people walking and biking. Notably, Prater Wy stands 
out among the top 15 corridors with three fatal crashes and twenty-five injuries as well as the highest rate of 
crashes per mile (Table 3).  

 

Table 3. Corridors with High Crash Totals (2019-2023) 

Rank Street Name 

Pedestrian Crashes  Bicycle Crashes  Total Mileage Crashes Per 
Mile Fatal Injury Fatal Injury 

1 Prater Wy 1 17 2 8 28 4.6 6.0 

2 Pyramid Wy 0 7 0 6 13 2.7 4.8 

3 El Rancho Dr 0 9 0 2 11 2.9 3.9 

4 Rock Blvd 0 5 1 4 10 2.9 3.5 

5 Victorian Ave 0 9 0 1 10 2.1 4.8 

6 Glendale Ave 0 4 0 4 8 3.1 2.6 

7 McCarran Blvd 0 6 0 3 8 5.2 1.5 

8 Lincoln Wy 0 3 0 4 7 1.2 5.8 

9 Sparks Blvd 0 3 1 3 7 4.2 1.7 

10 Vista Blvd 0 4 0 2 6 3.7 1.6 

11 Greg St 0 3 0 2 5 4.1 1.2 

12 Baring Blvd 0 1 0 3 4 1.6 2.4 

13 Greenbrae Dr 0 4 0 0 4 1.6 2.5 

14 Howard Dr 0 4 0 0 4 1.1 3.6 

15 Sullivan Ln 0 2 0 2 4  2.0 2.0 

 

 

 

  

ATTACHMENT



Equity 
The ATP conducted a transportation-focused equity analysis to evaluate equity in active transportation, 
considering factors like health outcomes, socioeconomic status, vehicle access, health issues, and 
environmental impact. These variables were combined into a final composite equity index. In the Central 
Sparks neighborhood, many of the census tracts ranked in the top 20% for equity, indicating higher needs for 
active transportation improvements (Figure 9). Based on this analysis, the census tracts with the lowest need 
are along Vista Blvd in the northeast portion of the neighborhood.  

  

 

 

 

 

Areas with greater equity needs often have a higher dependence on walking, biking, and transit. Improvements to the active 
transportation network in these areas can provide more pronounced benefits based on the higher level of people using active 
transportation modes.  

ATTACHMENT



 

Figure 9. Transportation Equity in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



 

 

Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress 
Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress (BLTS) measures how comfortable bicyclists feel on a roadway, considering 
factors like speed, number of lanes, and bike lane presence. BLTS is rated from level one (comfortable for 
bicyclists of all ages and abilities) to level four (high stress, suitable only for strong and fearless cyclists). In 
the Central Sparks neighborhood, many roadways rank as BLTS 3 or 4, including Greg St, Vista Blvd, Rock Blvd, 
McCarran Blvd, and Pyramid Wy (Figure 10). These roads present challenging conditions for bicyclists due to 
high vehicle speeds, heavy traffic, and a lack of adequate bike infrastructure, creating a stressful and 
discouraging environment for biking.  

  

Unprotected bike lanes on high speed and high-volume roadways such as the bike lane on McCarran Blvd (shown above) can 
be uncomfortable for most bicyclists, which can increase levels of sidewalk riding and discourage future bicycling trips.  

ATTACHMENT



 
 

 
Figure 10. Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Pedestrian Experience Index 
A pedestrian-focused quantitative analysis conducted by researchers at UNR assessed the pedestrian 
experience along roadways in the Central Sparks neighborhood. The analysis assigned scores based on 
factors such as sidewalk presence, width, buffer space from vehicles, number of vehicle lanes, and roadway 
speed. Roadways received scores up to 85 points, with higher scores indicating a more comfortable 
pedestrian experience. The average score for Central Sparks was 45.76, indicating that most sidewalks are 
five to six feet wide and are present on one or both sides, though buffer space is intermittent, and some 
areas have higher vehicle speeds and lane numbers (see Figure 11). While many roadways scored relatively 
high, segments like McCarran Blvd, Oddie Blvd, Vista Blvd, and Greg St are made up of segments that earn 
some of the lowest scores in the network. However, the area has numerous roads that earned high 
pedestrian experience scores, including roads like Greenbrae Dr, Probasco Wy, and York Wy. Compared to 
the broader Reno/Sparks area, the Central Sparks network had a higher average pedestrian experience score, 
particularly for major and minor arterial roads. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

The pedestrian experience is heavily influenced by sidewalk obstructions, roadway debris, poor sidewalk quality, a lack of 
sidewalks, and being too close to high traffic speeds and volumes as shown in the examples above from McCarran Boulevard 
(left) and Sparks Boulevard (right). 

ATTACHMENT



 

 

Figure 11. Pedestrian Experience Index in Central Sparks 

Pedestrian Experience Index conducted by UNR (2022) 

ATTACHMENT



Active Trip Potential 
In addition to identifying current active transportation routes, it is crucial to recognize areas with strong 
potential for increased active transportation trips. This analysis is done by pinpointing regions where people 
commonly make short vehicle trips. These trips are categorized by distance, which helps determine the 
potential for mode shifts. Trips under one mile are seen as potential walking trips, those between one and 
three miles as potential biking trips, trips between three and six miles as potential e-bike trips, and trips over 
six miles are considered less suitable for active modes. These trips are categorized by distance, which helps 
determine the potential for mode shifts.  Within the Central Sparks neighborhood, there are a number of 
areas that see a high percentage of vehicle trips that are less than or equal to six miles, which have the 
potential to be converted to other modes (Figure 12).  

Within the Central Sparks neighborhood, there are several areas that see a high percentage of short vehicle 
trips that have the potential to be converted to other modes. Central Sparks sees ten percent more vehicle 
trips under three miles than the Reno/Sparks area, highlighting the significant potential for mode shift in the 
neighborhood. For additional description of these findings, please refer to Appendix A.  

 

 

ATTACHMENT



 

Figure 12. Active Trip Potential in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Gaps Analysis 
The Active Transportation Gap3 Analysis conducted by 
the RTC as part of the ATP assessed gaps in the 
region’s network by combining evaluation factors 
(Figure 13) like Safety, BLTS, PEI, Equity, and the 
Active Trip Potential. Each roadway segment was 
assigned a score between 0 and 40, with higher scores 
indicating more significant gaps in active 
transportation infrastructure. The Central Sparks area 
had an average score of 22.4, with most streets falling 
between 12 and 29.  

The top 10 streets with the highest average gap 
analysis scores, representing the greatest barriers to 
active transportation (Figure 14), include:  

• Pyramid Wy  
• Oddie Blvd 
• McCarran Blvd 
• Kietzke Ln 
• Nichols Blvd 
• Prater Wy 
• Rock Blvd 
• Wedekind Rd 
• Victorian Ave 
• El Rancho Dr 

 

3 The term “gap” represents a roadway section that acts as a barrier to active transportation in the region.  

Figure 13.Active Transportation Gap Analysis Variables 

ATTACHMENT



 
Figure 14. Top 10 highest scoring corridors in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Chapter 4: Addressing Central Sparks Needs 

The NNP is a short-term plan that identifies roadway improvements, policies and programs, to increase 
walking and biking in the neighborhood. This approach provides improvements to the existing network while 
also providing policies and programs that encourage, educate, and engage with the community about active 
transportation group rides, rules, and resources. This chapter describes the recommended programmatic and 
policy enhancements and Neighborhood Network improvements within the Central Sparks neighborhood.  

Neighborhood Network Plan Implementation Strategy 
This NNP’s recommendations are focused on short-term improvements to quickly address community needs 
while considering long-term improvements for future enhancements. Short-term improvements identified in 
this NNP use a quick-build implementation style that involves using low-cost materials and avoiding 
significant implementation costs such as moving curbs, building sidewalks, or reconstructing sections of the 
road. By working within the existing roadway space, these projects can be rapidly put in place to begin 
providing benefits to the community. This NNP also identifies potential projects for long-term 
implementation that applied the preferred facility type to the roadway from the RTC Street Typology Guide.4 
Table 4 highlights the preferred separation of modes on arterials and collectors by land use context in 
Truckee Meadows from the Typology Guide. These long-term projects represent roadways with more 
complex challenges than may be addressed through quick-build implementation alone and therefore will be 
best addressed through a corridor-wide improvement projects that holistically address the various 
transportation challenges for each unique corridor.  

 
 
           

 

 

 

 

4 The RTC Street Typology Guide represents a systematic approach to prioritizing the safety and comfort of pedestrians 
and cyclists in Washoe County. For more information about the RTC Street Typology Guide, please visit: RTC Active 

Transportation Plan.  

Table 4.Preferred Separation of Modes on Arterials and Collectors by Land Use Context (RTC Street Typology Guide) 

ATTACHMENT

https://rtcwashoe.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/Appendix-C-RTC-Washoe-Street-Typology-Guide-1.pdf
https://rtcwashoe.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/RTC-Washoe-ATP-FINAL-1.pdf
https://rtcwashoe.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/RTC-Washoe-ATP-FINAL-1.pdf


Programmatic and Policy Enhancements 
Programmatic enhancements help active transportation users to be more confident while walking or biking 
and encourage them to get out into their community using a mode other than driving. Additionally, 
recommendations also consider policies to bolster accommodations for people walking and biking 
throughout the community by addressing potential barriers to active transportation. All recommendations 
are highlighted in Table 5 with greater detail about each recommendation under each of the six Es of traffic 
safety (Equity, Education, Encouragement, Engineering, Engagement, and Evaluation). This represents a 
holistic approach to enhancing transportation safety beyond making updates to roadway design. Table 6.  
through Table 10 describe each recommendation, note the lead agency, provide an example of similar 
programs/policies, and highlight an order of magnitude of the level of effort for implementation on a scale of 
1 through 5.  

 

 Recommendation Lead Agency Level of Effort 

Eq
ui

ty
 Guaranteed Ride Home Program RTC  

Community-Based Organizations Outreach 
Programs 

RTC  

Ed
uc

at
io

n Urban Biking and Scooting Class Department of Motor Vehicles/RTC  

Traffic Ticket Reduction  Reno Police Department/Sparks Police 
Department/Washoe Sheriff’s Office 

 

En
co

ur
ag

em
en

t Bike Maps RTC  

Walk and Roll to Work/Wherever Days RTC/Northern Nevada Public Health  

Washoe County School District (WCSD) Bike 
Buses 

WCSD/RTC  

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Wayfinding Program RTC/City of Reno/City of Sparks/Washoe County  

Develop a Construction Detour Policy RTC/City of Reno/City of Sparks/Washoe County  

Develop an Open Streets Program RTC in collaboration with Sparks/Reno  

En
ga

ge
m

en
t Neighborhood Mobility Listening Labs RTC in collaboration with Sparks/Reno  

Farmers’ Market Monthly Booths RTC in collaboration with Sparks/Reno  

Monitor Crash Data RTC in collaboration with Sparks, Reno, and 
Washoe County 

 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 

Assess Local Bicycle and Pedestrian Trips RTC in collaboration with Sparks, Reno, and 
Washoe County 

 

Active Transportation Dashboard RTC in collaboration with Truckee Meadows 
Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA) 

 

Table 5. Recommendations for the Six E’s of Traffic Safety (described in greater detail in the tables below) 

ATTACHMENT



Equity 
Equity is a major component throughout these proposed recommendations to focus efforts within areas that 
are heavily dependent on public transit or active transportation. Table 6 provides an overview of 
recommended bicycle and pedestrian equity policies and programs. 

Table 6. Recommended Equity Policies/Programs 

Recommendation Description Lead 

Agency 

Level of 

Effort 

Example Program / 

Policy 

Guaranteed Ride 

Home Program 

Provide bicyclists and pedestrians an option to 
receive a ride home when the individual is 
unable to bike or walk home up to a certain 
number of times per year. The alternative 
options could consist of late and frequent 
public transit times, car-sharing programs, and 
other forms of transportation support. This 
would operate similarly to the Guaranteed Ride 
Home Program for SmartTrips.  

RTC  Breaking Down 
Barriers to Bicycling 
in the US 

ACTC Guaranteed 
Ride Home 

Community-

Based 

Organizations 

Outreach 

Programs 

Collaborate with community-based 
organizations in disadvantaged areas with a 
focus on Spanish-language organizations to 
improve the community’s comfort and interest 
in planning projects such as the Reno Bike 
Project, Northern Nevada HOPES, Nevada 
Urban Indians, or the Children’s Cabinet. This 
may include directed meetings with 
organizations that are project specific or at 
regular intervals to provide an update on 
projects and hear current issues. Working 
directly with interpreters, community-based 
organizations, and community champions to 
convene outreach events related to walking 
and biking safety and promotion. 

RTC  Partnerships with 
Community-Based 
Organizations on 
Engagement Projects 

City of Lodi: Love 
Your Block Program  

ATTACHMENT

https://prismic-io.s3.amazonaws.com/peopleforbikes/6b4cc95b-295d-4947-88fb-839702944c97_PFB-Final-Barriers+to+Biking+REPORT.pdf
https://prismic-io.s3.amazonaws.com/peopleforbikes/6b4cc95b-295d-4947-88fb-839702944c97_PFB-Final-Barriers+to+Biking+REPORT.pdf
https://prismic-io.s3.amazonaws.com/peopleforbikes/6b4cc95b-295d-4947-88fb-839702944c97_PFB-Final-Barriers+to+Biking+REPORT.pdf
https://grh.alamedactc.org/program-rules
https://grh.alamedactc.org/program-rules
https://www.sanjoseca.gov/your-government/departments-offices/office-of-the-city-manager/economic-development/partnerships-with-community-based-organizations-on-engagement-projects
https://www.sanjoseca.gov/your-government/departments-offices/office-of-the-city-manager/economic-development/partnerships-with-community-based-organizations-on-engagement-projects
https://www.sanjoseca.gov/your-government/departments-offices/office-of-the-city-manager/economic-development/partnerships-with-community-based-organizations-on-engagement-projects
https://www.sanjoseca.gov/your-government/departments-offices/office-of-the-city-manager/economic-development/partnerships-with-community-based-organizations-on-engagement-projects
https://www.ca-ilg.org/partnering-community-based-organizations#:%7E:text=City%20of%20Lodi%20%E2%80%93%20Love%20Your,showcases%20a%20two%2Dstory%20mural.
https://www.ca-ilg.org/partnering-community-based-organizations#:%7E:text=City%20of%20Lodi%20%E2%80%93%20Love%20Your,showcases%20a%20two%2Dstory%20mural.


Education  
Bicycle and pedestrian education helps those who are interested in active transportation to feel more 
comfortable, safe, and confident navigating streets and shared-use paths. Table 7 outlines potential policies 
and programs that the RTC could consider. 

Table 7. Recommended Education Policies/Programs 

Recommendation Description Lead Agency Level of 

Effort 

Example Program / 

Policy 

Urban Biking and 

Scooting Class 

Create a program that educates people 
biking and scooting how to anticipate 
and respond to drivers and 
walkers. These classes could be held in 
partnership with driver’s ed classes and 
the DMV, or through Reno Bike Project. 

Department 
of Motor 
Vehicles / RTC 

 Urban Bicycling 
and Scooting 101 
Class - 
Downtown 
Sacramento 
Partnership 

Traffic Ticket 

Reduction  

Work with local police departments to 
create a program that provides a 
bicyclist with a safety education course 
as a traffic court option. People who 
receive a safety-related citation/
infraction for moving violations would 
be permitted to attend a Basic Street 
Skills class to reduce or waive fines. 

Reno Police 
Department / 
Sparks Police 
Department / 
Washoe 
Sheriff’s 
Office 

 Marin Traffic 
Citation Fee 

Active 
Transportation 
Commission 
(ATC) 

  

ATTACHMENT

https://www.downtownsac.org/about/
https://www.downtownsac.org/about/
https://www.downtownsac.org/about/
https://www.downtownsac.org/about/
https://www.downtownsac.org/about/
https://www.downtownsac.org/about/
http://www.marinbike.org/traffic-citation-fee-reduction/
http://www.marinbike.org/traffic-citation-fee-reduction/
https://sacramento.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=54&clip_id=6052&meta_id=796375
https://sacramento.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=54&clip_id=6052&meta_id=796375
https://sacramento.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=54&clip_id=6052&meta_id=796375
https://sacramento.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=54&clip_id=6052&meta_id=796375


Encouragement  
Encouragement policies and programs help to create a lasting active transportation culture and can 
encourage overall mode share shifts. Table 8 provides an overview of recommended bicycle and pedestrian 
encouragement policies and programs. 

Table 8. Recommended Encouragement Policies/Programs 

Recommendation Description Lead 

Agency 

Level of 

Effort 

Example Program / Policy 

Bike Maps The development of maps for public 
navigation available through the RTC 
website or other venues. Types of 
public bike maps include interactive 
maps and brochures. Bike maps 
would serve as recommendations of 
which routes to take throughout the 
community to explore the community 
or commute to work or school. 

RTC   Bicycle Friendly 
Community Idea book 

City of Oakland Bicycle 
Facilities Tour Map 

Walk and Roll to 

Work/Wherever 

Days 

Bolster collaboration with local 
community groups such as the Reno 
Bike Project, Truckee Meadows Bike 
Alliance, or the Kiwanis Club to 
sponsor more public walking and 
biking events such as Walk and Roll 
to Work/Wherever Days, Biketober, 
or May Bike Month.  

RTC / 
Northern 
Nevada 
Public 
Health 

 Sacramento Area 
Bicycle Advocates  

 

Washoe County 

School District 

(WCSD) Bike Buses 

A bike bus is a fun group ride to 
school led by responsible adults with 
students joining along the way, like a 
standard school bus. Often the route 
travels along traffic calmed streets or 
on separated paths. The RTC could 
collaborate with WCSD to get bike 
buses started at schools with interest. 
This could include providing a training 
and starter-kit for parents/teachers 
administering the bike bus as well as 
providing logistical support for 
setting up and planning the route.  

WCSD / 
RTC 

 How to Start a Bike Bus- 
PBOT Safe Routes to 
School 

 

 

ATTACHMENT

https://viewer.mapme.com/08065cb4-ee64-432b-8346-58d1b72dd860
https://viewer.mapme.com/08065cb4-ee64-432b-8346-58d1b72dd860
https://oaklandca.s3.us-west-1.amazonaws.com/oakca1/groups/pwa/documents/marketingmaterial/oak058532.pdf
https://oaklandca.s3.us-west-1.amazonaws.com/oakca1/groups/pwa/documents/marketingmaterial/oak058532.pdf
https://www.lovetoride.net/sacregion?locale=en-US
https://www.lovetoride.net/sacregion?locale=en-US
https://www.portland.gov/transportation/walking-biking-transit-safety/safe-routes/how-start-bike-bus
https://www.portland.gov/transportation/walking-biking-transit-safety/safe-routes/how-start-bike-bus
https://www.portland.gov/transportation/walking-biking-transit-safety/safe-routes/how-start-bike-bus


Engineering 
Engineering recommendations support facilities that provide increased comfort and ease for people who bike 
and walk. Table 9 summarizes proposed engineering policies and programs that work with existing bicycle 
and pedestrian infrastructure to improve the experience for people walking, biking, or accessing transit. 

Table 9. Recommended Engineering Policies/Programs 

Recommendation Description Lead Agency Level of 
Effort 

Example Program / Policy  

Wayfinding 

Program 

Implement a region-wide, 
well-branded, and 
comprehensive 
wayfinding program in 
concert with all roadway 
improvement projects 
which include an active 
transportation element 
to highlight low-stress 
routes and increase 
connectivity for those 
walking, biking, rolling, or 
taking transit. 

RTC / City of Reno /
City of Sparks / 
Washoe County 

 Denver Pedestrian and 
Bicycle (D-Route) 
Wayfinding 

Develop a 

Construction 

Detour Policy 

The RTC could work with 
local agencies on a 
collaborative effort to 
update standards for 
accommodating people 
walking and biking when 
construction or events 
impact sidewalks, on-
street bikeways, and 
shared-use paths.  

RTC / City of Reno / 
City of Sparks / 
Washoe County 

 City of Sacramento Draft 
Work Zone Detour Policy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT

https://altago.com/projects/denver-pedestrian-bicycle-wayfinding/
https://altago.com/projects/denver-pedestrian-bicycle-wayfinding/
https://altago.com/projects/denver-pedestrian-bicycle-wayfinding/
https://www.cityofsacramento.gov/content/dam/portal/pw/Transportation/Transportation-Planning/DRAFT-Work-Zone-Detour-Policy-for-Website.pdf
https://www.cityofsacramento.gov/content/dam/portal/pw/Transportation/Transportation-Planning/DRAFT-Work-Zone-Detour-Policy-for-Website.pdf


Engagement  
Engaging with residents on a regular basis can institutionalize safe walking and biking transportation systems. 
By prioritizing people who walk and bike, these programs help create safe environments for all users. Table 
10 displays the proposed engagement policies and programs for the RTC. 

Table 10. Recommended Engagement Policies/Programs 

Recommendation Description Lead Agency Level of 

Effort 

Example Program / 

Policy  

Develop an 

Open Streets 

Program 

Promotes active transportation 
and people-centered spaces and 
emphasizes the potential of streets 
designed for people. Collaborate 
with local leaders, climate 
advocacy groups, and bike and 
pedestrian coalitions to offer 
informative booths for the public.  

RTC in 
collaboration 
with Sparks / 
Reno / Washoe 
County 

 Open Streets MPLS 

Open Streets Project 

Neighborhood 

Mobility 

Listening Labs 

Conducting informal listening 
sessions within the neighborhood 
presents a regular opportunity for 
residents to engage with active 
transportation planners and voice 
their specific concerns within the 
neighborhood. These could be 
held on a rotating basis as stand-
alone events or as part of a larger 
community event. 

RTC in 
collaboration 
with Sparks / 
Reno / Washoe 
County 

 Multnomah County 
SRTS Community 
Event Tabling 

Farmers’ Market 

Monthly Booths 

Regularly occurring community 
events such as the Idlewild 
Farmers’ Market is a good 
opportunity for RTC planners to 
meet people where they are and 
gather key feedback. Hosting a 
regular booth at these events (on a 
monthly or quarterly basis) would 
present a strong opportunity for 
area residents to engage with 
active transportation planners and 
voice their specific concerns while 
hearing about project updates. 

RTC in 
collaboration 
with Sparks / 
Reno / Washoe 
County 

 Multnomah County 
SRTS Community 
Event Tabling 

ATTACHMENT

https://www.ourstreetsmn.org/events/open-streets/
https://openstreetsproject.org/
https://multco.us/info/safe-routes-updates-events
https://multco.us/info/safe-routes-updates-events
https://multco.us/info/safe-routes-updates-events
https://multco.us/info/safe-routes-updates-events
https://multco.us/info/safe-routes-updates-events
https://multco.us/info/safe-routes-updates-events


 

Evaluation 
Efforts to evaluate and track progress toward reaching the NNP’s goals are important for long-term success 
and project implementation. Table 11 lists proposed policies and programs that can identify what’s working, 
what’s not working, and where additional efforts are needed following the completion of the plan.  

Table 11. Recommended Evaluation Policies/Programs 

Recommendation Description Lead Agency Level of 

Effort 

Example Program / Policy 

Monitor Crash 

Data 

Regularly review crash data for 
collisions involving people walking, 
biking, and rolling. The local police 
department can help the RTC 
assess traffic safety issues and 
track progress toward a safer 
community for people walking and 
biking. 

RTC in 
collaboration 
with Reno, 
Sparks, and 
Washoe County 

 San Francisco Collision 
Report 

Assess Local 

Bicycle and 

Pedestrian Trips 

Conduct a regular assessment of 
bicycle and pedestrian trips on 
major roadways and recently 
improved corridors. Consider 
adding bicycle and pedestrian 
counting technology as an element 
of roadway projects that include 
multimodal elements.  

RTC in 
collaboration 
with Reno, 
Sparks, and 
Washoe County 

 SFMTA Bicycle Counts 

NYC Bicycle Counts 

Active 

Transportation 

Dashboard 

Create and maintain an active 
transportation dashboard showing 
existing, planned, and in progress 
active transportation 
infrastructure. This GIS dashboard 
will display quarterly bicycle- and 
pedestrian-involved collision 
statistics and may include links to 
projects with specific benefits for 
active transportation and other 
resources throughout Truckee 
Meadows.  

RTC in 
collaboration 
with TMRPA 

 City of Oakland, Bicycle 
Facilities and Projects 

 
 

  

ATTACHMENT

https://www.sfmta.com/sites/default/files/reports/2016/San%20Francisco%20Collisions%20Report%202012%202015.pdf
https://www.sfmta.com/sites/default/files/reports/2016/San%20Francisco%20Collisions%20Report%202012%202015.pdf
https://www.sfmta.com/bicycle-ridership-data#:%7E:text=Automated%20Bike%20Counts%3A%20While%20in,counts%20are%20again%20trending%20upward!
https://www.nyc.gov/html/dot/html/bicyclists/bike-counts.shtml
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/32e8f63fd0bc435f88d73a605c3866cc/?org=oakgis
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/32e8f63fd0bc435f88d73a605c3866cc/?org=oakgis


Neighborhood Network Improvements 
This section outlines the process used to make project recommendations and breaks those recommendations 
into three categories: (1) existing RTP projects, (2) Active Transportation Program projects, and (3) long-term 
needs. All recommendations are based on feedback the project team heard during the public engagement 
process, professional insights, and data described earlier in this document. Additional RTC planning studies in 
the neighborhood including the Rock Boulevard Corridor Study, 4th Street Corridor Study, Prater Way 
Multimodal Project, and 9th Street Multimodal Project may identify other improvements along these 
roadways that will further enhance the Central Sparks network (Figure 15). 

Existing RTP Projects 
Table 12 provides a breakdown of planned improvements to the Neighborhood Network from the RTP (2025 
– 2034), which are in addition to Active Transportation Program projects. As these projects are designed and 
constructed, they will be supplemented by the short-term Active Transportation Program projects to create a 
more connected network. All Neighborhood Network improvements (Active Transportation Program projects 
and RTP projects) in the Central Sparks neighborhood are shown in Figure 15.  

Table 12. RTP Projects within Central Sparks Neighborhood (2025–2034) 

Corridor Extent Project Type 
Vista Boulevard I-80 to E Prater Way Capacity 
Sparks Boulevard Disc Drive to I-80 Capacity 
Prater Way Pete’s Way to Pyramid Way Multimodal 
4th Street Penny Way to I-80 Multimodal 
9th Street / G Street El Rancho Drive to W Cygnet Circle Multimodal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



 

Figure 15. Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Improvements 

ATTACHMENT



Recommendation Selection Process 
The project team identified three unique scenarios for 
Active Transportation Program projects in the 
neighborhood based on feedback from the community and 
data analysis findings. Each scenario considered a different 
overarching theme, which represented a key goal from the 
community engagement process including creating external 
connections, connecting to schools and parks, and 
establishing a bicycle network grid. To compare between 
scenarios, the project team evaluated each scenario based 
on elements of three key metrics: 

1. Impact on achieving ATP goals 

2. Improving access to key community destinations 

3. Implementation considerations 

Table 13 highlights each element of the evaluation metric. 
The final recommendations represent a combination of recommendations across all three scenarios. For 
more details about the project selection process, please refer to Appendix D.  

Active Transportation Program Projects 
The recommended improvements identified as Active Transportation (AT) Program projects in Figure 16 will 
be considered for implemented as quick-build style projects using funds from the AT Program. In total, the 
Plan recommends improvements on 16.3 miles of roadways across the neighborhood to enhance walking and 
biking (Table 14). This includes 12.6 miles of new neighborhood byways, 1.9 miles of new protected bike 
lanes, and focused enhancements at over 20 intersections along these corridors. These projects are 
highlighted in Table 15 and shown in Figure 16 with each project further described in a standalone project 
cutsheet provided in Appendix E. The letter in the left column of Table 15 corresponds with the letter in the 
top right corner of the project cutsheets. Project cutsheets represent the planning level project concept with 
potential intersection improvements and conceptual corridor improvements. Additionally, each concept 
includes a typical cross section of each proposed facility type to showcase the potential configuration along 
the corridor. The exact layout of each improvement will be refined during the design phase of 
implementation.  

Table 14. Central Sparks Active Transportation Improvements by Facility Type 

Facility Type Total 
Mileage Total Estimated Cost 

Neighborhood Byway 12.4  $                                     3,166,578 
Protected Bike Lanes 1.9  $                                     1,194,262 
Buffered Bike Lanes 0.3  $                                           86,943 
Wayfinding Connection 0.9  $                                           68,506 
Bike Route 0.6  $                                           31,224 
Conflict Striping 0.2  $                                           24,300 
Total 16.3  $                                     4,586,813  

 
 

Evaluation Metric Element 

ATP Goals • Safety 
• Mode Share 
• Community Enhancement 
• Maintenance 

Community Access • Access to Hospitals 
• Access to Schools 
• Access to Parks 

Implementation 
Considerations 

• Primary Emergency Vehicle 
Route Considerations 

• Operational/Parking 
Considerations 

• Planning Level Cost Estimate 

Table 13. Project Evaluation Metrics 

 

ATTACHMENT



Table 15. Central Sparks Active Transportation Improvements 

# Roadway Extent Improvement Type Mileage Cost 

A 
Sullivan Lane Prater Way to Victorian Avenue Neighborhood Byway 0.1 $ 

Sullivan Lane Prater Way to Wedekind Road Protected Bike Lane 1.2 $$$$ 

B 

18th Street Wedekind Street to York Way Neighborhood Byway 0.1 $ 

Wedekind Road McCarran Boulevard to Wedekind Road Neighborhood Byway 0.3 $ 

York Way Goldy Way To 18th Street Neighborhood Byway 2.2 $$$  

C 

11th Street Prospect Avenue to York Way Neighborhood Byway 0.6 $$  

11th Street York Way to Gault Way  Wayfinding Connection 0.2 $ 

12th Street Prospect Avenue to Victorian Plaza Circle Neighborhood Byway 0.7 $$ 

Prospect Avenue 12th Street to 11th Street Neighborhood Byway 0.1 $ 

D I Street Pyramid Way to Prater Way Neighborhood Byway 0.9 $$ 

E 
F Street  12th Street to McCarran Boulevard Neighborhood Byway 1.2 $$$  

G Street  El Rancho Drive to 12th Street Neighborhood Byway 1.0 $$  

F 

Greenbrae Drive San Miguel Way To 4th Street  Neighborhood Byway 1.3 $$$  

Pullman Drive Station Drive to Robbie Way  Neighborhood Byway 0.1 $ 

Robbie Way Pullman Drive to La Via Way Neighborhood Byway 0.1 $ 

Station Drive Pullman Drive to Prater Way Neighborhood Byway 0.1 $ 

G 

Goldy Way Baring Boulevard to Spanish Springs Road Buffered Bike Lanes 0.3 $ 

Goldy Way Howard Drive to Baring Boulevard  Neighborhood Byway 0.2 $ 

Howard Drive Sparks Boulevard to Nichols Boulevard Neighborhood Byway 1.6 $$ 

H 

Existing Path Lida Lane to Vista Boulevard Wayfinding Connection 0.7 $$ 

O’Callaghan Drive Howard Drive to Sparks Boulevard  Neighborhood Byway 0.8 $ 

Rosemary Drive O’Callaghan Drive to Howard Drive Neighborhood Byway 0.4 $ 

Springland Drive Lida Lane to Sparks Boulevard Neighborhood Byway 0.6 $$ 

I 
Lincoln Way Howard Drive to McCarran Boulevard Conflict Striping 0.2 $ 

Lincoln Way Howard Drive to Legends Bay Drive Protected Bike Lanes 0.7 $$$ 

J Victorian Avenue Pyramid Way to 16th Street Bike Route 0.6 $ 

 $ = Less than $100,000, $$ = $101K–$250K, $$$ = $251K–$500K, $$$$ = $501K–$1M 

 

ATTACHMENT



 

Figure 16. Central Sparks Active Transportation Program Projects 

ATTACHMENT



Long-Term Needs 
While quick-build style improvements provide a fast response to addressing community needs more complex 
roadways require higher levels of improvements and more significant redesign to address identified needs 
are best addressed through more comprehensive roadway improvement projects. Table 16 highlights 
roadway extents that were identified as barriers to active transportation in the neighborhood but that cannot 
be addressed through quick-build improvements alone. The Preferred Facility Type noted below is based on 
the Street Typology Guide from the ATP. These larger-scale transportation improvements may be considered 
during future planning efforts or implementation programs. 

Table 16. Central Sparks Long-Term Needs 

Corridor Extent Typology Preferred Facility Type(s) 

Baring Boulevard McCarran Boulevard to 
Vista Boulevard 

Urban Arterial Major / 
Suburban Arterial Minor 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 8' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer / Shared-Use Path 

El Rancho Drive Greenbrae Drive to 
Victorian Avenue Urban Arterial Minor 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 6' - 8' Sidewalk w/ 
5'-7' Buffer 

Greg Street Mill Street to Vista 
Boulevard Urban Arterial Major 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 8' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer 

Kietzke Lane / Battle 
Born Way 

2nd Street to Victorian 
Avenue Urban Arterial Major 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 8' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer 

McCarran 
Boulevard 

US-395 to Truckee 
River Path Urban Arterial Major Shared Use Path* with a 8' - 12' 

Sidewalk w/ 5' - 7' Buffer 

Prater Way Pyramid Way to Vista 
Boulevard 

Urban Arterial Major / 
Urban Arterial Minor 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 6' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer 

Pyramid Way Queen Way to 
Victorian Avenue 

Urban Arterial Major / 
Suburban Arterial Major 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 8' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer 

Rock Boulevard Greenbrae Drive to I-80 Urban Arterial Major / 
Urban Arterial Minor 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 6' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer 

Vista Boulevard Los Altos Parkway to I-
80 

Urban Arterial Major / 
Suburban Arterial Major 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 8' - 12' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer / Shared-Use Path 

Sullivan Lane Wedekind Road to 
McCarran Boulevard 

Urban Collector 
Commercial 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 6' - 10' Sidewalk w/ 
5' - 7' Buffer 

Wedekind Road McCarran Boulevard to 
El Rancho Drive 

Urban Collector 
Residential 

One-Way or Two-Way Cycle 
Track with a 6' - 8' Sidewalk w/ 
5'-7' Buffer 

*Recommended as part of the McCarran Blvd Study 

 
  

ATTACHMENT



Implementation 
The AT Program projects recommended by this plan will be considered for implementation using AT Program 
funds and are intended to be implemented quickly across the neighborhood. The RTC will begin project 
design for identified quick-build improvements in 2025, with a goal to begin construction in Summer 2026. 
Projects will be constructed based on AT Program funds availability.  

Stay Connected 
We encourage you to stay connected through the process as project designs are refined and projects are 
implemented. RTC will regularly post project updates noting progress toward design and implementation for 
projects on the Central Sparks neighborhood webpage. You can also stay connected to RTC’s broader efforts 
through the Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee, RTC Board, and ongoing public announcements from 
the RTC.  

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT

https://rtcwashoe.com/planning/neighborhood-network-plan/central-sparks_nnp/


A

Appendix A: 
N

eighborhood Profile

ATTACHMENT



Alta Planning + Design | 1 

Central Sparks 

Neighborhood Profile  
Neighborhood Network Plan 

December 2024

ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



 

Alta Planning + Design | i 

Table of Contents 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Neighborhood Demographics .......................................................................................................................... 2 

Key Neighborhood Destinations .................................................................................................................... 15 

Existing Neighborhood Network .................................................................................................................... 19 

Neighborhood Profile Summary .................................................................................................................... 40 

ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



 

Alta Planning + Design | 1 

Introduction, Plan Review, and Neighborhood Demographics 

Introduction 

As part of the Walk and Roll Truckee Meadows Active Transportation Plan (ATP), the Regional Transportation 
Commission (RTC) of Washoe County is developing Neighborhood Network Plans (NNPs) which aim to 
enhance active transportation options by improving pedestrian and bicycling infrastructure in the twelve 
identified neighborhood areas. The NNPs will apply the regional vision, goals, and priorities while taking a 
community-driven approach that provides each community the opportunity to identify their specific needs 
and desired solutions. Central Sparks is one of the first two communities engaged in this process as 
designated in the ATP. These areas encompass communities with some of the greatest active transportation 
needs in the region, with prominent levels of pedestrian stress, low scores for pedestrian experience, and 
elevated levels of injuries on the network. This Neighborhood Network Plan will provide an in-depth look into 
the neighborhood area specific data that came out of the ATP process, as well as a review of relevant plans 
and demographic data. 

Plan Review 

Ignite Sparks is the City of Sparks’ Comprehensive Plan which guides development through the year 2030. 
Adopted in 2016, the plan has undergone several amendments and is meant to serve as a living document as 
the City continues to grow and evolve. The plan addresses a variety of issues that are either directly or 
indirectly related to active transportation and are relevant to the development of the Central Sparks 
Neighborhood Network Plan. While the plan is comprehensive, it contains goals and associated policies that 
support expanding and enhancing bicycle and pedestrian connections throughout the city. 

Chapter Four – Goal 1: Connectivity   

This goal from Ignite Sparks emphasizes the need for a transportation system that supports the movement of 
residents and visitors of all ages to access employment, housing, services, and recreation throughout urban 
Washoe County. This plan emphasizes that the Connectivity goals and policies are intended to assure that all 
users of streets are considered in the planning and design of new transportation routes or the reconstruction 
of previously established roads. To foster the development of walkable communities with multimodal 
transportation options, the plan set policies such as ensuring streets with multiple modes of transportation 
remain multimodal (Policy C3), requiring sidewalks for pedestrians on all street networks within the city and 
in previously developed areas, supporting pedestrian access with sidewalks on both sides of the street or a 
multi-use path on one side of the street (Policy C4), promoting infill development, and creating pedestrian-
friendly environments that facilitate walkability and transit ridership in the Sparks Mixed-Use District (Policy 
C7). To ensure bicycle connectivity, the plan set policies such as converting 4th St into a bike boulevard 
(Policy C5), enhancing Victorian Ave with bicycle facilities from Rock Blvd to Pyramid Wy that supports east-
west connectivity from Victorian Ave to Nichols Blvd and Lincoln Wy (Policy C6).  

 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile DRAFT 

2 | Alta Planning + Design 

Neighborhood Demographics 

Data Explanation 

Part of the development of the ATP involved an in-depth analysis of demographics and socioeconomic 
characteristics of the region and communities within it. This type of analysis is critical for better 
understanding the context and needs of a place and is used to inform the development of the plan and the 
strategies and policies it recommends. Each neighborhood network profile will also include an overview of 
some important data relevant to the neighborhood context and a comparison of the neighborhoods to the 
Reno/Sparks area. 

 

 

Demographics 

The Central Sparks neighborhood is slightly younger than the overall Reno/Sparks area. As shown in Figure 1, 
the Central Sparks area shows a higher proportion of individuals under the age of 24, particularly in the 5 to 9 
and 15 to 19 age groups, as well as a higher percentage in the 30 to 34 age group compared to the Reno/ 
Sparks area. The Reno/Sparks area has a larger percentage of older adults, especially those between 55 and 
85 years of age compared to Central Sparks. 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1 Age groups as percent of total population in Central Sparks 

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

Age Groups as Percent of Total Population (ACS 2023)

Central Sparks Reno / Sparks Area

ATTACHMENT



Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 3 

The Central Sparks neighborhood has a larger percentage of Hispanic/Latino residents, and a smaller 
percentage of White Alone residents compared to the Reno/Sparks area. The neighborhood has a similar 
population of Native American and Native Hawaiian residents. However, the Reno/Sparks area has a slightly 
higher population of Black/African American and Asian residents as shown in Figure 2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Figure 2 Race and ethnicity in Central Sparks 

White Alone
Hispanic or

Latino
Asian

Black or
African

American

Native
American

Native
Hawaiian

Some Other
Race

Two Other
Races

47.2% 40.9% 5.0% 1.5% 0.8% 0.7% 0.3% 3.4%

59.2% 26.4% 5.6% 2.5% 0.8% 0.7% 0.4% 4.4%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0% Race and Ethnicity (ACS 2023)

Central Sparks Reno / Sparks Area

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile DRAFT 

4 | Alta Planning + Design 

Population Density 

The Central Sparks neighborhood has a population density that is approximately 20 times higher than the 
regional average, with about 5,907 people per square mile compared to just 300 people per square mile in 
the Reno/Sparks region. Within the neighborhood, the highest population density area is concentrated 
between McCarran Blvd, Oddie Blvd, Prater Wy, and Sparks Blvd as shown in Figure 3. Areas with population 
density near zero, marked in the lightest shade, are primarily located along the outer edges of the map, 
particularly near Greg St, Glendale Ave, and along the I-80 corridor. These regions may represent industrial 
zones, undeveloped areas, or spaces designated for non-residential purposes.  

 
 

ATTACHMENT



Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 5 

 
Figure 3 Population density in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile DRAFT 

6 | Alta Planning + Design 

 
Median Household Income 
The Central Sparks neighborhood has a large array of household incomes as shown in Figure 4. There is a 
significant difference in household incomes across the neighborhood from the northeast between Vista Blvd, 
Sparks Blvd, and Baring Blvd which has a median household income of $133,500, compared to other areas 
such as between Oddie Blvd, Prater Wy, and El Rancho Dr (highlighted orange in Figure 4) which has a 
median household income of $30,000. On average the median household income in the neighborhood 
($75,848) is below the Reno/Sparks median household income ($85,969) by just over $10,000.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT



Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 7 

 
Figure 4 Median household income in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile DRAFT 

8 | Alta Planning + Design 

People without Access to a Vehicle 

Vehicle access often determines an individual’s ability to reach essential services such as employment, 
healthcare, education, and grocery stores. Identifying areas where people lack access to a vehicle is crucial 
for ensuring equitable transportation and infrastructure development. For areas with low vehicle ownership, 
planners can prioritize investments in public transit, pedestrian infrastructure, and bike networks to enhance 
mobility systems to improve the overall quality of life and economic opportunities for residents. Figure 5 
below shows the distribution of households in Central Sparks without access to a vehicle. A total of 1,815 
households lack vehicle access, which is 7 percent of all households in the neighborhood. This matches the 
overall rate for the Reno/Sparks area, which is 7 percent of households in the region. There are areas within 
the neighborhood which have a higher proportion of residents who lack access to a vehicle, especially areas 
south of Prater Wy where as high as 15 percent of the population lack access to a vehicle. The area with the 
highest lack of vehicle access is between Prater Wy and along the I-80 corridor, with three census tracts 
containing 13 to 15 percent of households having no access to a vehicle.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 9 

 
Figure 5 Percent of households without access to a vehicle in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile DRAFT 

10 | Alta Planning + Design 

Owner and Renter Occupied Household Burden 

Housing cost burden refers to households that are paying 30 percent or more of their monthly income for 
their rent or mortgage payments. Figure 6 below shows the distribution of cost-burdened households 
throughout the Central Sparks area. Many of the census tracts throughout the neighborhood contain high 
rates of households that are cost burdened. The area south of Prater Wy contains a tract with 55 percent of 
households that are cost-burdened, and 43 percent of households in the tract adjacent to Oddie Blvd are 
housing cost-burdened. Approximately 32 percent of all households in the Central Sparks neighborhood are 
cost-burdened, which is similar to the Reno/Sparks area, which has 31 percent of cost-burdened households 
in the region. The southern area located in Figure 6 may be influenced by its predominately industrial land 
use and smaller population, which can skew housing cost burden data.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 11 

 
Figure 6 Percent of households who are paying 30 percent or more of their income for housing costs 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile DRAFT 

12 | Alta Planning + Design 

 

Equity Index 

The ATP used a transportation-focused equity analysis to measure equity through various criteria that are 
related to or impacted by active transportation usage. These included things such as health outcomes, socio-
economic factors like poverty level, and environmental impact. The variables were assigned a percentile rank 
and combined into a final composite index for the 
entire study area1. Figure 7 displays the 
methodology of the regional analysis within the 
Central Sparks neighborhood. As shown below, 
many census tracts in the western portion of the 
neighborhood are ranked with the highest need 
and fall within the Justice 40 initiative boundary. 
Justice 40 is the latest federal equity analysis from 
the US Department of Transportation, which 
prioritizes investments towards historically 
underserved communities based on their own 
broad set of data criteria2. Two census tracts that 
fall outside of the Justice 40 initiative boundary are 
still ranked with the highest transportation equity. 
One census tract is located towards the middle of 
the neighborhood and borders McCarran Blvd and 
Pyramid Wy. The other census tract is located south 
of Prater Wy, east of the McCarran Blvd loop, south 
of Prater Wy. Many of the census tracts that are 
ranked in the lowest need fall along Vista Blvd in 
the northeast portion of the neighborhood. Figure 
8 highlights the significant differences across the 
neighborhood and the stark contrast between the 
west side and east side of the neighborhood.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 More information on the Equity Composite methodology available in the RTC ATP (page 25-26) 
2 More information on this analysis is available here: Justice40 Initiative | US Department of Transportation 

Figure 7 Equity Analysis Variables 

ATTACHMENT

https://rtcwashoe.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/RTC-Washoe-ATP-FINAL-1.pdf
https://www.transportation.gov/equity-Justice40


Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 13 

 

 

Figure 8 Transportation equity index and Justice 40 areas in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



 

Alta Planning + Design | 15 

Key Neighborhood Destinations 

Central Sparks is a dynamic neighborhood that contains a wealth of places for residents to engage with their 
community, access recreation, and meet the needs of their daily lives. Figure 9 below is a map of some of the 
key destinations throughout the neighborhood area, while the rest of this section details some of the other 
relevant destinations located in the community, including schools, parks, and entertainment, employment, 
and community centers.  
 

Schools 

There are several schools in the area, providing schooling for preschoolers all the way up to 12th grade.  

Table 1 Schools that service Central Sparks *this list is not exhaustive 

School Level School Name 

Early Education 

• A Child’s World 

• Little Feathers Learning Center 

• McCarran KinderCare 

• Early Learning Center 2 

• Itsy Bitsy Learning Center 

• The Early Years Academy 

• Treasure Chest Learning Center 

Elementary and Middle 
Schools 

• Marvin Moss  

• Diedrichsen 

• Katherine Dunn 

• Jerry Whitehead 

• Lena Juniper 

• Drake 

• Greenbrae 

• Lincoln Park 

• Mitchell 

• Kate Smith 

• Risley 

• Maxwell 

• Alpine Academy 

• Sparks Middle  

• Mendive Middle 

• Dilworth Middle 

• Mater Academy of Northern Nevada  

• High Desert Montessori  

High Schools 
• Procter R Hug  

• Edward C Reed  

• Sparks  

 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

16 | Alta Planning + Design 

Parks 

Parks play a key role in the success and vitality of a community, providing opportunities for relaxation, 
recreation, and gathering, supplying vital ecosystem services like heat and air pollution mitigation, and 
contributing to the health of community members and cities. Central Sparks is dotted with numerous parks 
providing residents with opportunities to partake in a variety of outdoor activities and experience several 
types of natural environments. Pagni Ranch, Pah Rah, Aimone, Rock, Woodtrail, Shelly, Van Meter, and 
Church Park provide smaller, accessible community spaces with minimal amenities like children’s playgrounds 
and walking paths. Wedekind Regional Park, Poulakidas, Willowcreek, Deer, Maldonado and Shadow 
Mountain Park provide amenities like sports courts and fields, swimming pools, trails, and skateparks. The 
Truckee River Path is located at the south end of the neighborhood and is a paved walkway along the Truckee 
River that can connect residents to several parks, restaurants, and commercial destinations in downtown 
Reno. Off I-80, between N McCarran Blvd and Sparks Blvd, is the Sparks Marina Park which provides 
playgrounds, a dog park, a walking path that wraps around the lake, and a fishing dock. 

Entertainment Centers 

Entertainment centers are places and areas that provide residents with diverse opportunities for nightlife, 
dining, sporting events, theater, live music, performing arts, and cultural activities. Much of Central Sparks’ 
entertainment occurs around or along the I-80 corridor, including the Legends IMAX and Victorian, Sparks 
Galaxy Theatres, Sparks Heritage Museum, Waterpark and Coconut Bowl at Wild Island, iSMASH, Fly High 
Trampoline Park, DEFY Sparks, Legends Bay, Western Village, Sierra Sid’s, Baldini’s, Rail City and the Nugget 
Casino Resort. Across I-80 and north of the Nugget, there are several events held at Victorian Square, 
including the Rib Cook Off, Sparks Art Walk, Star Spangled Sparks, Hot August Nights, the Sparks Hometown 
Christmas Parade & Tree Lighting, and many more.  

Employment Centers 

Employment centers have a high density of commercial, retail, and healthcare spaces, providing communities 
with ample employment opportunities and places to shop, eat, and socialize. There are several areas that 
comprise employment centers in the Central Sparks neighborhood, including Manpower of Northern Nevada, 
Northern Nevada Medical Center, Sierra Nevada Construction, Nugget Casino Resort, Outlets and Legends, 
and Western Village.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 17 

Community Destinations 

Community destinations provide additional spaces for residents to gather and build the social networks that 
foster thriving and resilient communities. These spaces can include churches, community centers, or other 
destinations visited frequently. 

Table 2 Community destinations in Central Reno / Midtown *this list is not exhaustive  

Community 

Destination Type 
Location 

Churches 

• Immaculate Conception 

• Sparks Seventh-day Adventist 

• Bethel AME 

• Korean Presbyterian 

• Our Savior Lutheran 

• Faith Community 

• First International Christian Fellowship 

• Reno Blessed 

• Horizon 

• Church of Jesus Christ Spirit Filled  

• Sparks Christian Fellowship 

• Risen King Community 

• Warehouse Christian Ministries 

• The Potter’s House Christian Fellowship 

• Perfect Peace Community 

• Souls Harbor Apostolic Pentecostal 

• First Christian Church 

• Victory Outreach Reno 

• Sparks United Methodist  

• University Family Fellowship  

• Reno Young Nak Presbyterian  

Community Centers 
• Northern Nevada Muslim Community Center 

• Alf Sorensen Community Center 

• City of Sparks Recreation Center 

Other Frequented 
Destinations 

• Sparks Library  

• Sparks United Methodist Church Farmers Market 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

18 | Alta Planning + Design 

Figure 9 Key destinations in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



 

Alta Planning + Design | 19 

Existing Neighborhood Network 

Pedestrian Facilities 

The pedestrian network is primarily made up of sidewalks, with their presence providing safety and 
accessibility benefits for pedestrians and those using mobility scooters or devices. The RTC recently collected 
sidewalk data to assess the current availability of sidewalks on regional roadways. The analysis assigns a 
score to each roadway between zero and two, with zero indicating there were no sidewalks present on either 
side of the street and two indicating there were sidewalks on both sides. Within Central Sparks, the arterial 
street network earned an average score of 1.34, indicating that a little over half of the roadways in the area 
have sidewalks on both sides of the street. The collectors earned an average score of 1.52, indicating that 
more collectors in the area have sidewalks on both sides of the street. Arterials and collectors within the 
Reno/Sparks area earned average scores of 1.25 and 1.39, respectively. The scores in Central Sparks point to 
a roadway network that has sidewalks on many of its streets but may contain notable gaps in the network as 
well. Gaps such as N McCarran Blvd between 4th St and Baring Blvd, or along large portions of Greg St and 
Glendale Ave, where almost no sidewalks are present, can present significant challenges for people who are 
walking or using a mobility device. A gap where no sidewalk exists presents a major safety hazard if users are 
forced to walk in the roadway.  

 

Bicycle Facilities 

The bicycle network is made up of a variety of bicycle facilities, each providing bicyclists with varying degrees 
of safety and accessibility. Within the Central Sparks area, there are a variety of facility types, with most miles 
provided as bike lanes. The area provides 1.28 miles of shared lane facilities, 1.27 miles of cycle tracks, 21.26 
miles of bike lanes, and 12.62 miles of paths 1.28shared lane facilities for a total of 36.43 miles of bicycle 
facilities. This accounts for 68 percent of the area’s 53.72 miles of regional roadway network. A substantial 
amount of this mileage comes in the form of unprotected and unbuffered bike lanes along higher speed 
arterials such as McCarran Blvd, Pyramid Wy, and Prater Wy. There is also a large portion of shared-use paths 
throughout the area. The Sparks shared-use path and Truckee River path allow cyclists to access jobs, 
education, healthcare, grocery stores, as well as nature. Sparks also has one of the first separated bike lanes 
in the Reno/Sparks area along Victorian Ave. However, many gaps still exist within the area’s bicycle network, 
including along Greg St, Glendale Ave, and Vista Blvd, or along McCarran Blvd between Prater Wy and I-80, 
where the region’s only separated bike lane passes 
through. Overall, Central Sparks provides some of 
the region’s best bicycling infrastructure, including 
the Sparks Blvd shared-use path, Truckee River 
Path and the Victorian Ave Cycle Track. However, 
many gaps remain, providing ample opportunities 
to enhance and expand the network (Figure 10). 
These areas include, but are not limited to, 
continuing the connection of facilities on Pyramid 
Wy, Prater Wy, Vista Blvd, Victorian Ave, and 
Oddie Blvd. Adding bicycle infrastructure along 
Baring Blvd would serve as another east to west 
connector to bridge the gap between Vista Blvd 
and McCarran Blvd.  

Picture 1 Shared-Use Path example 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

20 | Alta Planning + Design 

Bicycle Facility Types: 

• Shared-Use Paths: Pathways for 
pedestrians, bicyclists, and others, which 
are separate from vehicle traffic and include 
connections that are outside of the right-of-
way. 

• Separated Bike Lanes: Dedicated paths for 
bicyclists, which are physically separated 
from vehicle traffic by a barrier. 

• Bike Lanes: Dedicated spaces for bicyclists 
on the roadway, which are marked by 
pavement markings and can be 
accompanied by additional signage. 

• Shared Lane Facilities: Markings that 
indicate the shared use of a travel lane by 
bicycles and vehicles, including signed 
bicycle routes, “sharrows”, and bike / bus 
lanes. 

Table 3 Bicycle facilities in Central Sparks by mileage 

Facility Type Mileage 

Separated Bike Lane 1.26 

Bike Lane 21.26 

Shared-Use Path 12.62 

Shared Lane Facilities 1.28 

 

 

 

Picture 2 Separated bike lane example 

Picture 3 Bike lane example 

Picture 4 Shared lane facility example 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 21 

 
Figure 1010 Existing bicycle facilities in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

22 | Alta Planning + Design 

Network Context 

Roadway Speeds 

The posted speed for vehicles on the road is a major factor for active transportation safety and comfort 
throughout the transportation network. As vehicle speeds increase, there is a greater risk for serious injury 
and death in the event of a crash, especially for people walking or biking. Figure 12 showcases the existing 
speed limits for roadways in the neighborhood. This element is important for safety as well as overall comfort 
for people walking and biking because as the posted vehicle speeds increase, people walking and biking 
typically desire a greater level of separation from vehicles. For this reason, posted speeds are a primary factor 
in the determination of the Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress (BLTS) and Pedestrian Experience Index (PEI) which 
are both further described below.  

Figure 11 Risk of injury for people walking based on vehicle speeds 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 23 

 
Figure 1212 Existing speed limits on roadway network 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

24 | Alta Planning + Design 

Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress 

Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress estimates the level of comfort that bicyclists experience on a given roadway 
segment and provides a measure of how likely different types of riders are to use the facility. It takes into 
consideration things such as posted speed, number of travel lanes, and the presence and type of bike lanes, 
and can help identify gaps in a bike network. BLTS is measured from level one to four, with one representing 
roadways where bicyclists of all ages and abilities would feel comfortable riding, and level four representing 
high-stress roadways where only strong and fearless bicyclists would feel comfortable. 

 

The BLTS for regional roadways in the neighborhood is highlighted in Table 4. As shown, there are many 
roadways which rank as BLTS 3 or 4 across the neighborhood including Greg St, Vista Blvd, McCarran Blvd, 
Glendale Ave, Pyramid Wy, and Oddie Blvd. When roadways with higher vehicle speeds and traffic volumes 
(e.g. arterials) lack adequate bicycles facilities or sufficient separation between drivers and cyclists, it can 
result in uncomfortable conditions for biking. These factors create a highly stressful experience for cyclists 
and act as significant barriers to bicycle travel. Within the eastern region of the neighborhood, the Sparks 
Blvd shared-use path serves as a good example of sufficient separation along a high-speed arterial roadway. 
This path allows cyclists and pedestrians to safely access jobs, schools, parks, grocery stores and medical 
facilities along Sparks Blvd. The shared use path has undergone construction since 2022 and will continue to 
improve safety and mobility for all modes as the second phase of the project is implemented.  

Figure 13 Diagram showing the four levels of bicycle level of traffic stress 

Figure 13 Diagram showing the four levels of bicycle level of traffic stress 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 25 

Table 4 Average bicycle level of traffic stress scores for arterials and collectors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Classifications Central Sparks Reno/Sparks Area 

Arterials 3.18 3.06 

Collectors 2.42 2.32 

Average Total 3.04 2.91 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

26 | Alta Planning + Design 

 

 

Figure 1414 Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress scores for the streets in the regional roadway network 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 27 

Pedestrian Experience Index 

The ATP leverages a comprehensive analysis of the pedestrian experience throughout the Reno/Sparks area 
from researchers at the University of Nevada Reno (UNR). This analysis is meant to provide a planning level of 
understanding of the pedestrian experience along roadways, and assigns scores based on factors such as the 
presence of sidewalks and their associated widths, existing buffer space from moving vehicles, number of 
vehicle lanes, and roadway speed. A score is assigned to each side of a roadway, with a total of 85 points 
possible. Higher scores represent roadways that provide a more comfortable pedestrian experience. 

Central Sparks earned an average score of 45.76 for the pedestrian experience across all its regional 
roadways, but does not include the shared-use path along Sparks Blvd. A score of 46 means that sidewalks 
are typically five to six feet wide, are present on one or both sides of the road, provide buffer space between 
vehicles and pedestrians only intermittently, or may have higher speeds and number of lanes. Although a 
score of 46 is not in the bottom half of scores possible for the pedestrian experience index, it is very close.  
This can be seen in Figure 15, as there are several roadways with low to moderate scores. Streets such as 
McCarran Blvd, Oddie Blvd, Vista Blvd, and Greg St are made up of segments that earn some of the lowest 
scores in the network. These low scores are largely due to lack of sidewalks and/or sidewalk buffers between 
people walking and people driving. However, as 46 is the average for the Central Sparks area, there area 
numerous roads that earn high pedestrian experience scores, including roads like Greenbrae Dr, Probasco 
Wy, and York Wy.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

28 | Alta Planning + Design 

 

 

Figure 15 Pedestrian Experience Index scores for the sidewalks in the regional roadway network 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 29 

Traffic Safety 

Crash Data 

The project team reviewed the most recent five years of available crash data which covers 2019 - 20233. Over 
this period, there were 202 crashes involving someone walking or biking within the Central Sparks 
neighborhood, with eight fatal crashes and 184 crashes causing injury. Many of these crashes involved a 
person walking, with 132 total pedestrian crashes, and 70 crashes involving someone biking.  

Table 5 Total crashes by mode 

Total Crashes by Mode 

Crash Severity Pedestrians Bicyclists Total 

Fatal 4 4 8 

Injury 118 66 184 

Property Damage Only (PDO) 10 0 10 

Grand Total 132 70 202 

Intersections vs. Segments 

There is roughly an even split of crashes between intersections and roadway segments (the area between 
intersections) for people walking and biking. However, crashes in intersections accounted for two-thirds (63 
percent) of fatalities for people walking and biking. Additionally, 52 percent of crashes which resulted in an 
injury and 60 percent of crashes involving a person walking or biking which only resulted in property damage 
occurred at an intersection. This highlights the critical role that safety considerations play in designing 
intersections that safely serve all road users.  

Table 6 Crash severity at intersections and on roads 

Crash 

Severity 

Pedestrians Bicyclists All Active Transportation 

Intersections Segment Intersection Segments Intersections Segments 

Fatal 50% 50% 75% 25% 63% 38% 

Injury 51% 49% 55% 45% 52% 48% 

Property 60% 40% - - 60% 40% 

All 

Crashes 
52% 48% 56% 44% 53% 47% 

 

 

 

3 Data provided by NDOT. Data excludes December 2023 due to limited availability 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

30 | Alta Planning + Design 

 

 

Top Crash Corridors 

Crash history helps highlight specific corridors that account for a majority of the crashes in the neighborhood. 
Out of a total of 35 corridors, the following 15 corridors accounted for a total of 129 injury crashes (71 
percent of the total) and five fatal crashes (71 percent of the total) involving a person walking or biking in 
the Central Sparks area. Prater Wy stands out among the top 15 corridors in terms of fatalities and injuries, 
with a total of three fatalities and 25 injuries, which is nearly double the number of injuries that any other 
road has experienced. Prater Wy is the only corridor in Central Sparks with more than one fatal crash in the 
last five years. Additionally, Pyramid Wy, El Rancho Dr, Rock Blvd, and Victorian Ave have all experienced 
double-digit totals for injuries and fatalities. 

Table 7 Crash history on corridors with high crash rates 

Rank Street Name 

Pedestrian Crashes  Bicycle Crashes  Total 
Fatal Injury Fatal Injury 

1 Prater Wy 1 17 2 8 28 

2 Pyramid Wy  7  6 13 

3 El Rancho Dr  9  2 11 

4 Rock Blvd  5 1 4 10 

5 Victorian Ave  9  1 10 

6 Glendale Ave  4  4 8 

7 McCarran Blvd  6  3 8 

8 Lincoln Wy  3  4 7 

9 Sparks Blvd  3 1 3 7 

10 Vista Blvd  4  2 6 

11 Greg St  3  2 5 

12 Baring Blvd  1  3 4 

13 Greenbrae Dr  4   4 

14 Howard Dr  4   4 

15 Sullivan Ln  2  2 4  

 

 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 31 

High Injury Network 

The RTC has conducted substantial analysis of the regional roadway network to identify roads and 
intersections with the greatest safety needs. This research contributed to the development of a High-Injury 
Network (HIN) for the region, which identifies those places which have the highest crash rates, level of 
frequency, and crash severity across the county4. Central Sparks contains 16 HIN corridors and 26 HIN 
intersections. The corridors account for 13.57 miles or nearly 16 percent of the region’s HIN network, and 
almost 19 percent of the region’s HIN intersections. Figure 16 highlights the streets and intersections that 
comprise the high-injury network in Central Sparks. Corridors such as McCarran Blvd, Prater Wy, Pyramid Wy, 
and Victorian Ave make up some of the more dangerous portions of the area’s roadway network.  

 

 

 

 

 

4 It is important to note that the RTC HIN was developed based on all crashes and is not specific to crashes for 

people walking and biking.  

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

32 | Alta Planning + Design 

 
Figure 1615 High-Injury Network in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 33 

ATP Interactive Webmap Results 

Part of the community engagement effort for the ATP involved providing the public with an interactive web 
map where they could pinpoint specific locations which were difficult or concerning as a bicyclist or 
pedestrian (Figure 17). They were also encouraged to mark locations which currently provided good or 
comfortable facilities. Respondents left a total of 63 comments for the Central Sparks area. Residents 
identified 28 bicycle-related issues, 28 pedestrian-related issues, four network gap issues, and three issues 
related to other mobility deficiencies. Bicycle issues included poor wayfinding and signage, inadequate 
facilities and poor-quality infrastructure, poor visibility, challenging transitions, and gaps in the bicycle 
network, among others. Pedestrian issues included sidewalk gaps, inadequate and infrequent crossings, 
dangerous roadway conditions, especially for children and students, and poor intersection designs, among 
others. Other mobility issues and network gaps included issues such as the need for improved transit and 
lagging service for street cleaning. Additionally, across almost all types of issues, numerous respondents 
identified dangerous drivers and driving habits as a major concern. Several streets were identified as having 
multiple issues within the neighborhood, including McCarran Blvd, Baring Blvd, El Rancho Dr, Sparks Blvd, 
Vista Blvd, Wedekind Rd, Whitewood Dr, and Prater Wy. In addition to those corridors, three intersections 
along Sparks Blvd received multiple comments: Shadow Ln, Baring Blvd, and Lincoln Wy.  

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

34 | Alta Planning + Design 

 
Figure 1716 ATP Interactive Map Interface 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 35 

Traffic Calming  

The City of Sparks operates a traffic calming program that allows residents to request infrastructure 
improvements designed to promote safe driving behaviors. The City is actively addressing these requests by 
implementing measures that reduce vehicle speeds, lower traffic volumes, discourage cut-through traffic on 
local streets, minimize conflicts between street users, enhance the surrounding environment, and create 
safer neighborhoods.  

 

Active Trip Demand 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Activity 

The project team used Replica data to assess the level of walking and biking activity in the area5. Based on 
this data, there are an estimated total of 29,058 daily walking trips (1,448 trips per square mile) and 2,578 
daily biking trips (128 trips per square mile) in the Central Sparks area (Table 8). When looking at the region, 
there are an estimated 181,779 daily walking trips and 17,035 daily biking trips, which comes out to 586 and 
55 trips per square mile, respectively. Although Central Sparks does not have as many trips per square mile as 
the Reno/Sparks area, its comparatively high density of existing active transportation trips in the 
neighborhood indicates a higher overall demand for walking and biking trips and infrastructure than average 
in the region.  

Table 8 Estimated Biking and Walking Trips 

Mode 

Central Sparks 

Reno/Sparks Area 

Total 
Percent of 

Reno/Sparks Total 

Bicycling Trips 2,578 15.1% 17,035 

Bicycling Trip Density (per square mile) 128 N/A 55 

Walking Trips 29,058 16% 181,779 

Walking Trip Density (per square mile) 1,448 N/A 586 

 

 

 

5 Replica Data provides trip estimates based on activity-based travel demand modeling. This data provides a 

high-level estimate of trips by various modes throughout the area but does not represent recorded trip data.  

 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

36 | Alta Planning + Design 

Active Trip Potential 

In addition to understanding where current active transportation trips occur, it is also important to 
understand which areas have a strong potential for increased active transportation trips. This analysis is 
accomplished by identifying areas where people take a high number of short vehicle trips. Trips are classified 
based on their distance, with distance serving as an indicator of the suitability for various mode shifts. Trips 
under one mile were classified as potential walking trips, trips between one and three miles were classified as 
potential biking trips, trips between three and six miles were classified as potential e-bike trips, and trips over 
six miles were considered not suitable for active modes.  

Within the Central Sparks neighborhood, there are several areas that see a high percentage of vehicle trips 
that are less than or equal to six miles, which have the potential to be converted to other modes. Numerous 
census tracts in the northwest corner of the neighborhood, bounded by Prater Wy, McCarran Blvd, and the 
western border of the neighborhood, have a high percentage of trips that fall under three miles, and even 
more under six. The neighborhoods surrounding the Sparks Marina Park also see a large majority of their 
trips falling within six miles. Table 9 below shows the estimated total number of trips and approximate 
lengths for the Central Sparks and Reno/Sparks areas. Central Sparks sees 10 percent more trips under three 
miles than the Reno/Sparks area, highlighting the higher-than-average potential for mode shift in the 
neighborhood. 

 

Table 9 Percent of daily vehicle trips (Replica Data) 

Trip Distance 
Central Sparks TMSA 

Estimate Percentage Estimate Percentage 

Less than 1 mile 7,664 13.2% 259,087 10.4% 

1 to 3 miles 19,649 36.0% 717,325 28.8% 

3 to 6 miles 19,769 27.4% 695,067 27.9% 

over 6 Miles 18,676 28.4% 820,599 32.9% 

Total 86,728 
 

2,492,078 
 

 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 37 

 
Figure 1817 Active trip potential in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile 

38 | Alta Planning + Design 

Active Transportation Gap Analysis 

The RTC completed an Active Transportation Gap Analysis as part of the development of the RTC Washoe 
Active Transportation Plan. To identify gaps, the RTC combined the results of several analyses of the Truckee 
Meadows network, including Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress, Pedestrian Experience, Equity, Active Trip 
Potential, and the High Injury Network6. The analyses were combined by assigning a score to each individual 
analysis for each road segment (Figure 19). Segments could earn a score between zero and 40, with zero 
representing a roadway with no gaps and 40 representing a roadway with significant gaps.  

The roadway network in Central Sparks earned an average overall gap analysis score of 22.4, with streets 
scoring as high as 29.3 and as low as 12.4. Nearly 57 percent of the streets earned a score over 20, with the 
following top 10 streets earning the highest average gap analysis scores (Figure 20). 

Top Ten Active Transportation Network gaps: 

1. Pyramid Wy (29.3) 
2. Oddie Blvd (29.1) 
3. McCarran Blvd (28.7) 
4. Kietzke Ln (27.0) 
5. Nichols Blvd (27.0) 
6. Prater Wy (24.2) 
7. Rock Blvd (24.2) 
8. Wedekind Rd (23.7) 
9. Victorian Ave (23.3) 
10. El Rancho Dr (22.6) 

While the gap analysis identified a few of the same 
corridors that respondents did during the ATP 
Interactive Webmap survey, there were several 
additional streets and areas that respondents 
identified as presenting major challenges for 
pedestrians and bicyclists. El Rancho Dr, Baring Blvd, 
Wedekind Rd, and the streets surrounding Mendive 
Middle School each received several comments 
related to inadequate bicycle and pedestrian 
infrastructure and connections, as well as unsafe 
driving behaviors. Sparks Blvd, which includes one of 
the region’s few multi-use paths, also received a large 
number of comments, many of which pertained to 
challenging street crossings and poorly maintained 
bike facilities. This highlights the importance of 
maintaining existing active transportation facilities to 
ensure they don’t create additional barriers for users. 

 

 

6 The term “gap” represents a roadway section that acts as a barrier to active transportation in the region. 

Figure 1918 Active Transportation Gap Variables 

ATTACHMENT



 Neighborhood Network Plan 

Alta Planning + Design | 39 

 
Figure 2019 Top 10 highest scoring corridors in Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



 

Alta Planning + Design | 40 

Neighborhood Profile Summary 

Central Sparks is young, dense, and significantly more diverse than the rest of the 
Reno/Sparks area, with a large Hispanic population. As a whole, the 
neighborhood has a slightly lower household income than the region with similar 
rates of housing cost burden and lack of access to a vehicle. However, the 
neighborhood contains several communities in the western and southern 
portions of the area between McCarran Blvd, I-80, and the Reno/Sparks border 
which are denser and have significantly lower average incomes, lower levels of 
vehicle access, and higher rates of housing cost burden. These areas stand to 
benefit the most from investments in active transportation. 

Central Sparks provides its residents a range of walking and biking facilities, from 
the high-quality shared use paths on Sparks Blvd and along the Truckee River to 
areas like McCarran Blvd between I-80 and Lincoln Way, which lack sidewalks, 
sidewalk buffers, and bicycle facilities. Major arterials, such as Pyramid Way, 
which contains numerous segments and intersections within the High-Injury 
Network, could provide needed connections within the community but currently 
act as major barriers to pedestrians and bicyclists. 

The analyses in this report identified several gaps in the active transportation 
network, especially along major arterial roadways. These gaps present 
opportunities to create a safer and more connected active transportation network and further the goals of 
the ATP. With relatively strong demand for active transportation in the area, and the potential for many of 
the neighborhood’s trips to be switched from vehicles to active modes, Central Sparks is well positioned to 
become one of the most enjoyable places for pedestrians and bicyclists in the region with focused 
improvements. Addressing issues identified along the top 10 corridors could greatly enhance the quality of 
life, health, and safety to create a more vibrant and well-connected Central Sparks neighborhood.  

Central Sparks 

ATTACHMENT



B

Appendix B: Com
m

unity 
Engagem

ent Sum
m

aries

ATTACHMENT



        
   

 
Pop-Up Information Event Summary 
RTC Neighborhood Network Plans 
Central Sparks Plan  
 
Pop-Up Event Date: February 22, 2025 
Location: Lighthouse Coffee, 325 Harbour Cove Dr. #121, Sparks, NV 
89434 

Team Members in Attendance:  RTC Planner Marquis Williams, RTC Planning 
Manager Graham Dollarhide, RTC Public Information Officer Josh MacEachern, Alta 
Planning + Design Planning Associate II Cole Peiffer, RTC Planner Shay League, and 
MJT Consulting Public Information Officer Lauren Ball 

Topic: RTC Neighborhood Network Plans – Central Sparks Plan  
 
Approximate number of attendees: 45 

Notifications: The community was notified of the pop-up event via RTC social media 
posts, an email blast to stakeholders, and a press release to inform local media.  

About the Project:  
The RTC is proposing improvements to help make walking and biking safer and more 
comfortable in 12 Reno/Sparks neighborhoods over the coming years, starting with 
plans to improve the Central Reno/MidTown neighborhood and the Central Sparks 
neighborhood. This pop-up focused on the Central Sparks neighborhood. The Central 
Sparks neighborhood is the diverse core of Sparks, approximately defined by Baring 
Boulevard to the north, the Reno-Tahoe International Airport to the south, Teglia’s 
Paradise Park to the west, and Vista Boulevard to the west. 

Pop-Up Event Summary: 
Public input and feedback about potential neighborhood improvements are critical to the 
project’s planning process. The project team created public information pop-up events 
as a way to have personal, one-on-one conversations with community members to 
provide them with project information and ask for feedback to address concerns in their 
neighborhood. The project team wanted to meet the community where they are for 
quick and meaningful conversations.  

ATTACHMENT



 

The project team selected the patio 
area of Lighthouse Coffee near the 
Sparks Marina as the pop-up 
information event location. The event 
was held on Saturday, February 22, 
2025, from 9 a.m. to noon, to coincide 
with the anticipated influx of customers 
to the local coffee shop on a Saturday 
morning, along with people who might 
be using the Sparks Marina for 
weekend outdoor recreation. The 
weather was anticipated to be warmer 
than usual for February, which also 
meant an increase in foot traffic near 
the coffee shop on the way to the Marina path.  

The pop-up event included one table with two large printed maps of the Central Sparks 
neighborhood, project flyers, and coloring sheets for children. Along with the map, there 
were post-its and markers available for people to leave comments. Additionally, 
understanding that not everyone can attend in-person events, all pop-up materials were 
also made available on the project landing page on the RTC’s website.  

People who came to the pop-up event and provided comments were offered a coupon 
for a complimentary large coffee, coffee cake, or cookie from Lighthouse Coffee as an 
incentive. While approximately 30 people took the coupon, only 15 coupons were 
redeemed.  

ATTACHMENT



Throughout the course of the three-hour pop-up event, approximately 45 people 
stopped by the information tables to talk with staff, or received a flyer with more 
information about the project.  

Of the people who stopped by the pop-up table to talk to the team, most had come to 
visit Lighthouse Coffee, or were heading to the Marina for recreation. A handful of 
people saw the event being advertised and came specifically to learn more about the 
project. 

The pop-up event was attended by Ward 1 Sparks City Councilmember Donald Abbott, 
Ward 3 Sparks City Councilmember Paul Anderson, and Sparks Citizens Advisory 
Committee Ward 1 member David Morlet. They rode bicycles to the pop-up event and 
provided personal insights and anecdotes from their constituents and committee 
members about areas in the Central Sparks neighborhood that needed improvements. 

One person who stopped by mentioned that lighting could be improved throughout the 
Central Sparks neighborhood to encourage more people to use alternate modes of 
travel.  

Another person mentioned they had wanted to ride their bike to the Marina to provide 
feedback at the pop-up event, but wasn’t able to find any nearby bike racks. They 
commented that there should be bike racks added to the Marina area.  

A couple of other people pointed out breaks in connections throughout the 
neighborhood, including from Baring to Oddie and the path along Sparks Boulevard.   

Another person suggested adding a bridge from the Lighthouse Coffee/Sparks Water 
Bar area to the other side of the Marina for a tourist attraction.  

Because it was a sunny February day, some passersby were visiting the Marina from 
other areas of Sparks and Reno, and had ideas for their own neighborhoods. Staff let 
them know that the region had been divided into 12 neighborhoods and that future plans 
would focus on other areas of our community.  
 
Overall, people expressed gratitude and excitement that the RTC was embarking on the 
Neighborhood Network Plans and many had ideas for the Central Sparks neighborhood 
and beyond. 

A full list of the written comments received are listed below and photos of the comments 
are included on the following pages.  

Comments Received: 

• Marina: Need bike racks at Marina 
• Along Lincoln Way to Victorian Ave: More lights 
• Sparks Blvd. bike path between Baring and Prater: Asphalt 
• Sparks Blvd.: Speeding cars 

ATTACHMENT



• Path along Sparks Blvd. too disjointed to be useful 
• Baring to Oddie connection missing 
• Sparks Blvd.: Street sweepers sweep dirt into bike lanes; bike lanes are not 

maintained 
• Area east of Pyramid/McCarran intersection: Lack of connectivity all around 
• Not many people park on 4th between Greenbrae + Prater 
• Nugget Ave.: Cars pulling out to see traffic on Victorian 
• Pinch point under McCarran bridge 
• Greg St.: Better bike connection to jobs 
• River path: This section feels safe in contrast to Reno 
• Sparks Blvd. near Greg St.: More paths/separation to ride with kids 
• Sparks Blvd.: Sweep the multi-use 
• Sparks Blvd.: People in paths 
• Sparks Blvd. between Lincoln and train tracks: Blind crossing 
• 9th St.: Make a bridge 
• Asphalt falling apart from Galletti to Rock on River Path 
• Sidewalk and bike path Rock Blvd. no safe crossing under bridge 
• MAKE RENO COOLER! 
• Neighborhood connections sound good 
• More trails, more parks 
• Sparks Blvd. near Express St.: incline not ADA 
• Sparks Blvd. near Express St.: ADA slopes 
• Near Van Meter Park: Parking at RAB  
• Neighborhood between Howard and Lincoln: Unsafe and no lights 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



 

ATTACHMENT



        
   

 
Pop-Up Information Event Summary 
RTC Neighborhood Network Plans 
Central Sparks Plan  
 
Pop-Up Event Date: Sunday, March 9, 2025 
Location: West Wind El Rancho Swap Meet, 555 El Rancho Drive, 
Sparks, NV 89431 

Team Members in Attendance:  RTC Planner Marquis Williams, RTC Planning 
Manager Graham Dollarhide, RTC Public Information Officer Josh MacEachern, Alta 
Planning + Design Planning Associate II Cole Peiffer, Alta Planning + Design Planner 
Sierra Rodriguez-Torres, and MJT Consulting Public Information Officer Lauren Ball 

Topic: RTC Neighborhood Network Plans – Central Sparks Plan  
 
Approximate number of attendees: 20 

Notifications: The community was notified of the pop-up event via RTC social media 
posts, an email blast to stakeholders, and a press release to inform local media.  

Media Coverage: Journalists from KTVN Channel 2 News and News 4 came to cover 
the event. They interviewed RTC Planner Marquis Williams and shot video of the project 
team at the pop-up event. A link to KTVN’s coverage is provided below: 
KTVN: RTC holds Neighborhood Network Plans pop-up booth 

About the Project:  
The RTC is proposing improvements to help make walking and biking safer and more 
comfortable in 12 Reno/Sparks neighborhoods over the coming years, starting with 
plans to improve the Central Reno/MidTown neighborhood and the Central Sparks 
neighborhood. This pop-up focused on the Central Sparks neighborhood. The Central 
Sparks neighborhood is the diverse core of Sparks, approximately defined by Baring 
Boulevard to the north, the Reno-Tahoe International Airport to the south, Teglia’s 
Paradise Park to the west, and Vista Boulevard to the west. 

Pop-Up Event Summary: 
Public input and feedback about potential neighborhood improvements are critical to the 
project’s planning process. The project team created public information pop-up events 
as a way to have personal, one-on-one conversations with community members to 

ATTACHMENT

https://www.2news.com/video/rtc-holds-neighborhood-network-plan-pop-up-booth/video_ed306e24-dd7f-52fe-bda8-802a7dc2fa26.html


provide them with project information and ask for feedback to address concerns in their 
neighborhood. The project team wanted to meet the community where they are for 
quick and meaningful conversations.  

 

The project team selected the West 
Wind El Rancho Swap Meet as the 
pop-up information event location. The 
event was held on Sunday, March 9, 
2025, from 9 a.m. to noon, to coincide 
with the anticipated influx of shoppers 
to the swap meet on a Sunday 
morning. The swap meet is held on 
Saturdays, as well, but Sundays are 
the busiest days. The event organizer 
mentioned that this swap meet event 
was one of their busiest so far this 
season, due to the unseasonably warm 
weather.  

The pop-up event included one table with a large printed map of the Central Sparks 
neighborhood, project flyers, and coloring sheets for children. Along with the map, there 

ATTACHMENT



were post-its and markers available for people to leave comments. Additionally, 
understanding that not everyone can attend in-person events, all pop-up materials were 
also made available on the project landing page on the RTC’s website.  

Throughout the course of the three-hour pop-up event, approximately 20 people 
stopped by the information tables to talk with staff, or received a flyer with more 
information about the project.  

Of the people who stopped by the pop-up table to talk to the team, all had come to shop 
at the swap meet event, but saw the event table and stopped by to provide feedback.  

One person who came by the booth identified himself as a local cab driver. He provided 
valuable insights about safety throughout the corridor and mentioned it might be a good 
idea to visit Reno Sparks Cab at shift change to talk to drivers who know the area well. 

Another person who stopped by identified herself as a swap meet vendor and an avid 
local bicyclist. She was excited about the potential improvements and mentioned she 
really enjoyed the new bicycle improvements along Oddie Boulevard. She said that she 
would like to see more improvements in Central Sparks like the ones that were made as 
part of the RTC’s Oddie Wells Project.  

Another person arrived on bike. He told staff that on Greenbrae, parking limits visibility 
and makes it unsafe to bike between Rock and McCarran. He said he feels safer on 
York which also has parking.  

Several people mentioned the need for increased lighting, particularly in older areas of 
Central Sparks, along with the need for better buffers between vehicles and bicyclists.  

Some passersby were visiting the swap meet from other areas of Sparks and Reno, and 
had ideas for their own neighborhoods. Staff let them know that the region had been 
divided into 12 neighborhoods and that future plans would focus on other areas of our 
community.  
 
Overall, people were excited to learn about the RTC’s Neighborhood Network Plans and 
thought it was great that the RTC was focusing on neighborhood-level safety 
improvements for bicyclists and pedestrians.  

A full list of the written comments received are listed below and photos of the comments 
are included on the following pages.  

Comments Received: 

• T intersections 3-way stops should have stop signs 
• Improve biking on 4th Street 
• More improvements like on Oddie 
• Greenbrae – parking limits visibility, makes it unsafe to bike Rock- McCarran. 

Feel safer on York, which has parking also 

ATTACHMENT



• Increased speeds north of Greenbrae on Pyramid Way and Rock 
•  Sidewalk gaps on N. McCarran near Baring curve and near El Rancho 

ATTACHMENT



 

 

ATTACHMENT



 

ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



ATTACHMENT



 

ATTACHMENT



 
To:  RTC/Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County: Marquis Williams, Vanessa 

Lacer, Graham Dollarhide, and Josh MacEachern  

From:  Cole Peiffer and Sierra Rodriguez, Alta Planning + Design 

Date:  January 29, 2025 

Re:  Neighborhood Network Plan – Phase 1 Community Workshop  

Community Workshop #1 – Sparks High School 
 
Workshop Summary 
 
The RTC hosted a community 
engagement workshop for the Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan (NNP). The 
event took place at Sparks High School (820 15th St) from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. and was 
attended by 6 participants. The workshop provided an opportunity for residents to share 
their input and concerns related to walking, biking, and accessing transit in the 
neighborhood. The following summarizes the event and key takeaways: 

Event Description: 

Cole Peiffer, from Alta Planning + 
Design, provided a brief presentation 
outlining the Neighborhood Network 
Planning process and goals, which is 
part of the RTC’s broader effort to 
improve active transportation options 
across the Reno/Sparks area. The 
Central Sparks neighborhood is the 
second focus area of this effort, with 
other neighborhoods to follow.  

 

 

 

Date Time Attendees 
Wednesday, January 29th, 2025 5:00-7:00 p.m. 6 

ATTACHMENT



 

After the presentation, participants were invited 
to engage in the following activities:  

• Interactive Map Exercise: Attendees 
used large, detailed maps of the 
neighborhood to identify areas of 
concern related to walking, biking, and 
transit access. They noted locations of 
concern by providing feedback directly 
on maps, highlighting missing 
infrastructure, and other challenges. 

• Feedback Collection: In addition to the 
map exercise, participants were 
encouraged to provide comments 
through an interactive online map, available via a QR code they could scan on the 
flyer given out at the event. 

• Language Support: To ensure effective outreach and communication with Spanish-
speaking attendees, Ivet Contreras and Sierra Rodriguez-Torres from Alta Planning + 
Design served as translators for the workshop.  

Key Takeaways: 

Participants shared valuable feedback regarding their experiences and challenges when 
walking and biking in the Central Sparks area. Below are some of the key themes and 
concerns that emerged from the workshop and map comments:  

• Desire for More Paths: Many participants 
expressed a strong preference for 
additional walking and biking paths. They 
emphasized the comfort and 
convenience of uninterrupted routes that 
avoid frequent stops.   

• Need for Shade Structures: Feedback 
highlighted the demand for more shaded 
areas on paths like the Truckee River and 
Veterans path to enhance comfort during 
hot weather.   

ATTACHMENT



• Need for Improved Wayfinding:                                  
Participants noted the need for 
improved wayfinding, especially near 
parks or multi-use paths. Clear signage 
and navigation aids were identified as 
essential for helping users find their 
way, particularly when they are taking a 
new route.  

• Bike Lane and Sidewalk Gaps: Missing bike lanes and sidewalks were frequently 
mentioned as major issues. For example, attendees pointed out the bike lane on El 
Rancho Dr abruptly ends at G St if traveling southbound towards Prater Wy. This 
forces cyclists to use the sidewalk which becomes gravel between the I-80 bridges.  

• Difficulties at Intersections: Attendees reported that navigating intersections with 
abrupt infrastructure changes can be confusing, especially at locations like Baring 
Blvd and Vista Blvd. Improved signage and clearer transitions for cyclists and 
pedestrians were suggested. 

• Enhanced Bike Connectivity: Participants expressed interest in improving bike 
connections (North-South and East-West) to key destinations, such as parks, 
schools, and commercial centers. 

• Traffic Speed and Safety Concerns: High traffic speeds were identified as a safety 
concern, particularly on roads like McCarran Blvd, Sparks Blvd and Vista Blvd. 
Participants highlighted the need for traffic calming measures to improve safety and 
comfort levels for pedestrians and cyclists. 

Next Steps: 

The feedback from this workshop will be used to inform the development of the 
Neighborhood Network Plan for Central Sparks, focusing on the identification of key safety 
improvements, infrastructure gaps, and opportunities for enhanced active transportation 
options. The RTC will continue to gather public input through additional pop-up meetings in 
February and through the interactive online map. 

ATTACHMENT



C

Appendix C: W
alk Audit 

Findings

ATTACHMENT



Participants observed and suggested the following:
• Prater Wy has narrow sidewalks and lacks a sidewalk bu�er.
• Lighting levels along 4th St are good.
• 4th Street identi�ed as bike corridor in Sparks Comprehensive Plan and RTC is planning a corridor study 

along 4th.
• Planned RTC project on Prater Way from Pyramid Way to Stanford Way will include improvement for 

people walking and biking.

ATTACHMENT



Participants observed and suggested the following:
• Sidewalks are missing on north / west side of Greg St. 
• No sidewalk present on 21st St.
• Poor connection to Rock park and no clear connection to the Truckee River Path.
• Crosswalk on south side of intersection lacks sidewalks and curb cuts at either end.
• Lighting levels  low.

Lorem ipsum

ATTACHMENT



Participants observed and suggested the following:
• Site distance issue with curve along Rock Blvd paired with high vehicle seeds makes crossing at Rock 

Blvd and Commerce St feel unsafe.  This crossing has a RRFB planned in the future. 
• No crossing present across 15th St at intersection.
• High number of students and seniors who walk / bike due to proximity of senior apartments and 

Sparks High School.
• Sidewalk is too narrow for bicyclists with exisiting utility poles. 

ATTACHMENT



Participants observed and suggested the following:
• Sidewalks are missing on the majority of Greg St. 
• No sidewalk present on Linda Wy leaving pedestrians to walk in streets and parking lots.
• Lacks clear connection to the Truckee River Path.
• High transit riderships could be better served with bike / ped facilities.
• Industrial area is the largest employment center in the region (40,000+ jobs).

ATTACHMENT



Participants observed and suggested the following:
• High Speeds.
• RTC Project to add sidewalks to Wedekind.
• McCarran is a barrier for Hug High School students.
• Bike lane on McCarran is uncomfortable.
• Sidewalks are missing on Sullivan south of McCarran Blvd and on south west side of McCarran Blvd.

ATTACHMENT



Participants observed and suggested the following:
• Good connection to Nichols Blvd Cycle Track.
• Lack of north / south connection to Marina from residential neighborhoods.
• Connects with RTC Route 21.
• Vehicles were observed not yielding to pedestrians in the crosswalk.
• Signi�cant level of activity generated by Marina.

ATTACHMENT



Appendix D
: 

Recom
m

endation Scenarios

D

ATTACHMENT



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Marquis Williams, Project Manager, RTC Washoe 

Cole Peiffer, Project Manager, Alta Planning + Design 

May 2, 2025 

Recommendation Scenario Development and Comparison – Central Sparks 

Introduction 
This document outlines the process for developing recommendation scenarios for the Central Sparks neighborhood 
area for the RTC Washoe Neighborhood Network Plan program. This memo highlights the approach used and facilities 
considered while developing recommendations, describes each of the three scenarios, and provides a comparison 
between all three for RTC’s consideration and selection of a preferred alternative.  

Recommendation Development Approach 

Addressing Identified Needs 
Alta analyzed multiple datasets from the recent Active Transportation Plan (ATP) in combination with public input to 
identify the key barriers to active transportation throughout the neighborhood. Based on this finding, the project 
team focused on addressing identified needs whenever possible through this plan. The project team first focused on 
addressing the largest barriers on larger roadways; however, many of these roadways were not strong candidates for 
quick-build projects due to current traffic volumes, significant levels of driveways, and complex operational 
challenges that go beyond the scope of quick-build projects (e.g., Rock Blvd under I-80). In these instances, the 
project team identified alternate routes that are better quick-build candidates while still enhancing the network.  

Some larger roadways identified as strong candidates for quick-build improvements include roadways that may be 
reconfigured within the existing roadway space to provide more comfortable connections for people walking and 
biking while maintaining vehicle connectivity and access.1 These include roadways such as McCarran Blvd, Sullivan 
Lane, and Greg Street. The project team then reviewed the roadway network to create a denser network within the 
neighborhood by creating “neighborhood byways.” These facilities (see more detailed description below) provide a 
low-stress traffic-calmed connection on residential type streets while maintaining on-street parking. These facilities 
are intended to provide connections to destinations within the neighborhood such as schools, parks, hospitals, and 
others. Furthermore, the project team focused on creating scenarios that generally fit within the RTC’s estimated 
budget for quick-build improvements over the next five years and provided prioritization input. It is important to note 
that proposed scenarios may be further refined based on budget considerations and available funding streams.  

1 It is important to note that quick-build improvements can vary significantly based on the materials used, total time installed, and 
maintenance needs. More detail on the assumed installation type for each facility is included below in the Facilities section.  

ATTACHMENT



Scenario Themes 
Each scenario follows a general theme based on identified needs from public comments and existing conditions 
analysis; however, some projects are included in multiple scenarios based on their integral nature creating 
connections within the Central Sparks neighborhood or to adjacent neighborhoods (e.g., Wedekind Road and Goldy 
Way).  

Facilities 
The facility types included in the recommendation development process are primarily quick-build style improvements 
that can be implemented relatively quickly with minimal costs as they do not require moving curb lines or traffic 
signals. Facilities considered during the development of recommendations are categorized below as corridor 
improvements or intersection/midblock crossing improvements. 

Corridor Improvements 
Improvements along the corridor help to expand the bicycling 
network and create more traffic-calmed streets within the 
neighborhood. The facility types include the following: 

1. Neighborhood Byway – Low-speed and low-stress
connections that are traffic calmed using speed humps
and curb extensions. These traffic-calming measures
help maintain low speeds and volumes of vehicles to
create a scenario where people biking can comfortably
share space with people driving. This improvement
assumes the application of traffic calming through
speed humps, speed cushions, and curb extensions.

2. Bike Lane – Bike lanes provide dedicated space for
bicycle travel adjacent to vehicle traffic, which enables
people biking to ride at their preferred speed. This
facility is separated from vehicle traffic by a painted
lane line or buffer. Quick-build bike lanes look similar
to standard bike lanes.

3. Buffered Bike Lane – This enhanced bike lane provides
increased separation between people biking and people
driving through a striped buffer, which creates a more
comfortable environment for people biking. Quick-build
buffered bike lanes look similar to standard buffered bike
lanes.

4. Protected Bike Lane – The most comfortable on-street
facility type for people biking, this facility provides a physical

Figure 1. Neighborhood Byway Example 

Figure 2. Bike Lane Example 

Figure 3. Buffered Bike Lane Example 

ATTACHMENT



barrier between people walking and people driving with concrete parking stops, planters, parking, or other 
physical barriers. In a quick-build setting, barrier treatments are not intended to be permanent and may vary 
significantly based on costs, maintenance needs, and planned installation timing. For this effort, the project 
team assumed a painted buffer with flex-posts for protection.   

5. Change to Two-Way – This recommendation type does not
include providing a bicycle facility but instead is focused on
the overall transportation network operations. This
recommendation focuses on Kirman Avenue in Scenario 1
and considers transitioning Kirman Avenue to two-way
operations in conjunction with the improvement on Locust
Street.

Intersection/Midblock Crossing Improvements 
Intersections and midblock crossing locations are key areas for 
improvements to reduce vehicle speeds where people walking and 
biking interact with people driving. These improvements are focused 
along or near recommended corridor improvements. The 
improvements considered at intersections and midblock crossings 
include the following: 

1. Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon (PHB) – This pedestrian-activated
flasher improves crossings at unsignalized intersections or
midblock crossings on major streets. PHBs include a signal
head with two red lenses over a single yellow lens.

2. Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) – This pedestrian-
activated flasher improves crossings at unsignalized
intersections or midblock crossings on single or multi-lane
roadways. This includes flashing amber lights which alert
drivers to the person crossing. RRFBs are typically installed
on roadways up to 35 mph.

3. High-Visibility Crosswalks – This crosswalk type includes
thick white bars to increase driver awareness to the crossing. This 
crosswalk design has been shown to increase driver awareness 
compared to the standard crosswalk design with two parallel white 
lines on the outside of the crosswalk.  

Figure 4. Protect Bike Lane Example 

Figure 5. Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon (PHB) Example 

Figure 6. Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) 

Figure 7. High Visibility Crosswalk Example 

ATTACHMENT



4. Curb Extensions – This improvement reduces the total crossing
distance for people walking, reduces speed of turning vehicles and
increases pedestrian visibility at the crosswalk.

5. Raised Crosswalks – This improvement brings the crosswalk up to
sidewalk level to increase pedestrian visibility and reduce vehicle
speeds as they travel over the raised crosswalk. These are typically
installed on lower-volume/lower-speed roadways.

6. Leading Pedestrian Interval (LPI) – This provides people walking with
a 3- to 7-second head start when crossing at a signalized intersection
by showing the walk symbol while people driving have a red light.
This helps make pedestrians more visible at intersections and
improves pedestrian safety.

7. Bicycle Wayfinding – Signage to indicate distance and direction to
key destinations along a bike corridor, or within the network to help
bicyclists stay on the most comfortable streets. This improvement
was indicated in transition areas where riders may benefit from
directional signage.

8. Bicycle Cut-Through – This is a type of modal filtering which modifies
the existing median to provide bicyclists with a small opening to
enable them to continue straight. This creates a more direct
network for people biking with minimal impact to the overall
roadway.

9. Bicycle Jug Handle – This improvement provides a turn pocket for
people biking, which allows them to stay out of the bike lane while
waiting for a gap in traffic to cross the street.

10. Bike Box – An area at the front of a traffic lane at signalized
intersections where people biking can wait ahead of vehicles to
make left turns more easily. This makes bicyclists more visible,
reduces delays for bicyclists, and helps keep vehicles from
encroaching into crosswalks.

Figure 8. Quick-Build Curb Extensions Example 

Figure 9. Quick-Build Raised Crosswalk Example 

Figure 11. Leading Pedestrian Interval Example 

Figure 10. Bike Cut Through Example 

ATTACHMENT



11. Two-Staged Turn Box – These roadway markings help bicyclists
make left turns at complex intersections without merging with
vehicle traffic and allow bicyclists to wait for a green light ahead
of vehicles in order to be more visible.

12. Crossbikes (Bike Lane Extension Markings) – These markings help
guide people biking through the intersection and help indicate
that a bikeway crossing is present to increase visibility.

13. Pedestrian Median Refuge – A dedicated space for pedestrians to
wait when crossing multi-lane roadways this dedicated space
helps improve safety for people crossing at intersections.

Figure 12. Bicycle Jug Handle Example 

Figure 14. Bike Box Example 

Figure 16. Pedestrian Median Refuge Island Example 

Figure 15. Two-Staged Turn Box Example

Figure 13. Crossbike Example 

ATTACHMENT



Recommendation Scenarios 
This section highlights the recommendation scenarios for the Central Sparks neighborhood. Each scenario description 
includes an overview of the scenario theme, a project table with a rationale for each project, and a table showing all 
improvements included in the scenario by recommended priority level. It is important to note that the differentiation 
between ‘High’ and ‘Low’ priority includes considerations of overall needs as well as overall implementation 
complexity. Projects which may require greater levels of analysis to inform design were generally included within the 
‘Low’ priority level in order to account for additional time needs related to analysis.  

Projects are mapped by priority level and facility type for each scenario following the corresponding description and 
data. Additionally, all scenario recommendations build off the planned RTC projects in the next ten years of the 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) that will include a multimodal element as shown in each scenario map. 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 1  

Theme: Exterior Connections 
Description: Scenario 1 focuses on creating increased connections to adjacent neighborhoods including the Central 
Reno/Midtown and Downtown/UNR neighborhoods. Public comments and our analysis highlighted the need for 
better connectivity across major barriers including the Truckee River and Interstate-580. The connections to the 
industrial area of Sparks are in direct response to public comments which highlighted a need to connect workers with 
the significant number of jobs in the area. This scenario considers extending improvements beyond the border of the 
neighborhood in order to connect with potential recommendations from the Central Reno/Midtown Neighborhood 
Plan. This scenario also targets improvements within some of the areas with the lowest income levels and access to a 
vehicle. This scenario includes over 20 miles of corridor improvements with identified improvements at 10 key 
intersections with a total planning level estimate of $4.99 million (Table 1).  

Table 1. Scenario 1 Recommendations 

Scenario 1 Recommendations 

Corridor 
Improvement Type 

Miles Cost 
High-

Priority 
Low-

Priority Total High-Priority Low-Priority Total 
Bike Lanes 0.6 1.9 3.6  $    109,984  $     512,765  $       622,749 
Bike Route 0.6 0.0 0.6  $      31,224  $     -   $     31,224 
Buffered Bike Lanes 3.7 5.3 7.9  $    960,736  $    1,288,325  $   2,249,061 
Neighborhood Byway 4.7 3.7 8.4  $   1,056,467  $     816,967  $   1,873,435 
Sub-Total 9.6 10.9 20.5  $   2,158,411  $    2,618,058  $   4,776,468 

Intersection 
Improvement Type 

Number Cost 
High-

Priority 
Low-

Priority  Total High-Priority Low-Priority  Total 
High Visibility 
Crosswalks 11 6 17  $      66,000  $   36,000  $   102,000 
Two Staged Turn 
Boxes 6 3 9  $     9,000  $     4,500  $     13,500 
Curb Extensions 2 6 8  $      15,358  $   46,074  $     61,432 
Bike Boxes 3 3 6  $      15,000  $   15,000  $     30,000 
LPI 2 0 2  $      11,000  $     -   $     11,000 
Sub-Total 24 18 42  $    116,358  $     101,574  $   217,932 
Total  $   2,274,769  $    2,719,632  $   4,994,400 

Corridor and intersection improvements are shown in Figure 1. It’s important to note that intersection improvements 
have been consolidated on the map legend for simplicity. Intersection improvements have been provided for internal 
RTC review through the interactive map.  

ATTACHMENT



Figure 17. Scenario 1 Recommendations 

ATTACHMENT



Project Rationale 
This section describes the project location, extent, facility type, rationale, and individual costs for including each 
identified corridor improvement in Scenario 1 in Table 2. 

Table 2. Scenario 1 Project Descriptions and Rationale 

Scenario 1 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
11th Street Prospect 

Ave to York 
Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 0.44 

North/South connection between Oddie 
Blvd and improvements on York Way.   $          98,045  High 

12th Street Oddie Blvd 
to Victorian 
Plaza Circle 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.62 

North/South connection between Oddie 
Blvd and Victorian Square that benefits 
from vehicle diverter at Victorian Plaza 
Circle. A portion of this roadway is 
identified as a Minor Fire Response Route. 

 $        138,242  High 

12th Street Oddie Blvd 
to Prospect 
Avenue 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.08 

Short connection between Oddie Blvd and 
Prospect Ave which connect 
recommended improvements on York Way 
with the Oddie Blvd Cycle Track.  

 $          18,724  High 

18th Street Wedekind 
Street to 
York Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.15 

This short north/south connection 
between Wedekind St and York Way 
allows the east/west connection to an 
adjacent neighborhood to continue. This 
road is designated as a Minor Fire 
Response Route.  

 $          33,471  High 

21st Street Glendale 
Ave to 
Hymer 
Avenue 

Bike Lanes 

0.25 

This alternative to Rock Blvd allows 
bicyclists to travel north/south in a bike 
lane. This reconfiguration would require 
the removal of parking on one side.  

 $          46,127  High 

21st Street Greg Street 
to Glendale 
Avenue 

Bike Lanes 

0.35 

This connection provides an alternative for 
north/south travel other than Rock Blvd. 
Parking is currently prohibited on this road 
which presents a strong opportunity for a 
quick build facility.  

 $          63,857  High 

G Street El Rancho 
Drive to 
12th Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.96 

This improvement builds off the planned 
RTC improvements on 9th Street which 
include planned bike lanes extending 
further to the west. This roadway would be 
an integral piece of a long east/west 
connection between Central Sparks and 
Reno.  

 $        215,368  High 

Greg Street Mill Street 
to Veterans 
Parkway 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

3.68 

Traffic has been falling on Greg since 2007 
and currently ranged from 6,300 - 8,500 in 
2023 per NDOT. This makes the roadway a 
potential candidate for a reallocation of 
space. Additional consideration would be 
required based on the significant level of 
truck traffic along this route. This roadway 
segment is designated as a Major Fire 
Response Route.  

 $        960,736  High 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 1 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
Hymer Ave Rock Blvd 

to 21st St 
Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.28 

Include signage at Rock Blvd noting the 
end of the Bike Route. Most people will 
end up riding on the sidewalk on Rock Blvd 
in practice.  

 $          62,497  High 

Linda Way Greg Street 
to Coney 
Island Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.17 

This short connection to between 
recommended improvements on Greg 
Street would help formalize the 
connection to the Trucke River Shared Use 
path, a key link to neighborhoods to the 
west and south (via the Veterans Parkway 
Shared use Path).  

 $          38,128  High 

Prospect 
Avenue 

12th Street 
to 11th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.07 

This is a small connection to support the 
north/south link within the neighborhood 
on 11th St and 12th St that would connect 
York Way, Oddie Blvd, G St/F St, and 
Victorian Square.  

 $          16,522  High 

Victorian 
Avenue 

Pyramid 
Highway to 
16th Street 

Bike Route 

0.59 

The addition of bicycle markings and 
signage along this already slow route 
would help formalize this popular bicycle 
connection and help link the Victorian 
Avenue cycle track with the bike lanes 
west of 16th Street.  

 $          31,224  High 

Wedekind 
Road 

18th Street 
to Silverada 
Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.92 

This link to the Downtown Reno 
neighborhood helps connect with York 
Way (via 18th St) and the shared lane 
facilities on Silverada Blvd. This road is 
designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route.  

 $        206,145  High 

York Way 4th Street 
to 18th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

1.03 

This segment of York Way helps create an 
east/west connection that links the 
Downtown Reno neighborhood all the way 
to the Sparks Blvd Shared Use path (via 
Howard Drive). This road is designated as a 
Major Fire Response Route.  

 $        229,325  High 

El Rancho 
Drive 

9th Street 
to I-80 

Bike Lanes 

0.35 

Based on operational analysis of 
intersections, space may be available to 
continue bike lanes north / south 
connecting Kietzke Lane with El Rancho 
Drive which would support connections to 
the neighborhood to the south across the 
Truckee River. There is a significant 
pinchpoint for northbound bicyclists from 
Kietzke Lane which would impact the 
overall comfort of this connection.  

 $          64,684  Low 

El Rancho 
Drive 

9th Street 
to 
McCarran 
Blvd 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

1.29 

The current ADT on this section of 
roadway ranged between 6,600 - 13,400 in 
2023 based on NDOT data. Given this level 
of traffic and the existing capacity, it may 
be feasible to repurpose a vehicle travel 
lane to add in a buffer to the existing bike 
lanes. 

 $        336,635  Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 1 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
F Street 12th Street 

to 
McCarran 
Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

1.23 

Building off the comfortable crossing of 
Pyramid Highway, F Street presents a good 
opportunity to extend an east/west 
connection from the existing bike lanes 
east of McCarran Blvd (linking with Sparks 
Legends/Sparks Marina) to the 
recommended improvements on 12th 
Street and then continuing west on G 
Street to the neighborhood to the west.  

 $        275,473  Low 

Glendale 
Avenue 

Kietzke 
Lane to 
McCarran 
Blvd 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

2.65 

Traffic volumes on this roadway ranged 
between 10,500 and 13,100 in 2023 per 
NDOT. Given this level of traffic and the 
existing capacity, this roadway is a 
candidate for a reallocation of roadway 
space to accommodate people biking with 
buffered bike lanes (the buffer may 
accommodate sections with intermittent 
protection elements). This east/west 
connection between Central Reno and 
Central Sparks would help connect with 
the significant number of jobs in the 
industrial area. Additionally, extending this 
improvement beyond the neighborhood 
boundaries would allow for an opportunity 
to connect with improvements from the 
Central Reno / Midtown NNP.  

 $        692,711  Low 

Glendale 
Avenue 

McCarran 
Blvd to 
Meredith 
Way 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

1.06 

Repurposing the parking lane on this street 
would accommodate a buffered bike lane 
to continue the east/west connection 
through the Industrial Area. The existing 
concrete curb extensions at the mid-block 
crossing approximately 370' to the west of 
the railroad crossing would need to be 
removed as well.  

 $        275,870  Low 

Goldy Way Baring 
Boulevard 
to Spanish 
Springs 
Road 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

0.28 

This segment of Goldy Way could support 
the addition of a wide buffer (up to 6.5' in 
each direction) to the existing bike lanes.   $          73,110  Low 

Goldy Way Howard 
Drive to 
Baring 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.22 

This connection would allow bicyclists to 
cross Barring Blvd and would help connect 
recommended improvements on York Way 
with the Sparks Blvd shared use path via 
Howard Drive. Additionally, this would 
support residents from parts of the 
neighborhood north of Barring to access 
the Sparks Marina. This helps continue a 
key connection within the neighborhood. 
This road is designated as a Major Fire 
Response Route.  

 $          49,177  Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 1 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
Greg Street I80 to 

Veterans 
Pkwy 

Bike Lanes 

0.83 

This connection would extend the planned 
improvements on Vista Blvd north of I-80 
with the Veterans Parkway Shared Use 
Path and the recommended improvements 
to the west. There is available space 
through the Sparks Blvd / Veterans 
Parkway intersection however, the route 
would require additional analysis based on 
the significant level of truck traffic. 
Additionally, this route is both a trucking 
route and a designated Major Fire 
Response Route.  

 $        152,753  Low 

Howard 
Drive 

Sparks Blvd 
to Goldy 
Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.11 

This connection would help to formalize 
the connection to the Sparks Blvd Shared 
Use Path and extend the east/west 
connection from York Way. This roadway is 
identified as a Minor Fire Response Route.  

 $          24,745  Low 

I Street Pyramid 
Highway to 
Prater Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.90 

This route would help to connect the 
improvements on Oddie Blvd with the 
planned improvements on Prater Way, 
addressing an existing gap as there is no 
current bicycle facility connecting to the 
eastern terminus of the Oddie Blvd cycle 
track. This roadway is a Minor Fire 
Response Route.  

 $        201,645  Low 

Meredith 
Way / 
Franklin 
Avenue 

Glendale 
Ave to Spice 
Island Drive 

Bike Lanes 

0.73 

This connection would help connect the 
recommended improvements on Glendale 
Avenue with the Truckee River Shared Use 
Path and the existing bike lanes on Space 
Island Drive. This reconfiguration would 
require the removal of parking.  

 $        133,633  Low 

York Way Goldy Way 
to 4th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

1.19 

This segment helps to link residents on the 
east side of McCarran Blvd with the 
Downtown Reno neighborhood via 18th St 
/ Wedekind Rd. This roadway is designated 
as a Major Fire Response Route.  

 $        265,928  Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 2  

Theme: Access to Schools and Parks 
Description: This scenario targets schools and parks as the key destinations for increased access and connectivity. 
Based on this focus, the recommended improvements are located throughout the neighborhood and provide more 
focused enhancements to the existing network while making targeted improvements to create a denser and more 
comfortable network with connections to the majority of schools and parks in the neighborhood. This scenario 
includes a total of 17.4 miles of corridor improvements as well as improvements at 20 specific intersections for an 
estimated cost of $4.99 million (Table 3).  

Table 3. Scenario 2 Recommendations 

Scenario 2 Recommendations 

Corridor 
Improvement Type 

Miles Cost 
High-

Priority 
Low-

Priority Total High-Priority Low-Priority Total 
Bike Route 0.0 0.6 0.6 $      - $           31,224 $          31,224 

Buffered Bike Lanes 1.2 0.3 1.5 $               316,935 $           82,086 $       399,021 

Neighborhood Byway 6.1 7.1 13.1 $            1,358,633 $            1,705,118 $    3,063,751 

Protected Bike Lanes 0.8 0.7 1.4 $                482,128 $                415,126 $       897,255 
Wayfinding 
Connection 0.0 0.7 0.7 $    -    $             3,720 $            3,720 

Sub-Total 8.0 9.4 17.4 $            2,157,696 $            2,237,275 $    4,394,971 

Intersection 
Improvement Type 

Number Cost 
High-

Priority 
Low-

Priority  Total High-Priority Low-Priority  Total 
Curb Extensions 10 20 10  $   76,790  $     153,580  $   230,370 
High Visibility 
Crosswalks 4 8 4  $   24,000  $   48,000  $   72,000 
Two Staged Turn 
Boxes 4 6 4  $     6,000  $     9,000  $   15,000 
Bike Boxes 1 4 1  $     5,000  $   20,000  $   25,000 
LPI 2 1 2  $   11,000  $     5,500  $   16,500 
RRFB 2 1 2  $     180,000  $    -  $    180,000 
Wayfinding 0 1 0  $   -    $   35,000  $   35,000 
Raised Crosswalk 0 1 0  $   -    $   23,000  $   23,000 
Sub-Total 23 42 65  $    116,358  $     101,574  $   217,932 
Total  $   2,274,769  $    2,719,632  $   4,994,400 

Corridor and intersection improvements are shown in Figure 2. It’s important to note that intersection improvements 
have been consolidated on the map legend for simplicity. Intersection improvements have been provided for internal 
RTC review through the interactive map. 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 18. Scenario 2 Recommendations

ATTACHMENT



Project Rationale 
This section describes the project location, extent, facility type, rationale, and individual costs for including each 
identified corridor improvement in Scenario 2 in Table 4. 

Table 4. Scenario 2 Project Descriptions and Rationale 

Scenario 2 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
18th Street Wedekind 

Street to York 
Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.15 

This short north/south connection 
between Wedekind St and York Way 
helps enhance connectivity to Risley 
Elementary School, Maxwell 
Elementary School, and Sparks 
Middle School.  This road is 
designated as a Minor Fire Response 
Route.  

 $          33,471  High 

F Street 12th Street to 
McCarran Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

1.23 

Building off the comfortable crossing 
of Pyramid Highway, F Street 
presents a good opportunity to 
extend an east/west connection from 
the existing bike lanes east of 
McCarran Blvd (linking with Sparks 
Legends/Sparks Marina) with 
improvements in front of Lincoln 
Park Elementary School and within 
close proximity to Dilworth Middle 
School and Paulakidas Park.  

 $        275,473  High 

G Street El Rancho 
Drive to 12th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.96 

This improvement builds off the 
planned RTC improvements on 9th 
Street which include planned bike 
lanes extending further to the west. 
This roadway would make 
improvements within close proximity 
to Sparks High School, Mitchell 
Elementary School, Kate Smith 
Elementary School, and Deer Park.  

 $        215,368  High 

Howard 
Drive 

Goldy Way to 
O'Callaghan 
Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.79 

This connection links the Sparks Blvd 
Path, recommended improvments on 
York Way (via Goldy Way), and the 
recommended improvements on 
O'Callahan Drive which extend east 
through to Vista Blvd. This roadway is 
designated as a Minor Fire Response 
Route.  

 $        176,754  High 

Howard 
Drive 

Sparks Blvd to 
Goldy Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.11 

This connection would help to 
formalize the connection to the 
Sparks Blvd Shared Use Path and 
extend the east/west connection 
from York Way. This roadway is 
identified as a Minor Fire Response 
Route.  

 $          24,745  High 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 2 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
Howard 
Drive 

O'Callaghan 
Drive to 
Nichols Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.74 

The addition of traffic calming 
elements along this low-speed 
roadway would help to formalize the 
popular connection between 
residents areas in the north of the 
neighborhood with the Sparks 
Marina and Sparks Legends. This 
roadway is designated as a Minor 
Fire Response Route.  

 $        165,444  High 

Pete's Way Prater Way to 
Primo Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.04 

This short connection to Prater Way 
helps connect with the 
recommended improvements on 
Primo Way and thus the 
improvements in front of Moss 
Elementary School.  

 $            8,811  High 

Rock Blvd McCarran Blvd 
to Oddie Blvd 

Protected 
Bike Lanes 

0.76 

This segment has two lanes in each 
direction with left turn pockets and 
an ADT of 6,800 (NDOT 2023). Based 
on this, the segment may be 
reconfigured to include a protected 
bike lane in the exterior vehicle lanes 
in either direction. This would link 
the improvements on Oddie Blvd 
with York Way and McCarran Blvd 
while also reducing crossing 
distances for pedestrians including in 
front of Maxwell Elementary School.  

 $        482,128  High 

Sullivan Ln Prater Way to 
Wedekind Rd 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

1.21 

This segment has relatively low 
traffic volumes (2,350 - 6,150 - NDOT 
2023) and a speed limit of 25 mph 
with a total of five lanes north of 
Oddie Blvd. This concept would reuse 
excess capacity to provide buffered 
bike lanes.  

 $        315,810  High 

Sullivan Ln Prater Way to 
Victorian 
Avenue 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.10 

This would enhance the short 
connection on a low-speed and low-
volume road between two existing 
bicycle facilities.  

 $          23,097  High 

Wedekind 
Road 

18th Street to 
Silverada Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.92 

This route connects with Oppio Park 
and connects to Cannan Elementary 
and Sparks Middle School (via 18th 
Street). Additionally, this route helps 
connect with York Way (via 18th St) 
and the shared lane facilities on 
Silverada Blvd. This road is 
designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route.  

 $        206,145  High 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 2 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
York Way 4th Street to 

18th Street 
Neighborhood 
Byway 

1.03 

This segment of York Way helps 
create an east/west connection that 
links Sparks Middle School and 
Maxwell Elementary with areas to 
the east and all the way to the Sparks 
Blvd Shared Use path (via Howard 
Drive). This road is designated as a 
Major Fire Response Route.  

 $        229,325  High 

11th Street Prospect Ave 
to York Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 0.44 

North/South connection between 
Oddie Blvd and improvements on 
York Way.  

 $          98,045  Low 

12th Street Oddie Blvd to 
Victorian Plaza 
Circle 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.62 

North/South connection between 
Oddie Blvd and Victorian Square that 
benefits from vehicle diverter at 
Victorian Plaza Circle. This would 
create a low-speed connection to 
Sparks High School, Mitchell 
Elementary School, and Ardmore 
Park. A portion of this roadway is 
identified as a Minor Fire Response 
Route.  

 $        138,242  Low 

12th Street Oddie Blvd to 
Prospect Ave 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.08 

Short connection between Oddie 
Blvd and Prospect Ave which connect 
the recommended improvements on 
York Way with the Oddie Blvd Cycle 
Track.  

 $          18,724  Low 

Goldy Way Howard Drive 
to Baring 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.22 

This connection would allow 
bicyclists to cross Barring Blvd and 
would help connect recommended 
improvements on York Way with the 
Sparks Blvd shared use path via 
Howard Drive. Additionally, this 
would support residents from parts 
of the neighborhood north of Barring 
to access the Sparks Marina. This 
helps continue a key connection 
within the neighborhood. This road is 
designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route.  

 $          49,177  Low 

Goldy Way Baring 
Boulevard to 
Spanish 
Springs Road 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

0.28 

This segment of Goldy Way could 
support the addition of a wide buffer 
(up to 6.5' in each direction) to the 
existing bike lanes.  

 $          73,110  Low 

I St Pyramid 
Highway to 
Prater Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.90 

This route would help to connect the 
improvements on Oddie Blvd with 
the planned improvements on Prater 
Way, addressing an existing gap 
within a few blocks of Dilworth 
Middle School. This roadway is a 
Minor Fire Response Route.  

 $        201,645  Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 2 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
Lida Ln to 
Vista Path 

Lida Ln to Vista 
Blvd 

Wayfinding 
Connection 

0.74 

Add wayfinding to existing path to 
extend the connection between Vista 
Blvd and the Sparks Blvd Shared Use 
path (via Springland Drive) and 
connect with Reed High School and 
Whitehead Elementary School.  

 $            3,720  Low 

Lincoln 
Way 

Howard Drive 
to Legends Bay 
Drive 

Protected 
Bike Lanes 

0.66 

The wide right of way on this low-
speed and low-volume roadway 
could support a comfortable facility 
by removing the outside vehicle 
lanes. This would reduce vehicle 
speeds to the signed speed limit and 
improve the connection to the Sparks 
Marina.  

 $        415,126  Low 

O'Callaghan 
Drive 

Howard Drive 
to Sparks 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.84 

This connection would help reduce 
vehicle speeds in front of Dunn 
Elementary School in response to 
public comments. Additionally, this 
segment will help create an alternate 
connection between Vista Blvd and 
the Sparks Marina area (via Howard 
Drive). 

 $        313,234  Low 

O'Callaghan 
Drive 

Sparks 
Boulevard to 
Sparks 
Boulevard 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 0.03 

This project would add buffered bike 
lanes through the intersection within 
the currently wide shoulders.   $            8,977  Low 

Primo Way Geno Martini 
Parkway to 
Pete's Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.64 

This roadway has a wide parking lane 
on each side while there are no 
houses fronting the west side of the 
road and minimal parking utilization 
(Sparks Traffic Calming Study) 
outside of school arrival and dimissal 
periods. The City of Sparks has 
received previous petitions for traffic 
calming along this segement due to 
concerns over speeds. This roadway 
presents an opportunity for traffic 
calming elements at the intersections 
and between intersections to reduce 
speeds along the corridor.  

 $        143,980  Low 

Prospect 
Ave 

12th Street to 
11th Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.07 

This is a small connection to support 
the north/south link within the 
neighborhood on 11th St and 12th St 
that would connect York Way, Oddie 
Blvd, G St/F St, and Victorian Square.  

 $          16,522  Low 

Springdale 
Drive 

Lida Ln to 
Sparks 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.65 

This route helps to connect 
Whitehead Elementary with Sparks 
Blvd and into the Sparks Marina (via 
O'Callahan Drive and Howard Drive). 

 $        144,605  Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 2 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Miles Rationale Cost Priority 
Victorian 
Avenue 

Pyramid 
Highway to 
16th Street 

Bike Route 

0.59 

The addition of bicycle markings and 
signage along this already slow route 
would help formalize this popular 
bicycle connection and help link the 
Victorian Avenue cycle track with the 
bike lanes west of 16th Street.  

 $          31,224  Low 

Whitewood 
Dr / 
Sycamore 
Glen Dr 

Vista Blvd to 
Springland 
Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

0.76 

This link would include additional 
enhancements in front of Mendive 
Middle School and Diedrichson 
Elementary while improving the 
crossing of Vista Blvd (linking with 
existing bike lanes) and connect to 
recommended improvements on 
Springland Drive.  

 $        170,410  Low 

York Way Goldy Way to 
4th Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

1.19 

This segment helps to link residents 
on the east side of McCarran Blvd 
with Recreation Park and connects 
with the planned improvements on 
4th Street which connect to both 
Drake and Greenbrae Elementary 
Schools. This roadway is designated 
as a Major Fire Response Route.  

 $        265,928  Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 3  

Theme: Network Grid 
Description: This scenario focuses on providing a comfortable east/west and north/south connections at regular 
intervals in order to increase network density within the Central Sparks Neighborhood. This includes upgrading 
existing facilities where possible and creating low-speed neighborhood byways through residential areas. Based on 
this focus, the recommended improvements are located throughout the neighborhood north of I-80. This scenario 
includes a total of 19.4 miles of corridor improvements as well as improvements at 12 specific intersections for an 
estimated cost of $4.99 million (Table 5).  

Table 5. Scenario 3 Recommendations 

Scenario 3 Recommendations 

Corridor 
Improvement Type 

Miles Cost 
High-

Priority 
Low-

Priority Total High-Priority Low-Priority Total 
Bike Lanes 0.1 0.1 1.4  $    16,147  $    11,776  $     27,923 
Buffered Bike Lanes 2.2 0.3 2.5  $       572,493  $    73,110   $  645,603 
Neighborhood Byway 5.6 10.3 15.8  $   1,245,896  $   2,421,682  $     3,667,579 
Protected Bike Lanes 0.6 0.0 0.6  $       377,988  $      -    $   377,988 
Wayfinding 
Connection 0.0 0.3 0.3  $      -    $      1,734  $       1,734 

Sub-Total 8.5 11.0 19.4  $   2,212,524 $    2,508,302  $     4,720,826 

Intersection 
Improvement Type 

Number Cost 
High-

Priority 
Low-

Priority  Total High-Priority Low-Priority  Total 
Curb Extensions 12 3 15  $     92,148  $     92,148  $    184,296 
Two Staged Turn 
Boxes 8 4 12  $     12,000  $    6,000  $      18,000 

High Visibility 
Crosswalks 6 2 8  $     36,000  $     12,000  $      48,000 

LPI 1 1 2  $   5,500  $   5,500  $       11,000 

Bike Boxes 0 2 2  $   -    $     10,000  $       10,000 

Sub-Total 27 12 39  $   145,648  $   125,648  $   271,269 

Total  $     2,358,172  $     2,633,950 $      4,992,122 

Corridor and intersection improvements are shown in Figure 3. It’s important to note that intersection improvements 
have been consolidated on the map legend for simplicity. Intersection improvements have been provided for internal 
RTC review through the interactive map. 

ATTACHMENT



 Figure 19. Scenario 3 Recommendations

ATTACHMENT



Project Rationale 
This section describes the project location, extent, facility type, rationale, and individual costs for including each 
identified corridor improvement in Scenario 3 in Table 6. 

Table 6. Scenario 3 Project Descriptions and Rationale 

Scenario 3 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Rationale Cost Miles Priority 
12th Street Oddie Blvd 

to Oxford 
Ave 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Short connection between Oddie Blvd and 
Prospect Ave which connect the 
recommended improvements on York Way 
with the Oddie Blvd Cycle Track.  

 $            8,134  0.04 High 

18th Street Wedekind 
Street to 
York Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This short north/south connection between 
Wedekind St and York Way helps enhance 
connectivity to Risley Elementary School, 
Maxwell Elementary School, and Sparks 
Middle School.  This road is designated as a 
Minor Fire Response Route.  

 $          33,471  0.15 High 

Barring Blvd McCarran 
Blvd to 
Sparks Blvd 

Protected Bike 
Lanes 

Barring Blvd is an important east/west link 
which has volumes (12,700 ADT - NDOT 
2023) that may support a reconfiguration. 
Due to the high-speed nature of the 
roadway and connection with high-volume 
roadways, intersection configurations will be 
important considerations during design. This 
improvement would help reduce crossing 
distances along the length of Barring Blvd 
helping to also improve pedestrian 
conditions.  

 $        377,988  0.60 High 

Greenbrae 
Drive / 
Oxford Ave / 
Robbie Way 

Pullman 
Drive to 
12th Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This multi-road connection provides an 
extension of the Oddie Blvd facilities while 
creating a connection that is roughly 
equidistant between the recommended 
improvements on York Way and the planned 
improvements on Prater Way. Greenbrae 
Drive is designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route.  

 $        447,436  2.00 High 

McCarran 
Boulevard 

Prater Way 
to Baring 
Boulevard 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

The current configuration of McCarran Blvd 
in this section includes a buffer between the 
curb and bike lane. Flipping these two would 
create separation from vehicles for people 
biking and increase the overall comfort of 
the corridor. Additionally, this treatment 
may help support reduced overall crossing 
distances for pedestrians crossing McCarran 
Blvd. This would help enhance the existing 
north/south connection between Sparks 
Blvd and the proposed improvements on 
Probasco Way.  

 $        247,706  0.95 High 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 3 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Rationale Cost Miles Priority 
O'Callaghan 
Drive 

Sparks 
Boulevard 
to Sparks 
Boulevard 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

This project would add buffered bike lanes 
through the intersection within the currently 
wide shoulders.   $            8,977  0.03 High 

Pullman 
Drive 

Station 
Drive to 
Robbie 
Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This is a short connection supporting an 
east/west connection via Greenbrae Drive 
and helping to increase connectivity with the 
Sparks Marina and Sparks Legends areas. 
This road is designated as a Minor Fire 
Response Route.  

 $          27,921  0.12 High 

Sandwood 
Dr 

Palmwood 
Dr to 
Sparks Blvd 
Shared Use 
Path 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Formalize a short existing connection to the 
Sparks Blvd shared use path.  

 $          18,118  0.08 High 

Station 
Drive 

Pullman 
Drive to 
Prater Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This is a short connection supporting an 
east/west connection via Greenbrae Drive 
and helping to increase connectivity with the 
Sparks Marina and Sparks Legends areas.  

 $          16,521  0.07 High 

Sullivan Ln Prater Way 
to 
Wedekind 
Rd 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

This segment has relatively low traffic 
volumes (2,350 - 6,150 - NDOT 2023) and a 
speed limit of 25 mph with a total of five 
lanes north of Oddie Blvd. This concept 
would reuse excess capacity to provide 
buffered bike lanes.  

 $        222,947  1.21 High 

Sullivan Ln Prater Way 
to Victorian 
Avenue 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This would enhance the short connection on 
a low-speed and low-volume road between 
two existing bicycle facilities.  

 $          23,097  0.10 High 

Truckee Ln Baring Blvd 
to Emerson 
Way 

Bike Lanes This would extend the existing bike lanes on 
Truckee Lane by repurposing the 
Northbound right turn lane and narrowing 
the northbound receiving lane at Barring 
Blvd. This would help connect the grid to the 
northern most east/west connection on 
Spanish Springs Rd and Queens Way.  

 $          16,147  0.09 High 

Wedekind 
Rd 

Lepori Way 
to 18th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This low-volume segment of Wedekind Rd 
(1,100 ADT - NDOT 2023) would help create 
the northern most east/west connection by 
linking with Queens Way across Pyramid 
Highway in the east and connecting with the 
recommended improvement between 18th 
Street and Silverada Blvd.  

 $        256,873  1.15 High 

Wedekind 
Road 

18th Street 
to Silverada 
Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This route connects with Oppio Park and 
connects to Cannan Elementary and Sparks 
Middle School (via 18th Street). Additionally, 
this route helps connect with York Way (via 
18th St) and the shared lane facilities on 
Silverada Blvd. This road is designated as a 
Major Fire Response Route.  

 $        206,145  0.92 High 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 3 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Rationale Cost Miles Priority 
York Way 4th Street 

to 18th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This segment of York Way helps create an 
east/west connection that links Sparks 
Middle School and Maxwell Elementary with 
areas to the east and all the way to the 
Sparks Blvd Shared Use path (via Howard 
Drive). This road is designated as a Major 
Fire Response Route.  

 $        229,325  1.03 High 

Ashley Park 
Circle 

Round 
Mountain 
Circle to 
Round 
Mountain 
Circle 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Short link within the north/south connection 
in the eastern portion of the neighborhood. 
This roadway is already a relatively low-
speed and low-volume roadway.   $          24,466  0.11 Low 

Berkshire 
Drive 

Wabash 
Circle to 
Wabash 
Circle 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

North / south connection within the area 
between Vista Blvd and Sparks Blvd running 
along Woodtrail Park.   $          73,775  0.33 Low 

Blossom 
View Drive 

Wabash 
Circle to 
Round 
Mountain 
Circle 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

North / south connection within the area 
between Vista Blvd and Sparks Blvd which 
would enhance the roadway between 
Dietrichson Elementary School and Mendive 
Middle School. This road is a Minor Fire 
Response Route.  

 $        107,498  0.48 Low 

Clan Alpine 
Drive 

Shadow 
Lane to 
Round 
Mountain 
Road 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

North / south link between Shadow Lane 
and Prater Way through a neighborhood 
byway via Berkshire Drive, Wabash Circle, 
and Round Mountain Circle. This roadway is 
a Minor Fire Response Route.  

 $          54,723  0.24 Low 

Goldy Way Howard 
Drive to 
Baring 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This connection would allow bicyclists to 
cross Barring Blvd and would help connect 
recommended improvements on York Way 
with the Sparks Blvd shared use path via 
Howard Drive. Additionally, this would 
support residents from parts of the 
neighborhood north of Barring to access the 
Sparks Marina. This helps continue a key 
connection within the neighborhood. This 
road is designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route.  

 $          49,177  0.22 Low 

Goldy Way Barring 
Boulevard 
to Spanish 
Springs 
Road 

Buffered Bike 
Lanes 

This segment of Goldy Way could support 
the addition of a wide buffer (up to 6.5' in 
each direction) to the existing bike lanes. 
This roadway is designated as a Major Fire 
Response Route.  

 $          73,110  0.28 Low 

Howard 
Drive 

Sparks Blvd 
to Goldy 
Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This connection would help to formalize the 
connection to the Sparks Blvd Shared Use 
Path and extend the east/west connection 
from York Way. This roadway is identified as 
a Minor Fire Response Route.  

 $          24,745  0.11 Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 3 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Rationale Cost Miles Priority 
I Street Stanford 

Way to 
Probasco 
Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Small east/west connection supporting the 
recommended improvements on Stanford 
Way and Probasco Way. This roadway is 
designated as a Minor Fire Response Route. 

 $          34,673  0.16 Low 

Lida Ln to 
Vista Path 

Shadow Ln 
to Vista 
Blvd 

Wayfinding 
Connection 

Add wayfinding to existing path to extend 
the connection between Vista Blvd, Sparks 
Blvd, and Pyramid Highway (via Queens Way 
/ Spanish Springs Rd. 

 $            1,734  0.35 Low 

Lillard Drive Prater Way 
to Atlantic 
Way 

Bike Lanes Add bike lanes on the short connection to 
Prater Way to support a comfortable 
experience and beginning of the north/south 
connection on the east side of the 
neighborhood. There are no houses fronting 
the street on the west side. This road is 
designated as a Major Fire Response Route.  

 $          11,776  0.06 Low 

Lillard Drive Atlantic 
Way to 
Wabash 
Circle 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This roadway is the beginning of the 
north/south connection on the east side of 
the neighborhood. There are no houses 
fronting the street on the west side. This 
road is designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route.  

 $          18,986  0.08 Low 

O'Callaghan 
Drive 

Greenbrae 
Drive to 
Sparks 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This segment would serve as a continuation 
of the east/west connection between York 
Way and Prater Way and would help 
improve network connectivity between Vista 
Blvd and Oddie Blvd in concert with 
recommendations on Greenbrae Drive and 
Whitewood Drive.  

 $        269,563  0.65 Low 

Palmwood 
Dr 

Truckee Ln 
to 
Sandwood 
Dr 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This would formalize a low-speed 
connection between Truckee Lane and the 
Sparks Blvd shared use path and support and 
northern east/west connection through the 
neighborhood as an alternative to McCarran 
Blvd.  

 $        102,268  0.46 Low 

Probasco 
Way 

I Street to 
Queen Way 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This route would create and alternative 
north/south connection to McCarran Blvd in 
this portion of the neighborhood. This 
connection with within approximately a half 
mile of the planned improvements on 4th 
Street. This road is designated as a Major 
Fire Response Route.  

 $        280,151  1.25 Low 

Queen Way Pyramid 
Highway to 
Truckee Ln 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This roadway is currently designated as a 
Major Fire Response Route but already 
includes speed humps. Additional signage 
including wayfinding would help enhance 
this low-speed and low-volume (820 ADT - 
NDOT 2023) connection.  

 $        204,188  0.91 Low 

Rosemary 
Drive 

O'Callagha
n Drive to 
Howard 
Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This short roadway would support a longer 
north/south connection from Spanish 
Springs Rd to the Sparks Marina through a 
multi-road neighborhood byway.  

 $          81,816  0.37 Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario 3 Recommendation Rationale 
Name Extent Type Rationale Cost Miles Priority 
Round 
Mountain 
Circle 

Ashley Park 
Circle to 
Blossom 
View Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Short link within the north/south connection 
in the eastern portion of the neighborhood. 
This roadway is already a relatively low-
speed and low-volume roadway.  

 $            6,123  0.03 Low 

Round 
Mountain 
Rd/Cir 

Ashley Park 
Circle to 
Clan Alpine 
Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Short link within the north/south connection 
in the eastern portion of the neighborhood. 
This roadway is already a relatively low-
speed and low-volume roadway.  

 $          66,309  0.30 Low 

Shadow Ln Baring Blvd 
to Sparks 
Blvd 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Current volumes of 2,500 ADT (NDOT - 2023) 
and a relatively low-speed (25 mph) could 
support a neighborhood byway 
configuration without significantly impacting 
parking along the corridor. This connection 
would help create an east/west connection 
on the northern edge of the neighborhood. 

 $        256,182  1.15 Low 

Springdale 
Drive 

Sycamore 
Glen Drive 
to Sparks 
Boulevard 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This connection continues the east/west 
route linking Vista Blvd to Oddie Blvd (via 
O'Callaghan Dr and Greenbrae Drive).   $        144,605  0.65 Low 

Stanford 
Way 

I Street to 
Victorian 
Avenue 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This north/south connection provides a low-
stress option to connect from the Victorian 
Avenue cycle track to the north through the 
neighborhood. This connection presents an 
opportunity to potentially coordinate 
improvements with WCSD at the Prater Way 
intersection.  

 $        137,741  0.62 Low 

Wabash 
Circle 

Lillard 
Drive to 
Blossom 
View Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

Two short segments of a circular roadway 
helping create a north/south byway by 
connecting Berkshire Drive with Lillard Drive 
and Blossom View Drive.  

 $          48,354  0.22 Low 

Whitewood 
Dr / 
Sycamore 
Glen Dr 

Vista Blvd 
to 
Springland 
Drive 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This link would include additional 
enhancements in front of Mendive Middle 
School and Diedrichson Elementary while 
improving the crossing of Vista Blvd (linking 
with existing bike lanes) and connect to 
recommended improvements on Springland 
Drive.  

 $        170,410  0.76 Low 

York Way Goldy Way 
to 4th 
Street 

Neighborhood 
Byway 

This segment helps to link residents on the 
east side of McCarran Blvd with Recreation 
Park and connects with the planned 
improvements on 4th Street which connect 
to both Drake and Greenbrae Elementary 
Schools. This roadway is designated as a 
Major Fire Response Route.  

 $        265,928  1.19 Low 

ATTACHMENT



Scenario Comparison 
To compare scenarios, the project team analyzed the implementation complexity, potential benefits, and 
maintenance considerations across all three scenarios and assigned scores for each metric. Scores for each metric are 
detailed below and are intended to help in decision-making and selection of a preferred alternative. All scores were 
combined into a final score across five metrics (accessibility testing results will be added once completed). These 
metrics include:  

• Metric #1: Emergency Vehicle Routes – This considers the potential implementation complexity based on the
emergency vehicle designation from the City of Sparks.

o No Fire Response Route – 10 points

o Minor Fire Response Route – 5 points

o Major Fire Response Route – 0 points

• Metric #2: Capacity – This metric evaluates the potential reduction in vehicle capacity and assigns a higher
level of points to recommendations which have no impact on vehicle capacity.

o No reduction in capacity – 10 points

o Reduction in capacity on minor roadway – 5 points

o Reduction in capacity on major roadway – 0 points

• Metric #3: Parking – This metrics analyzes the potential impact to on-street vehicle parking from the
proposed recommendation based on the perceived level of parking utilization and roadway context.

o No parking reduction – 10 points

o Impacts to low-utilization parking – 5 points

o Impacts to medium-utilization parking – 3 points

o Impacts to high-utilization parking – 0 points

• Metric #4: Safety – This metric identifies how much overlap is present between the proposed scenario
recommendations and the RTC High Injury Network so gain an understanding of the potential safety benefits
within the neighborhood.

o Majority of the project segment is within the HIN – 10 points

o Portion of the project segment is within the HIN – 5 points

o Project touches a portion of HIN roadway – 3 points

o No overlap with HIN – 0 points

ATTACHMENT



• Metric #5 – Maintenance – This metric quantifies the potential level of effort for maintaining the proposed
recommendations based on the elements included in the conceptual design. Projects which include more
physical elements within the roadway (i.e. protected bike lanes) will result in the highest levels of
maintenance costs compared to a Bike Route which would require minimal maintenance support.

o Minimal on-going maintenance required – 10 points

o Intermittent maintenance needs (i.e. repainting) – 5 points

o Frequent maintenance needs (i.e. replacing vertical elements) – 0 points

Scores across these five metrics were average for each scenario package in order to compare scenario packages 
against each other (Table 7). As scores increase, this indicates that the projects included could be implemented with 
lower levels of complexity and operational challenges which providing safety benefits with minimal maintenance 
requirements. The results shown in Table 7 highlight the slight differences across each of the three scenarios and 
highlight the leading scenarios for the different metric. 

Table 7. Metric Comparison of Scenarios 

Metric Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3 
PEVR (Avg.) 3.4 3.5 4.4 
Capacity (Avg.) 8.2 9.4 9.5 
Parking (Avg.) 8.8 9.6 9.3 
Safety (Avg.) 1.8 1.2 1.5 
Maintenance (Avg.) 9.3 9.1 9.6 
Average Total Score 31.5 32.9 33.1 

ATTACHMENT



Community Access 
Alta conducted an analysis using the Washoe Accessibility Testing toolbox that was developed by Alta and provided to 
the RTC during the ATP process in 2024. This tool helps to gauge the varying levels of access gain to different 
destination types based on proposed bicycle network enhancements. This is represented by potential trips that may 
shift from vehicle to bicycle based on new low-stress connections in the bicycle network. The aggregate access gain to 
each destination type is shown for each scenario in Table 8 with analysis results for each destination type (schools, 
parks, hospitals) included in Appendix B.  

Results below highlight the disparity in existing network connectivity north and south of I-80 within the Central Sparks 
neighborhood. Table 8 highlights the potential level of benefit realized from improvements in Scenario 1, which 
includes improvements on either side of I-80 compared to Scenarios 2 and 3, both of which concentrate 
improvements north of I-80. Due to the lack of existing facilities within the Industrial Area south of I-80, the addition 
of low-stress connections in this area helps to create a significant level of benefits for the small residential population 
south of I-80; additionally, the existing roadway network in the Industrial Area lacks connectivity aside from major 
arterial roadways which currently are highly stressful environments for bicyclists. Comparatively the existing roadway 
network north of I-80 is more connected with more existing low-stress connections than are available south of I-80.  

It is important to note that the estimated daily trips in Table 8 are intended to inform the planning process but are 
not intended to serve as refined or exact estimations of future bicycle trips. 

Table 8. Estimated New Bicycle Trips to Destination Type By Scenario 

Destination 
Type 

Scenario 1  
Exterior 

Connections 

Scenario 2  
Access to Schools 

and Parks 

Scenario 3  
Network Grid 

Schools 2,459 968 973 
Parks 17,274 5,713 5,433 
Hospitals 1,846 566 633 
Scenario Total 21,579 7,247 7,039 

ATTACHMENT



Appendix A – Cost Estimate Unit/Per Mile Costs 

Corridor Improvement Cost Per Mile 
Bike Lane  $  183,600 
Buffered Bike Lane  $  261,000 
Protected Bike Lane  $  633,600 
Bicycle Boulevard  $    52,800 
Bicycle Boulevard with Intersection Traffic Calming (Curb Extensions and 2 
new crosswalks every 1/4 mile)  $  223,664 

Intersection Improvement Cost Per 
Installation 

Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon (PHB)  $       650,000 
RRFBs  $         90,000 
Pedestrian Refuge Island  $         50,000 
Raised Crosswalk  $         23,000 
Midblock Crossing  $         19,577 
Bike Jug Handle  $         15,000 
Curb Extensions  $         10,000 
High-Visibility Crosswalk  $          6,000 
Leading Pedestrian Interval  $          5,500 
Bike Box  $          5,000 
Bicycle Wayfinding  $      35K/mile 

ATTACHMENT



Appendix B – Accessibility Testing Results Maps 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 20. Scenario 1 - Hospital Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 21. Scenario 1 - Parks Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 22. Scenario 1 - School Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 23. Scenario 2 - Hospital Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 24. Scenario 2 - Parks Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 25. Scenario 2 - Schools Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 26. Scenario 3 - Hospital Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 27. Scenario 3 - Parks Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



Figure 28. Scenario 3 - Schools Access Gains 

ATTACHMENT



E

Appendix E: Project 
Cutsheets

ATTACHMENT



SULLIVAN LANE

protected bike lane

This project, developed as part of the Central Sparks 
Neighborhood Network Plan, would create a 1.3 mile long 
north/south connection on the western side of Central 
Sparks and improve connectivity to Risley Elementary 
and Kate Smith Elementary School. This corridor connects 
with multiple existing and planned east/west facilities 
including on Oddie Boulevard, G St, Prater Way, and 
Victorian Avenue. With relatively low traffic volumes, five 
total lanes, and a speed limit of 25 mph north of Oddie 
Boulevard, this segment could be reconfigured to create 
a more comfortable connection. In this project concept, 
Sullivan Lane between Wedekind Road and Prater Way 
could include buffered bike lanes along with intersection 
enhancements and wayfinding. The section between 
Prater Way and Victorian Avenue, which has lower traffic 
volumes than the northern section, would include traffic 
calming in a neighborhood byway confirguration. Due to 
the current widths on Sullivan Lane between Wedekind 
Road and McCarran Boulevard, this quick build project will 
end at Wedekind Road. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DETAILS

Sullivan Lane
CORRIDOR SEGMENTS IMPROVEMENT TYPE

Prater Way to Victorian Ave             Neighborhood Byway                              

Wedekind Rd to Prater Way Protected Bike Lane

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

Leading Pedestrian Interval (LPI)           
Bike Box

Curb Extensions                           
Wayfinding                                                 

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $ 811,983

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!W
EDEKIN

D
RD

G
 S

T

PRATER W
AY

19TH ST

20TH ST

O
DD

IE
 B

LV
D

SULLIVAN LN

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools

! Parks
Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway

Type
! Wayfinding
! LPI
! Curb Extensions

!
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.2 0.4 MILES

PROJECT MAP

 Conceptual Cross-section B

A

B

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations Intersection Concept Type

curb extensions  

wayfinding

LPI

two-staged turn box / 
cut through / bike boxes

LEGEND

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

neighborhood byway

Conceptual Cross-section A

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST
CEN

TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

VI
CT

O
RI

AN
 A

VE

F 
ST

 / 
G

 S
T

SULLIVAN LANE

RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)
RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements by Type
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes

Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

Schools
Parks
Central Sparks

Type
Protected Bike
Lanes

Preferred_CS_Sc
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway

Type
Wayfinding
LPI
Curb Extensions
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

0 0.2 0.4 MILES

Central Sparks

protected 
bike lane

A
ATTACHMENT



YORK WAY & WEDEKIND ROAD

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations
neighborhood byway

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!! !

4T
H

 S
T

N MCCARRAN BLVD

WEDEKIND RD

PROBASCO
W

AY

E GAULT WAY

PY
RA

M
ID

W
A

Y

G
O
LD

Y
W
AY

HO
WA

RD
DR

IVE

WEDEKIND RD

YORK WAY

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools

! Parks
Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Neighborhood
Byway

Type
! Wayfinding
! Curb Extensions

!
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements

!
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.35 0.7 MILES

This project would establish a 2.7 mile long east/
west connection through the Central Sparks 
neighborhood that links residents with Recreation 
Park, planned improvements on 4th St, and numerous 
schools including Maxwell, Drake, and Greenbrae 
Elementary Schools as well as Sparks Middle School. 
This neighborhood byway would include traffic 
calming and intersection improvements to maintain 
slow vehicle speeds along the corridor and at key 
intersections. This project concept also benefits from 
existing signalized crossings and links to the shared-
use path on Sparks Boulevard with a short connection 
on Goldy Way and Howard Drive. This project would 
also make improvements on 18th Street between York 
Way and Wedekind Road.  

York Way and Wedekind Rd are designated as Major 
Fire Response Routes and will require horizontal traffic 
calming options like hardened centerlines, chicanes, 
chokers, etc. The neighborhood byway configuration 
may have minor parking impacts at intersections in 
order to enhance safety with curb extensions and 
daylighting. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Design Considerations

York Way & Wedekind Road
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT 

TYPE

18th St - Wedekind Rd to York Way 

Wedekind Rd - McCarran Blvd to Wedekind Rd

York Way - Goldy Way to 18th St

Neighborhood 
Byway

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

High Visibility Crosswalks                              
Two Staged Turn Boxes                          

Leading Pedestrian Interval (LPI)

Curb Extensions              
Wayfinding

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $697,334

Conceptual Cross-section

PROJECT MAP

PROJECT DETAILS

Intersection Concept TypeLEGEND

curb extensions w/ 
minor enhancements 

two-staged turn box / 
cut through / bike boxes

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfindingwayfinding

SP
AR

KS
 B

LV
D

SU
LL

IV
A

N
 L

A
N

E

11
TH

 S
T 

/ 1
2T

H
 S

T

YORK WAY / WEDEKIND RD

RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)
RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements by Type
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes

Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths
Schools
Parks
Central Sparks

Type
Protected Bike
Lanes

Preferred_CS_Sc
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes

Buffered Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Wayfinding
Connection

Type
Wayfinding
Curb Extensions
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

0 0.35 0.7 MILES

curb 
extensions protected bike lanes

B

Consider improvement on Sullivan Lane (Wedekind Rd to McCarran Blvd) for connection to signalized crossing of McCarran Blvd. 

ATTACHMENT



11TH STREET & 12TH STREET

This 1.6 mile long north/south connection between 
Victorian Plaza and the Sparks Mercantile Center 
was developed as a part of the Central Sparks 
Neighborhood Network Plan. This project would use 
11th Street and 12th Street (connecting on Prospect 
Avenue) to create a comfortable connection through 
the neighborhood. Wayfinding signage would help 
guide bicyclists to the Sparks Mercantile Center on 
Gault Way with traffic calming included south of York 
Way to Victorian Plaza Circle. 

This project would connect with the existing bike 
lanes on Prater Way and the raised cycle track on 
Oddie Boulevard. This project would also build 
off recommended neighborhood byways from the 
Neighborhood Connections Plan on York Way and F 
Street and G Street. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

11th Street & 12th Street
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

11th St - Prospect Ave to York Way 

12th St - Prospect Ave to Victorian Plaza

Prospect Ave - 12th St to 11th St

Neighborhood Byway

11th St - Gault Way to York Way   Wayfinding Connection

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

Two-Staged Turn Boxes               
Leading Pedestrian Interval                                
High Visibility Crosswalks                        

Wayfinding 
Curb Extentions

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $473,644

PROJECT DETAILS

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

PRATER W
AY

HOLMAN WAY

C 
ST

E 
ST

G
AU

LT
W

AY

D 
ST

G
 STYO

RK
 W

AY

PR
O

SP
EC

T 
AV

E

VI
CT

O
RI

AN
PL

AZ
A

CI
R

H
 ST

O
XF

O
RD

 A
VE

BAYLAND AVE

N
 M

CC
A

RR
A

N
 B

LV
D

I ST

14TH ST

13TH ST A
VE

N
UE

O
F

TH
E

O
A

KS10TH ST

TY
LE

R 
W

AY

ROBERTA LN

XM
A

N
 W

AY

W
EL

LI
N

G
 W

AY

SB
RA

G
IA

 W
AY

RU
SS

EL
L 

W
AY

OD
DI

E BLVD
SCHROEDER WAY

UP
TO

N
 W

AY

VA
N

CE
 W

AY

ZE
PH

YR
 W

AY

PL
YM

O
UT

H
 W

AY

DO
DS

O
N

 W
AY

11TH STREET

12TH STREET

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools

! Parks
Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Neighborhood
Byway
Wayfinding
Connection

Type
! Wayfinding

!
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements

!
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.2 0.4 MILES

PROJECT MAP

Conceptual Cross-section 

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations Intersection Concept TypeLEGEND

curb extensions w/ 
minor enhancements wayfinding

two-staged turn box / 
cut through / bike boxes

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

The addition of two-staged turn boxes at the Oddie 
Boulevard intersection will support bicyclists turning 
left from Oddie onto 12th Street. Both streets are 
designated as Minor Fire Response Routes and will 
require horizontal traffic calming options like hardened 
centerlines, chicanes, chokers, etc. The neighborhood 
byway configuration may have minor parking impacts 
at intersections in order to enhance safety with curb 
extensions and daylighting. 

Design Considerations

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfindingneighborhood byway
wayfinding connection
protected bike laneseparated 

bike lane

C
ATTACHMENT



I STREET

The project was identified as a key element of 
the Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan 
and will help enhance the network by connecting 
the Oddie Boulevard raised cycle track with the 
planned improvements through the 4th Street 
Mulitmodal project and Prater Way Multimodal 
project which are planned to include multimodal 
enhances such as bike lanes and safety 
enhancements. 

The I Street corridor provides a low-speed and low-
volume connection to the retail destinations at the 
intersection of Prater Way and McCarran Boulevard. 
This project will act as an extension of the Oddie 
Boulevard raised cycle track and add nearly a mile 
of facility to the overall network. 

The addition of bike boxes and curb extensions 
can help support the transition from I Street to 
Oddie Boulevard. I Street roadway is a Minor 
Fire Response Route and will require horizontal 
traffic calming options like hardened centerlines, 
chicanes, chokers, etc. The neighborhood byway 
configuration may have minor parking impacts at 
intersections in order to enhance safety with curb 
extensions and daylighting. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DETAILS Design Considerations

I Street
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

Pyramid Highway to Prater Way Neighborhood Byway

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

High Visibility Crosswalks
Bike Box Curb Extensions        

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $247,644

Conceptual Cross-section

!!

PRATER WAY

PY
RA

M
ID

 W
AY SH

RIVER BLVD

4T
H

ST

1S
T 

ST

ST
A

N
FO

RD
 W

AY

PR
O

BA
SC

O
 W

AY

H ST

G ST E PRATER WAY

E H ST

I ST

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools
! Parks

Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Neighborhood
Byway

Type
! Curb Extensions

!
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.1 0.2 MILES

PROJECT MAP

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations
neighborhood byway

Intersection Concept TypeLEGEND

curb extensions w/ 
minor enhancements 

curb extensions

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST
W

ELLS
AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

SP
AR

KS
 B

LV
D

SU
LL

IV
A

N
 L

A
N

E

11
TH

 S
T 

/ 1
2T

H
 S

T

YORK WAY / WEDEKIND RD

RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)
RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements by Type
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes

Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths
Schools
Parks
Central Sparks

Type
Protected Bike
Lanes

Preferred_CS_Sc
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes

Buffered Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Wayfinding
Connection

Type
Wayfinding
Curb Extensions
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

0 0.35 0.7 MILES

Central SparksCentral SparksCentral Sparks

separated 
bike lane

D
ATTACHMENT



F STREET & G STREET

This Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan 
project would make improvements within close 
proximity to Sparks High School, Mitchell Elementary 
School, Kate Smith Elementary School, and Deer 
Park. F St extends from the existing bike lanes east 
of McCarran Blvd (linking with Sparks Legends/
Sparks Marina) with improvements in front of Lincoln 
Park Elementary School and within close proximity 
to Dilworth Middle School and Paulakidas Park.  The 
neighborhood byway on G Street will connect with the 
planned improvements on 9th Street which include 
planned bike lanes extending further to the west.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Wayfinding with curb extensions at 12th/G St 12th/F 
St will reduce maintain low vehicle speeds and route 
continuity. F St is designated as a Major Fire Response 
route and G St is designated as a Minor Fire Response 
Route. These roadways will require horizontal traffic 
calming options like hardened centerlines, chicanes, 
chokers, etc.

PROJECT DETAILS

Design Considerations

Conceptual Cross-section

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !
!!

!

!

!

E PRATER WAY

NICHOLS BLVD

RO
CK

 B
LV

D

15
TH

ST

SU
LL

IV
A

N
 L

N

PY
RA

M
ID

W
AY

4T
H

 S
T

ST
A

N
FO

RD
 W

AY

EL
RAN

CH
O

DR

7T
H

 S
T

10TH
ST

19
TH

 S
T

16
TH

 S
T

D ST

E ST

C ST

6TH
ST

AVENUE OF THE OAKS
C ST

D ST

I ST

G STH ST

PRATER WAY

N
M

CC
AR

RA
N

BL
VD

G STREET

F STREET

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools

! Parks
Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Neighborhood
Byway

Type
! Wayfinding
! Curb Extensions

!
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements

!
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.3 0.6 MILES

PROJECT MAP

neighborhood bywaybike lane
shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks RecommendationsLEGEND Intersection Concept Type

F Street & G Street
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

F Street - 12th St to McCarran Blvd    

  G Street - El Rancho Dr to 12th St  
Neighborhood Byway

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

Curb Extensions

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $570,839

protected bike lane

curb extensions w/ 
minor enhancements 

two-staged turn box / 
cut through / bike boxes

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfindingwayfinding

SP
AR

KS
 B

LV
D

SU
LL

IV
A

N
 L

A
N

E

11
TH

 S
T 

/ 1
2T

H
 S

T

YORK WAY / WEDEKIND RD

RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)
RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements by Type
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes

Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths
Schools
Parks
Central Sparks

Type
Protected Bike
Lanes

Preferred_CS_Sc
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes

Buffered Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Wayfinding
Connection

Type
Wayfinding
Curb Extensions
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

0 0.35 0.7 MILES

curb 
extensions 

E
ATTACHMENT



GREENBRAE DRIVE & STATION DRIVE	

This project from the Central Sparks Neighborhood 
Network Plan provides a 1.6 mile long connection 
between the recommended improvements on 
York Way and the planned improvements on 
Prater Way. This neighborhood byway will help to 
improve connectivity to Dunn Elementary School 
and Greenbrae Elementary School as well as Willow 
Creek Park and Longford Park. This link will also help 
improve connections to the Sparks Marina and Sparks 
Legends areas.  

This project would connect Prater Way with 
Greenbrae Drive with improvements on Station Drive, 
Pullman Drive, and Robbie Way. This route crosses 
McCarran Boulevard at a signalized crossing and 
connects with the existing bike lanes on Marina 
Gateway Drive. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Greenbrae Drive & 
Station Drive

CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

  Greenbrae Dr - Robbie Way to 4th St    
Robbie Way - Pullman Dr to Robbie Way    
Pullman Dr - Station Dr to Robbie Way               
Station Dr - Pullman Dr to Prater Way

Neighborhood Byway

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $359,555

Greenbrae Drive is designated as a Major Fire Response 
Route and will require horizontal traffic calming options 
like hardened centerlines, chicanes, chokers, etc. The 
neighborhood byway configuration may have minor 
parking impacts at intersections in order to enhance safety 
with curb extensions and daylighting. 

PROJECT DETAILS Design Considerations

Conceptual Cross-section

!

!

!

!

!!

!

PULLMAN DR

GLEESON WAY

SP
AR

KS
BL

VDROBBIE WAY

PY
RA

M
ID

 W
AY

N
 M

CC
A

RR
A

N
 B

LV
D

H
O

W
A

RD
DR

COACHMAN DR1S
T 

ST

O'CALL
AGHAN DR

ST
A

N
FO

RD
W

AY

4T
H

 S
T

EXPRESS ST

PR
O

BA
SC

O
 W

AY

I ST

L ST

H ST

G ST

UN
IO

N
STM ST

E 
I S

T

COUPLER WAY

E PRATER WAY

K ST

J ST
ROBBIE WAY

GREENBRAE DRIVE

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools

! Parks
Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Neighborhood
Byway

Type
! Curb Extensions

!
Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements

!
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.3 0.6 MILES

PROJECT MAP

bike lane
shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations

neighborhood byway

LEGEND

F
ATTACHMENT



HOWARD DRIVE & GOLDY WAY

This 2.1 mile long project would help people 
crossing Baring Boulevard and those accessing the 
Sparks Marina. This Central Sparks Neighborhood 
Network Plan project would help connect the 
recommended improvements on York Way with 
the Sparks Boulevard shared use path via Howard 
Drive. This project would continue a key connection 
within the neighborhood and offer a more 
comfortable bicycling environment compared to 
McCarran Boulevard. 

Parking utilization on Howard Drive should be 
studied to assess where additional traffic calming 
elements may be beneficial. Additionally, the 
section of Goldy Way north of Baring Boulevard 
could support the addition of a wide buffer (up to 
6.5’ in each direction) to the existing bike lanes 
without significantly impacting the existing parking.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DETAILS

Howard Drive & Goldy Way
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

   Goldy Way - Howard Dr to Baring Blvd 

Howard Dr - Sparks Blvd to Nichols Blvd
Neighborhood Byway          

Goldy Way - Baring Blvd to 

Spanish Springs Rd
Buffered Bike Lanes

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

Curb Extensions                                  
Two-Staged Turn Boxes

High Visibility 
Crosswalks

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $332,933

Conceptual Cross-section A

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

SPARKS BLVD

SPANISH SPRINGS RD
MARRACCO DR

RO
BB

IE
W

A
Y

ROSEMARY DR

GLEN VISTA DR SA
GE

VI
EW

DR

E 
PR

AT
ER

 W
AY

E
YORK

W
AY

O
'CALLAGHAN DRG

LEN
M

EA
DOW

DR

PARLANTI LN

PA
LM

W
O

O
D

DR

PINEWOOD DR

LI
N

CO
LN

 W
AYGOLDY WAY

HOW
ARD DRIVE

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools
! Parks

Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Buffered Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway

Type
! Curb Extensions

!
Bike Boxes; Two
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.35 0.7 MILES

PROJECT MAP

buffered bike lane
bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations Intersection Concept Type

curb extensions 

two-staged turn box / cut through / bike 
boxes

LEGEND

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

Conceptual Cross-section B

neighborhood byway

A

B

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST
CEN

TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

protected bike lane

G
ATTACHMENT



O’CALLAGHAN DRIVE & SPRINGLAND DRIVE

This 2.6 mile long project, developed during the 
Central Sparks Neighborhood Network Plan, 
would help reduce vehicle speeds in front of Dunn 
Elementary School in response to public comments 
while creating an alternative connection between 
Vista Boulevard and the Sparks Marina area (via 
Howard Drive). O’Callaghan Drive and Springland 
Drive between Lida Lane and Howard Drive would 
include traffic calming elements in a neighborhood 
byway configuration similar to the conceptual cross-
section below. This project would also include 
wayfinding and safety enhancements at road 
crossings on the existing path between Lida Lane 
and Vista Boulevard would include the addition of 
wayfinding. 

Rosemary Drive enhancements would provide 
an additional north/south connection within the 
network and link with the recommendations on 
Howard Drive. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

O’Callaghan Drive & 
Springland Drive

CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

  O’Callaghan Dr -  Howard Dr to Sparks Blvd  

Springland Dr - Sparks Blvd to Lida Ln

Rosemary Dr - O’Callaghan Dr to Howard Dr 

Neighborhood 
Byway

Path - Lida Ln to Vista Blvd
Wayfinding 
Connection

INCLUDED INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS

Two-Staged Turn Boxes Wayfinding

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $424,437

O’Callaghan Dr and Springland Dr are both 
designated as Major Fire Response routes and 
will require horizontal traffic calming options like 
hardened centerlines, chincanes, chokers, etc. 
The neighborhood byway configuration may 
have minor parking impacts at intersections in 
order to enhance safety with curb extensions and 
daylighting.

PROJECT DETAILS

Design Considerations

Conceptual Cross-section

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

WATERFIELD DR
VISTA BLV

D

HO
W

AR
D

DR

SH
AD

O
W

LN

FA
RG

O
W

AY

SP
AR

KS
BL

VD

BARING BLVD

SPARKS BLVD

O'CALLAGHAN DRIVE

LIDA LN TO VISTA P ATH

ROSEMARY D
RIV

E

SPRIN
GLAND

DR
IV

E

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities
Shared Use Paths

! Schools

! Parks
Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Neighborhood
Byway
Wayfinding
Connection

Type

!

Curb Extentions with
Minor
Enhancements

!
Bike Boxes / Two-
Staged Turn Boxes

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.3 0.6 MILES

PROJECT MAP

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project 
Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations Intersection Concept Type

curb extensions w/ minor enhancements 

two-staged turn boxes  / bike boxes

LEGEND

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

neighborhood byway

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

VA
LL

EY
 R

D

KI
RM

AN
 A

VE

H
O

LC
O

M
B 

AV
E

1ST ST

SUTRO
ST

2ND ST

CEN
TER ST

EVAN
S AVE

4TH ST

W
ELLS

AVE

LAKE ST

KI
ET

ZK
E

LN

MILL ST

KUENZLI ST

2ND ST

0 500 1,000 FEET

Legend
Central/Midtown Reno

! Schools
! Parks

Existing Bike Facilities
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane Facilities
Shared Use Paths

RTP Funded Projects
with Multimodal
Elements (2024 - 2035)
Type

Capacity
Multimodal

Central Reno
Recommendations

One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes

CutsheetHighlight
Facility_T

Bike Lanes
Neighborhood Byway
One-Way Protected Bike Lane
Protected Bike Lanes
Two-Way Cycle Track

IntersectionRecConcept
Type
!

Curb Extensions with Minor
Enhancements
Traffic Circle

! High Visibility Crosswalks
! Median Pedestrian Refuge
! Raised Crosswalks
! RRFB
! Protected Intersection

!
Two-Staged Turn Box / Cut
Through / Bike Boxes

! Wayfinding

wayfinding connection

protected bike lane

H
ATTACHMENT



LINCOLN WAY	

This project builds off the planned improvements on F 
St to enhance connections to the Sparks Marina. This 
project concept, develop as part of the Central Sparks 
Neighborhood Network Plan, considers using the wide right 
of way on this low-speed and low-volume road to create a 
comfortable facility by either removing the outside vehicle 
lanes or consolidating vehicle traffic on the north side of 
the landscaped median with temporary materials. This 
approach allows for future reallocation of space for capacity 
needs.  
Either concept (shown below) would help reduce vehicle 
speeds closer to the signed speed limit (20 mph). On-
street parking may be impacted based on the final 
configuration. Communities amenities such as outdoor 
dining or other activites may reuse additional space on 
the south side of the road under Option 2. Concentrating 
traffic onto one side of the street may cause safety issues 
with vehicles waiting in the bicycle lane to enter east/west 
traffic on Lincoln Way from side-streets (Harbour Cove Dr / 
Windsurfer Dr). 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Lincoln Way
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

Howard Dr to Legends Bay Dr Protected Bike Lanes

Howard Dr to McCarran Blvd Conflict Striping

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $439,426

PROJECT DETAILS

Conceptual Cross-section Option 1 Conceptual Cross-section Option 2

PROJECT MAP

FOREST STFOREST ST H
A

RB
O

UR
 C

O
VE

 D
R

W
IN

DS
UR

FE
R 

DR

NICHOLS BLVD

N 
M

CC
AR

RA
N 

BL
VD

LINCOLN WAY
LINCOLN WAY

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities

Shared Use Paths
! Schools
! Parks

Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Conflict Striping

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.1 0.2 MILES

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks RecommendationsLEGEND

conflict striping

protected bike lane

separated 
bike lane

I

Review lighting levels on Lincoln Way and make enhancements as necessary.

ATTACHMENT



VICTORIAN AVENUE

This Central Sparks Neighborhood Network 
Plan project would add minor enhancements to 
the corridor including shared lane markings and 
signage for bicyclists along this low-speed route in 
order to formalize this popular bicycle connection. 
This project would help link the Victorian Avenue 
cycle track with the existing bike lanes on Victorian 
Avenue west of 16th Street. 

This project would enhance the connections to 
Victorian Plaza, a prime entertainment destination 
during numerous special events and throughout 
the year. Additionally, enhancing the bicycle 
connections to RTC Centennial Plaza may support 
multi-modal trips through an enhanced bike/transit 
linkage.  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Victorian Avenue
CORRIDOR SEGMENT IMPROVEMENT TYPE

Pyramid Hwy to 16th St Bike Route

PLANNING LEVEL COST ESTIMATE $31,224

It is important to note that this corridor closes 
intermittently for community events, particularly 
during the summer months. This is an known 
condition on the corridor by area bicyclists, 
however, additional wayfinding signage for 
bicyclists during special events may be beneficial 
for network connectivity, especially for individuals 
who are new to cycling. 

Shared lane markings may be more visible with 
a contrasting background color such as black or 
green (as shown to the left). 

PROJECT DETAILS

Design Considerations

Conceptual Cross-section

!

!

!

PY
RA

M
ID

W
A

Y10
TH

 S
T16

TH
 S

T

A ST

VICTORIAN AVENUE

Neighborhood
Network
Improvements
RTP Funded Projects
(2025 - 2034)

Capacity
Multimodal

Existing Bike Facilities
Separated Bike
Lanes
Bike Lanes
Shared Lane
Facilities

Shared Use Paths
! Schools
! Parks

Central Sparks

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Bike Route

Central Sparks
Recommendatio
Type

Protected Bike
Lanes
Buffered Bike Lanes
Bike Lanes
Neighborhood
Byway
Bike Route
Wayfinding
Connection
Conflict Striping

0 0.1 0.19 MILES

PROJECT MAP

bike lane

shared 
lane 

shared 
use path

Existing Bike Facility RTP Funded Project Type

capacity
multimodal

Central Sparks

parkschool

Central Sparks Recommendations

bike route

LEGEND

separated 
bike lane

J
ATTACHMENT



 
 
MEETING DATE: September 4, 2025 AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
To: Technical Advisory Committee 
 
From: Vanessa Lacer, Planning Director 
  
 
FOR INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 
 
Receive a presentation and provide feedback on the Draft Public Participation Plan 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
As the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the region, the Regional Transportation 
Commission of Washoe County (RTC) is required to develop and adopt a Public Participation Plan 
(PPP), in accordance with Federal Statue 23 CFR 450.316. Additionally, 23 CFR 450.316 (1) (x) 
requires, “Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of the procedures and strategies contained in the 
participation plan to ensure a full and open participation process.” This PPP updates and replaces 
the 2022 PPP with changes including enhanced plan specific requirements and new website 
accessibility standards. Development of the 2025 PPP includes a 45-day public comment period 
which opened on 8/18/25 and closes on 10/01/25. The Draft 2025 PPP can be accessed at 
rtcwashoe.com and comments can be submitted by email to vlacer@rtcwashoe.com or by phone at 
(775) 335-190. The final 2025 PPP is scheduled for consideration of approval at the October RTC 
Board meeting. 
 
Attachment 
 



Regional Transportation Commission- Washoe County 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN 

2025 

ATTACHEMENT



RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025 

Table of Contents 
Executive Summary ................................................................................................... 1 

1.0 Introduction ......................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 Federal Regulations .............................................................................................. 2 

2.1 Federal Action Items and RTC Compliance .......................................................... 3 

3.0 Public Participation Policies .................................................................................. 8 

4.0 Outreach Strategies .............................................................................................. 9 

4.1 Engagement .................................................................................................... 10 

4.2 Promotion ....................................................................................................... 13 

5.0 Plan Specific Requirements ................................................................................ 14 

5.1 RTP and RTIP ................................................................................................... 16 

5.2 UPWP ............................................................................................................. 17 

5.3 PPP ................................................................................................................ 17 

ATTACHEMENT



RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025 
Page  1 

Executive Summary 
As the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the region, the Regional 
Transportation Commission of Washoe County (RTC) is required to develop and adopt a 
Public Participation Plan (PPP), in accordance with Federal Statue 23 CFR 450.316. 
Additionally, 23 CFR 450.316 (1) (x) requires, “Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of the 
procedures and strategies contained in the participation plan to ensure a full and open 
participation process.” This PPP updates and replaces the 2022 PPP with changes 
including enhanced plan specific requirements and new website accessibility standards. 
The 2025 PPP was developed in compliance with 23 CFR 450.316 (3) and included a 45-day 
public comment period. 

The PPP describes the RTC policies and processes that provide reasonable opportunities 
for involvement by interested parties in regional transportation planning. The PPP is used 
as a guide for all RTC public participation activities related to regional transportation 
planning, including development of the following federally required planning documents: 

• The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
• The Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP)
• Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP)
• Public Participation Plan (PPP)

RTC has developed the following nine Public Participation Policies, and corresponding 
procedures and strategies, that comply with 23 CFR 450.316 (1) and ensure full and open 
participation as part of the regional transportation planning process.  

1. Seek valuable public participation throughout the planning process.
2. Seek Board and elected-representative involvement to ensure coordination with

high-level regional and statewide plans.
3. Use effective, accessible, and equitable avenues for distributing information and

receiving comments while engaging traditionally underserved populations.
4. Inform and educate the public during the planning and decision-making

processes using accessible in-person and virtual tools.
5. Design participation initiatives that will support and encourage effective

participation.
6. Conduct outreach that bridges language, cultural, and economic differences.
7. Provide reasonable accommodation(s) and access to people with disabilities, so

that everyone can easily participate in the regional planning process.
8. Consider, evaluate, and respond to public input.
9. Evaluate the public participation process regularly.

ATTACHEMENT



RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025 
Page  2 

1.0 Introduction 
The Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County (RTC) serves the Truckee 
Meadows region through three core functions: 1) RTC is the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) conducting collaborative, comprehensive, and continuing regional 
transportation planning, 2) RTC operates the public  transportation system providing fixed 
route bus service, Bus Rapid Transit (BRT), FlexRIDE and other public transportation 
services, and 3) RTC designs and builds roadway projects and other multimodal facilities 
as part of a street and highway program.  

The Public Participation Plan (PPP) is used as a guide for RTC public participation activities 
related to regional transportation planning. As the MPO, RTC is required to develop and 
adopt a PPP in accordance with 23 CFR 450.316. Federal law and regulations also require 
RTC to develop a Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program (RTIP) and Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP). Additional plans, studies, and 
MPO efforts inform and are reflected in the RTP and RTIP.  

RTC also utilizes this PPP to ensure standards for public participation are met in 
connection with the development of public transit plans and programs such as the 
Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan (CTP), FTA Section 5307 
Program, FTA Section 5310 Program, and other public transit plans and programs. As the 
operator of the regional public transportation system, RTC has responsibilities for 
transportation planning specifically related to public transit and other transportation 
services.  As both the MPO and the public transportation operator, per 23 CFR 450.314, 
RTC staff have mutual responsibilities in carrying out the metropolitan transportation 
planning process.  Among other cooperative efforts, RTC planning and transit staff work 
together to develop plans and studies, financial plans that support the RTP and RTIP, and 
the annual listing of obligated federally funded projects.   

2.0 Federal Regulations 
Public participation has been a part of federal transportation legislation since the 
enactment of the 1991 Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) and has 
been included in all transportation authorizing legislation since then. Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, states that “no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 
assistance.” As much of the work of RTC is federally funded, RTC must comply with Title IV 
which requires RTC to engage minority and limited-English proficiency (LEP) populations to 
provide meaningful access to planning and programming activities.   

The federal regulation pertaining to the development of a PPP, 23 CFR 450.316 (a), requires 
that, “The MPO shall develop and use a documented participation plan that defines a 
process for providing individuals, affected public agencies, representatives of public 

ATTACHEMENT



RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025 
Page  3 

transportation employees, public ports, freight shippers, providers of freight transportation 
services, private providers of transportation (including intercity bus operators, employer-
based commuting programs, such as carpool program, vanpool program, transit benefit 
program, parking cash-out program, shuttle program, or telework program), 
representatives of users of public transportation, representatives of users of pedestrian 
walkways and bicycle transportation facilities, representatives of the disabled, and other 
interested parties with reasonable opportunities to be involved in the metropolitan 
transportation planning process.” 

23 CFR 450.316 (1) states that, a PPP shall be developed in consultation with all 
“interested parties.” “Interested parties” include individuals, affected public agencies, 
representatives of public transportation employees, the freight industry, private providers 
of transportation, users of public transportation, users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle 
transportation facilities, representatives of the disabled community, and others.  

Further, 23 CFR 450.316(1)(e) requires that “MPOs shall, to the extent practicable, develop 
documented processes(es) that outline roles, responsibilities, and key decision points for 
consulting with other governments and agencies.” RTC processes that outline roles, 
responsibilities, and key decision points for consulting with other governments and 
agencies are discussed in this PPP in the Outreach section under Stakeholder 
Engagement. 

2.1 Federal Action Items and RTC Compliance 
23 CFR 450.316 (1) requires that a PPP describe the procedures, strategies, and desired 
outcomes for ten actions. These ten actions and descriptions of RTC compliance are 
provided below. 

1. Federal Action Item: “Providing adequate public notice of public participation
activities and time for public review and comment at key decision points, including
a reasonable opportunity to comment on the proposed metropolitan transportation
plan and the TIP.”

• RTC Compliance:
• Procedures and Strategies – This PPP describes required and

recommended procedures and strategies for notification and public
comment in the Plan Specific Requirements section.

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy # 1, “Seek valuable
public participation throughout the planning process,” describes the desired
outcomes of this federal action which are: the incorporation of identified
local, regional, state, and federal priorities and needs pertaining to all modes
of transportation into plans and studies, and fostering project transparency
and understanding.

ATTACHEMENT



RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025 
Page  4 

2. Federal Action Item: “Providing timely notice and reasonable access to information
about transportation issues and processes.”

• RTC Compliance:
• Procedures and Strategies – This PPP describes the required and

recommended procedures and strategies for providing timely public
notification in the Plan Specific Requirements section. Each plan has a
required or recommended notification procedure. Procedures and strategies
to ensure reasonable access are described in the RTC Public Participation
Policy #3, “Use effective, accessible, and equitable avenues for distributing
information and receiving comments while engaging traditionally
underserved populations” and in Policy #7, “Provide reasonable
accommodation(s) and access to people with disabilities, so that everyone
can easily participate in the regional planning process.”

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy #7, “Provide reasonable
accommodation(s) and access to people with disabilities, so that everyone
can easily participate in the regional planning process” describes the RTC
desired outcome of this federal action item which is to : “Ensure everyone
has access to the information they need to participate in the planning
process for our community.”

3. Federal Action Item: “Employing visualization techniques to describe metropolitan
transportation plans and TIPs.”

• RTC Compliance:
• Procedures and Strategies – RTC Public Participation Policy #5, “Design

participation initiatives that will support and encourage effective
participation” includes the following strategy: “Utilize visualization and online
tools to describe transportation plans when warranted. Policy #4, “Inform
and educate the public during the planning and decision-making processes
using accessible in-person and virtual tools” includes an additional strategy:
“Use ADA-accessible visualization techniques and virtual tools.”

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy #5, “Design
participation initiatives that will support and encourage effective
participation” describes the RTC desired outcome which is effective public
participation.

4. Federal Action Item: “Making public information (technical information and
meeting notices) available in electronically accessible formats and means, such as
the World Wide Web.”

• RTC Compliance:
• Procedures and Strategies – This PPP describes the procedures and

strategies for providing public notification, via electronically accessible
formats and means, in the Plan Specific Requirements section. Additionally,

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  5 

Policy #6, “Conduct outreach that bridges language, cultural, and economic 
differences” includes two strategies: “Provide technical information and 
meeting notices online,” and “Utilize social media to disseminate information 
about RTC initiatives and to seek input including virtual public meetings.” 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy #5, “Design 
participation initiatives that will support and encourage effective 
participation” describes the RTC desired outcome which is effective public 
participation. 

5. Federal Action Item: “Holding any public meetings at convenient and accessible 
locations and times.” 

• RTC Compliance:  
• Procedures and Strategies – RTC Public Participation Policy #4, “Inform and 

educate the public during the planning and decision-making processes using 
accessible in-person and virtual tools” includes the following strategy: “Hold 
public meetings at ADA- compliant buildings, convenient locations and 
times, in buildings that are on RTC transit routes, within project limits when 
possible, and engage the public through virtual meetings to provide for 
greater convenience.” 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy #5, “Design 
participation initiatives that will support and encourage effective 
participation” describes the RTC desired outcome of effective public 
participation. RTC Public Participation Policy #7, “Provide reasonable 
accommodation(s) and access to people with disabilities, so that everyone 
can easily participate in the regional planning process” describes an 
additional desired outcome which is to: “Ensure everyone has access to the 
information they need to participate in the planning process for our 
community.” 

6. Federal Action Item: “Demonstrating explicit consideration and response to public 
input received during the development of the metropolitan transportation plan and 
the TIP.” 

• RTC Compliance:  
• Procedures and Strategies – RTC Public Participation Policy #8, Consider, 

evaluate, and respond to all public input” describes the following procedure: 
“In-person, online, and survey public input will be summarized and include 
responses that explain the consideration of the planning decisions or course 
of action. This includes public comments submitted in-person during 
meetings and online submittals from virtual meetings and surveys.” 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy # 1, “Seek valuable 
public participation throughout the planning process,” includes the following 
strategy: “Offer early, continuous, and equitable opportunities for the public 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  6 

to be involved in the identification of social, economic, and environmental 
impacts of proposed transportation decisions.” This strategy describes the 
RTC desired outcome of this federal action which is to ensure the public is 
involved in the identification of potential impacts of proposed transportation 
decisions and that those potential impacts are considered during the 
planning process. 

7. Federal Action Item: “Seeking out and considering the needs of those traditionally 
underserved by existing transportation systems, such as low-income and minority 
households, who may face challenges accessing employment and other services.” 

• RTC Compliance:  
• Procedures and Strategies – RTC Public Participation Policy # 3, “Use 

effective, accessible, and equitable avenues for distributing information and 
receiving comments while engaging traditionally underserved populations” 
includes the following procedures and strategies: “Seek out and consider the 
viewpoints of vulnerable road users and stakeholders including seniors, 
minorities, low-income individuals, LEP groups, and people with disabilities 
during public outreach” and “Utilize available data sources to assist in the 
identification of underserved and disadvantaged populations.” 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy # 1, “Seek valuable 
public participation throughout the planning process,” describes the desired 
outcome of this federal action which is: the incorporation of identified local 
priorities and needs pertaining to all modes of transportation into plans and 
studies.  

8. Federal Action Item: “Providing an additional opportunity for public comment, if 
the final metropolitan transportation plan or TIP differs significantly from the version 
that was made available for public comment by the MPO and raises new material 
issues that interested parties could not reasonably have foreseen from the public 
involvement efforts.” 

• RTC Compliance:  
• Procedures and Strategies – This PPP describes the procedure for public 

comment and notification in the circumstances described by this federal 
action in the Plan Specific Requirements Section. 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy # 1, “Seek valuable 
public participation throughout the planning process,” describes the desired 
outcomes of this federal action which are: the incorporation of identified 
local priorities into plans and studies, and fostering transparency and 
understanding. 

 
9. Federal Action Item: “Coordinating with the statewide transportation planning 

public involvement and consultation processes under subpart B of this part.” 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  7 

• RTC Compliance:  
• Procedures and Strategies – RTC Public Participation Policy # 3, “Use 

effective, accessible, and equitable avenues for distributing information and 
receiving comments while engaging traditionally underserved populations” 
includes the following procedure: “The RTC’s stakeholders include not only 
the general public and local and tribal units of government, but businesses, 
industries, and transportation service providers as well as organizations that 
represent people with specific transportation needs and different outreach 
needs.” Additionally, RTC Public Participation Policy # 2, “Seek Board and 
elected-representative involvement to ensure coordination with high-level 
regional and statewide plans” includes the following additional procedure: 
“Refer to the Nevada Department of Transportation’s Public Involvement Plan 
when coordinating with State-led plans, projects, and programs.” 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy # 1, “Seek valuable 
public participation throughout the planning process,” describes the desired 
outcomes of this federal action which are: the incorporation of identified 
local, regional, state, and federal priorities and needs pertaining to all modes 
of transportation into plans and studies, and fostering transparency and 
understanding. 

10. Federal Action Item: “Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of the procedures 
and strategies contained in the participation plan to ensure a full and open 
participation process.”   

• RTC Compliance:  
• Procedures and Strategies – RTC Public Participation Policy # 9, “Evaluate 

the public participation process regularly” includes the following procedures 
and strategies: “Evaluate the PPP to confirm that the participation process is 
open and accessible to everyone, and that plan policies and guidance are 
implemented in accordance with state and federal regulations (as outlined in 
23 CFR 450.316)” and “The RTC encourages public participation throughout 
the plan/project. Ongoing input requires continuous review and updates to 
the public participation process to ensure that the policies and procedures 
meet federal requirements” 

• Desired Outcomes – RTC Public Participation Policy # 9, “Evaluate the 
public participation process regularly” describes the desired outcomes of 
this federal action which are: “…the participation process is open and 
accessible to everyone, and that plan policies and guidance are 
implemented in accordance with state and federal regulations.” 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  8 

3.0 Public Participation Policies 
The following nine RTC Public Participation Policies reflect the desired outcomes for public 
participation and support successful development and implementation of RTC’s 
transportation plans. 

1. Seek valuable public participation throughout the planning process. 
• Utilize public involvement in the development of transportation plans and studies. 

Incorporate identified local, regional, state, and federal priorities and needs 
pertaining to all modes of transportation. 

• Offer early, continuous, and equitable opportunities for the public to be involved in 
the identification of social, economic, and environmental impacts of proposed 
transportation decisions. 

• Provide opportunities for all affected individuals and entities to participate in the 
planning process. 

• Encourage proactive participation to denote early and continuous involvement in 
important policy or project decisions before they are finalized. 

• Engage the public in early stakeholder participation to foster project transparency 
and understanding. 

2. Seek Board and elected-representative involvement to ensure coordination with high-
level regional and statewide plans. 
• Ensure that the decision makers are equipped with the information they need to 

make critical decisions for the future of our community. 
3. Use effective, accessible, and equitable avenues for distributing information and 

receiving comments while engaging traditionally underserved populations. 
• The RTC’s stakeholders include not only the general public and local and tribal units 

of government, but businesses, industries, and transportation service providers as 
well as organizations that represent people with specific transportation needs and 
different outreach needs. 

• Seek out and consider the viewpoints of vulnerable road users and stakeholders 
including seniors, minorities, low-income individuals, LEP groups, and people with 
disabilities during public outreach. 

• Utilize available data sources to assist in the identification of underserved and 
disadvantaged populations. 

4. Inform and educate the public during the planning and decision-making processes 
using accessible in-person and virtual tools. 
• Include information on agendas to inform the public how they can request 

additional assistance if needed. 
• Use ADA-accessible visualization techniques and virtual tools. 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  9 

• Hold public meetings at ADA- compliant buildings, convenient locations and times, 
in buildings that are on RTC transit routes, within project limits when possible, and 
engage the public through virtual meetings to provide for greater convenience. 

5. Design participation initiatives that will support and encourage effective participation. 
• Utilize visualization and online tools to describe transportation plans when 

warranted. 
6. Conduct outreach that bridges language, cultural, and economic differences. 

• Provide technical information and meeting notices online. 
• Utilize social media to disseminate information about RTC initiatives and to seek 

input including virtual public meetings. 
• Utilize the "select language" tool on the RTC website which translates content into 

five different languages. 
7. Provide reasonable accommodation(s) and access to people with disabilities, so that 

everyone can easily participate in the regional planning process. 
• Ensure everyone has access to the information they need to participate in the 

planning process for our community. 
8. Consider, evaluate, and respond to public input. 
9. In-person, online, and survey public input will be considered, may be summarized and 

may include responses that explain the consideration of the planning decisions or 
course of action. Evaluate the public participation process regularly. 
• Evaluate the PPP to confirm that the participation process is open and accessible to 

everyone, and that plan policies and guidance are implemented in accordance with 
state and federal regulations (as outlined in 23 CFR 450.316).” 

• The RTC encourages public participation throughout the plan/project. Ongoing input 
requires continuous review and updates to the public participation process to 
ensure that the policies and procedures meet federal requirements. 

4.0 Outreach Strategies 
RTC outreach strategies, for the purposes of this PPP, will be grouped into two categories, 
engagement and promotion. Engagement includes activities designed to coordinate with, 
or gain feedback and participation from interested parties, governments and agencies. 
Promotion includes activities and products that notify or disseminate information about 
transportation issues, processes, or participation opportunities.  

This PPP describes procedures and strategies for public participation as well as techniques 
for bridging language, cultural, economic, and accessibility differences that affect 
participation. RTC adheres to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”), 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”) and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964. Section 504 requires that information and technology be accessible to people with 
disabilities. Title II of the ADA requires nondiscrimination on the basis of disability in public 
accommodations and in commercial facilities by ensuring that buildings and facilities, in 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  10 

terms of architecture and design, transportation, and communication are made accessible 
to individuals with disabilities. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, states that “no person 
in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” Title VI requires engagement 
with minority and limited-English proficiency (LEP) populations to provide meaningful 
access to its planning and programming activities.       

As with past public participation plans, RTC will periodically review the effectiveness of the 
procedures and strategies contained in this PPP to continue to ensure a full and open 
participation process as required by 23 CFR 450.316(a)(1)(x).  This PPP is intended to 
ensure minimum standards for public participation are met.  When appropriate, and as 
needed, RTC may use additional public participation procedures and strategies not listed 
here. 

4.1 Engagement 
RTC has a toolbox of strategies that can be used to coordinate with, or gain feedback and 
participation from interested parties, including citizens, governments, agencies, and other 
stakeholders. Examples of RTC engagement strategies include: 

1. RTC advisory committee meetings 
2. Regional task force meetings 
3. RTC Board meetings 
4. City and County governing body meetings 
5. City and County advisory committee meetings 
6. Stakeholder meetings/interviews 
7. Door-to-door and business-to-business canvassing 
8. Pop-up events 
9. Tabeling at community events 
10. In-person public meetings 
11. Virtual public meetings 
12. Public hearings 
13. Surveys in English and Spanish (or other appropriate language) 
14. Focus groups 

4.1.1 Accessible Engagement Strategies 
RTC utilizes translators to help everyone understand the information and communicate 
their feedback. RTC also holds its public meetings at locations where reasonable 
accommodation and access can easily be provided for individuals with disabilities.  Public 
meeting locations are chosen for accessibility to public transportation routes.  

Examples of typical RTC public meeting locations include: 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  11 

• RTC Administrative Offices 
o 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 

• RTC 4th Street Station 
o 200 E. 4th Street, Reno, NV 89501 

• RTC Centennial Plaza 
o 1421 Victorian Avenue, Sparks, NV 89431 

• Public institutions, such as schools, community centers, or university campuses 

4.1.2 Stakeholder Engagement 
23 CFR 450.316(1)(e) requires that an MPO shall, to the extent practicable, develop 
documented processes that outline roles, responsibilities, and key decision points for 
consulting with other governments and agencies. Roles, responsibilities, and key decision 
points for coordination with the Nevada Department of Transportation are identified in a 
Metropolitan Planning Agreement. In addition, all RTC planning processes include 
coordination with local governments, agencies, and other stakeholders. The type of 
planning product determines the appropriate extent of stakeholder involvement and the 
group of relevant stakeholders with which to coordinate.  

At minimum, local governments, agencies, and other stakeholders play a role in the 
planning process through the following: identifying local needs and providing feedback on 
proposed recommendations. Per Public Participation Policy #1, of this PPP, RTC is 
responsible for seeking feedback from local governments, agencies, and other 
stakeholders on important policy or project decisions before they are finalized. Key 
decision points for consulting with local governments, agencies, and other stakeholders 
occur, at minimum, during the initial stages of plan development and during a public 
comment or plan review period.  

4.1.3 Regional Stakeholders 
RTC coordinates with the following interested parties in the region to include them in the 
transportation planning process. This is a non-exhaustive list of stakeholders and 
depending on the type of outreach effort or specific plan/program, additional stakeholders 
may be involved. 

• Municipal Governments and Agencies 
o City of Reno 
o City of Sparks 
o Washoe County 
o Northern Nevada Public Health-Air Quality Management Division 
o Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority 
o Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 

• Schools 
o Washoe County Schools 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  12 

o Truckee Meadows Community College  
o University of Nevada, Reno  

• Tribal Governments 
o Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe 
o Reno-Sparks Indian Colony 

• Federal Agencies 
o Bureau of Land Management 
o Environmental Protection Agency 
o Federal Highway Administration 
o Federal Transit Administration 

• State Agencies 
o Nevada Department of Public Safety 
o Nevada Department of Transportation 
o Nevada Division of Environmental Protection 
o State Historical Preservation Office 

• RTC also seeks to engage those directly and indirectly affected by the 
transportation plans, programs, and projects in the region, which includes but is 
not limited to: 
o Directly and indirectly affected public 
o Elected officials, policymakers, and decision-makers 
o Local, regional, state, and federal public agency staff 
o Property owners, including those of abutting properties and those in the 

vicinity of a proposed project 
o Freight operators via rail, air, and highway routes 
o Providers/users of private transportation services, such as taxis, shuttle 

buses, limousines, and vanpools 
o Providers/users of public transportation services 
o The business community 
o Advocacy groups, such as neighborhood groups, Chambers of Commerce, 

homeowners’ associations, public-interest groups for bicycle/pedestrians, 
civil rights, non-profit and senior citizen organizations 

o Traditionally underrepresented communities, such as people with 
disabilities, youth, elderly, low-income, and ethnic minorities  

o Members of the public with LEP 
o Media serving LEP 
o Emergency service providers and users 
o Project-specific community working group 

4.1.4 RTC Committees 

RTC establishes advisory committees as needed to provide input and recommendations to 
RTC staff, including two standing committees that provide feedback on planning items, the 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  13 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC). 
The TAC and CMAC review plans and studies as required or as determined necessary and 
appropriate by RTC staff. The purpose of these committees is to provide information and 
advice to RTC staff, which is then considered and incorporated in staff recommendations 
to the RTC Board of Commissioners.   

Committee meetings will be held regularly, and/or on an as-needed basis, and will be open 
to the public. RTC will provide timely public notice of the meetings and reasonable access 
to agendas for the meetings per 23 CFR 450.316(1)i) and (ii). Materials will be provided in 
electronically accessible formats and means per 23 CFR 450.316(a)(1)iv). Materials will be 
available upon request and will also be available on the RTC website. Public comment will 
be accepted, either verbally or in writing, at committee meetings. Notifications for 
committee meetings dates and locations as well as meeting minutes will be available at 
rtcwashoe.com. 

4.2 Promotion 
RTC has a toolbox of strategies that can be used to notify or disseminate information about 
transportation issues, processes, or participation opportunities. Examples of RTC 
promotional strategies include: 

1. Press releases 
2. Fliers 
3. Graphics and infographics 
4. Signage 
5. Project renderings and video simulations  
6. RTC website alerts and posts 
7. Project-specific websites 
8. Text and App notifications  
9. Newspaper advertisements in English and Spanish 
10. Weekly stakeholder email updates for large transportation projects 
11. Social media campaigns, updates, and interactions 
12. Videos 
13. Media relations 
14. The RTC Board eNews monthly electronic newsletter 
15. Television segments 
16. Advertising 
17. Mailers 

 4.2.1 Accessible Promotion Strategies 
RTC ensures marketing and communication printed and electronic materials meet ADA 
standards. Printed marketing, communication, and outreach materials include high-
contrast visual elements, 14-point or greater font size, and are produced in English and 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  14 

Spanish. PDF documents are made accessible, searchable, and fillable. RTC will also 
provide documents with larger font sizes upon request. 

 4.2.2 Website  
The RTC website is Hypertext Markup Language (HTML) based. An HTML-based website 
provides people with disabilities, who use screen readers and speech-to-text tools, the 
ability to easily read and comprehend critical information. 

RTC meets the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG 2.1) by making PDFs 
accessible, providing imagery tags, and maintaining HTML-coded public transportation bus 
schedules. The RTC website has an accessibility menu that allows users to change the 
contrast, font size, text spacing, line height, cursor size, and saturation. RTC extends 
further vigilance by manually reviewing and testing the site to ensure all elements of the 
website comply with ADA standards. RTC is also working to refresh its website to comply 
with WCAG 2.2 by 2026. 

4.2.3 Social Media 

On social media, for people who have low vision or are blind, RTC provides alternative text 
for all images to facilitate e-reader utilization, and narrated videos are provided. For people 
who have hearing loss or are deaf, closed captioning is available. 

5.0 Plan Specific Requirements 
As the MPO, RTC develops federally required documents including the following: 

• The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
• The Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 
• Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
• Public Participation Plan (PPP) 

A summary of specific public participation requirements and recommendations for the 
plans listed above are included in Table 1. RTC will provide a copy of its adopted, updated, 
or revised RTP, RTIP, UPWP, and PPP to NDOT, FHWA, and the FTA.  

RTC also develops and engages in other plans and studies that inform and are reflected in 
the RTP and RTIP.  All plans, studies and efforts are identified for a two-year period in RTC’s 
Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP).   

As the operator of the regional public transportation system, RTC develops federally 
required documents related to public transit and public transportation services including 
the following:   

• The Program of Projects required for the FTA Section 5307 program  
• Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan (required for 

the FTA Section 5310 program)   

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  15 

• Transportation Optimization Plan Strategies (RTC’s 5-year, short-range transit 
plan) 
 

Table 1. Plan Specific Public Participation Requirements 
 

 Public Comment 
Period 

Public 
Hearing 

Newspaper 
Notice  

Website Notice  Committee 
Review 

RTP 
Adoption 

21-day public 
comment period 
required prior to 
public hearing  

Required  Required Required Required 

RTIP 
Adoption 

21-day public 
comment period 
required prior to 
public hearing  

Required  Required Required Required 

RTP or RTIP 
Amendment 

7-day (or 21-day if 
conformity analysis 
is required) public 
comment period 
required prior to 
public hearing  

Required  Required Required Required 

UPWP 21-day public 
comment period 
recommended 

Not required Not required Recommended Recommended 

PPP 45-day public 
comment period 
required 

Not required Not required Recommended Required 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  16 

5.1 RTP and RTIP 
RTC has established requirements regarding the public participation process for the RTP, 
and RTIP consistent with U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) requirements.  Note, 
the public notice process and time established for public review and comments on the 
RTIP comply with FTA Section 5307 Program of Projects (POP) requirements.  

5.1.1 Amendments to the RTP  

Amendments to the RTP are completed to address significant changes. Instances when an 
amendment to the RTP is needed include the following: 

a. The addition or deletion of a regionally significant project  
b. Substantial changes to project scope that would result in an air quality conformity 

determination 
c. A significant change in anticipated revenues which would require a re-

demonstration of fiscal constraint  

5.1.2 Administrative Modifications to the RTIP 

RTIP changes that are considered non-substantive in nature (administrative modifications) 
will not be subject to the public comment and public hearing process cited herein. These 
actions will be processed through the electronic Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program (eSTIP) and include the following: 

a. An increase of less than 25%, or any decrease or removal, of the federally funded 
portion of a project 

b. Minor adjustments to project limits 
c. Addition or deletion of a phase without major change to the scope 
d. Movement of projects between fiscal years included in the RTIP 
e. Minor changes to funding sources 
f. Changes made to an existing project’s non-federal funding amounts 
g. Addition of a regionally significant project that does not require air quality 

conformity and is programmed with 100% non-federal funds 

5.1.3 Amendments to the RTIP  

In the event that a change in the RTIP falls outside of the criteria for an administrative 
modification, RTC will amend the RTIP and follow the process outlined above. 
Amendments will also be processed through the eSTIP for the following actions: 

a. Addition or deletion of any federally funded project 
b. An increase of more than 25% of the federally funded portion of a project 
c. Substantial changes to the scope that would result in an air quality conformity 

determination 
d. A change in a funding source for a project from non-federal to federal 

5.1.4 Revisions to the Draft RTP or RTIP  

ATTACHEMENT



 

RTC Public Participation Plan | 2025  
Page  17 

In instances where the final RTP or RTIP differs significantly from the draft that was made 
available for public comment and/or raises new substantive issues which interested 
parties could not reasonably have foreseen from the draft, RTC shall provide additional 
opportunities for public review and comment, in accordance with 23 CFR 
450.316(a)(1)(viii).  The RTC will, at a minimum, issue a second notice allowing for an 
additional 21-day public comment period. 

5.1.5 Committee Review 
The TAC and CMAC will review the RTP, RTIP, and any amendments to these documents.  

5.1.6 Public Comment Period 
RTC will provide at least 21 days for public review and comments on updates to the RTP 
and RTIP prior to an RTC Board public hearing. For an amendment to the RTP or RTIP, a 
seven (7) day public comment period will be held. However, if an amendment requires a 
transportation conformity analysis, a 21-day public comment period will be provided.  

Notice of the opening of the public comment period and the availability of the document 
for review will be published in local newspapers of general circulation and on the agency’s 
website. The public comment period will begin on the date noted in the published notice.  

5.1.7 Public Hearing 

A formal public hearing will be conducted prior to RTC approval/adoption of the RTP and 
RTIP, and any associated amendments, including accompanying air quality conformity 
determinations, as required by federal regulations. Notice of the public hearing will be 
published in local newspapers of general circulation and on the agency’s website. 

5.1.8 Comment Summary  

RTC will prepare a summary analysis and report on the disposition of all applicable 
comments received during the public comment period and at the public hearing for the RTP 
and RTIP, and any associated amendments.  

5.2 UPWP 
A 21-day public comment period, website notice of the public comment period, and review 
by the TAC and CMAC are recommended for the UPWP. RTC will prepare a summary 
analysis and report on the disposition of all applicable comments received during the 
public comment period. 

5.3 PPP 
A public comment period of 45 days is required before the PPP is initially adopted or 
revised as required by 23 CFR 450.316(a)(3). The TAC and CMAC will review the PPP and 
provide feedback. RTC will prepare a summary analysis and report on the disposition of all 
applicable comments received during the public comment period. 

ATTACHEMENT


	TAC Item 6 - Central Sparks NNP.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

	TAC Item 6 - Attachment 1 - Central Sparks NNP w Attachments.pdf
	CS_NNP_FINALDRAFT_8_22
	Acknowledgments
	Table of Contents
	Chapter 1: Introduction
	Neighborhood Description
	Connections with Other Plans
	Plan Process
	Plan Contents


	Chapter 2: Neighborhood Profile
	Neighborhood Demographics
	Existing Neighborhood Network

	Chapter 3: Biking and Walking in Central Sparks Today
	Community Engagement
	Phase 1
	Community Workshops & Pop-Ups
	Interactive Map
	Steering Committee
	Resulting input map from Steering Committee #1 which helped identify existing issues within the neighborhood.
	Walk Audit

	Phase 2
	Steering Committee

	Active Transportation Plan (ATP) Process

	What We Heard from the Community
	Connectivity
	Traffic Calming
	Lighting
	Crossing Safety

	Data Insights and Analysis: Understanding Trends
	Roadway Speeds
	Safety
	Intersections vs. Segments
	Equity
	Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress
	Pedestrian Experience Index
	Active Trip Potential
	Gaps Analysis


	Chapter 4: Addressing Central Sparks Needs
	Neighborhood Network Plan Implementation Strategy
	Programmatic and Policy Enhancements
	Equity
	Education
	Encouragement
	Engineering
	Engagement
	Evaluation

	Neighborhood Network Improvements
	Existing RTP Projects
	Recommendation Selection Process
	Active Transportation Program Projects
	Long-Term Needs
	Implementation
	Stay Connected




	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix A - Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile
	December 2024
	Table of Contents
	Introduction, Plan Review, and Neighborhood Demographics
	Introduction
	Plan Review
	Chapter Four – Goal 1: Connectivity

	Neighborhood Demographics
	Data Explanation
	Demographics
	Population Density
	Median Household Income
	People without Access to a Vehicle
	Owner and Renter Occupied Household Burden

	Equity Index

	Key Neighborhood Destinations
	Schools
	Parks
	Entertainment Centers
	Employment Centers
	Community Destinations

	Existing Neighborhood Network
	Pedestrian Facilities
	Bicycle Facilities
	Network Context
	Roadway Speeds
	Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress

	Pedestrian Experience Index
	Traffic Safety
	Crash Data
	Intersections vs. Segments
	High Injury Network
	ATP Interactive Webmap Results

	Traffic Calming
	Active Trip Demand
	Bicycle and Pedestrian Activity
	Active Trip Potential

	Active Transportation Gap Analysis

	Neighborhood Profile Summary

	Appendix B - Central Sparks Engagement Summaries
	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix B - Central Sparks Engagement Summaries
	2.22.25-RTC-NNP-Pop-Up-Summary
	3.9.25-RTC-NNP-Pop-Up-Summary
	Workshop Summary- Sparks High 1_29_25
	Community Workshop #1 – Sparks High School
	Workshop Summary




	Appendix C - Central Sparks Walk Audit Findings
	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix C - Central Sparks Walk Audit Findings

	Appendix D - Central Sparks Rec Scenarios
	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix D - Central Sparks Rec Scenarios
	Introduction
	Recommendation Development Approach
	Addressing Identified Needs
	Scenario Themes
	Facilities
	Corridor Improvements
	Intersection/Midblock Crossing Improvements


	Recommendation Scenarios
	Scenario 1
	Theme: Exterior Connections
	Project Rationale

	Scenario 2
	Theme: Access to Schools and Parks
	Project Rationale

	Scenario 3
	Theme: Network Grid
	Project Rationale


	Scenario Comparison
	Community Access

	Appendix A – Cost Estimate Unit/Per Mile Costs
	Appendix B – Accessibility Testing Results Maps


	Appendix E - Central Sparks Project Cutsheets
	SparksAppendixCovers
	CS_ProjectCutsheets_082225


	TAC Item 7- Draft Public Participation Plan- Staff Report.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

	TAC Item 6 - Attachment 1 - Central Sparks NNP w Attachments.pdf
	CS_NNP_FINALDRAFT_8_22
	Acknowledgments
	Table of Contents
	Chapter 1: Introduction
	Neighborhood Description
	Connections with Other Plans
	Plan Process
	Plan Contents


	Chapter 2: Neighborhood Profile
	Neighborhood Demographics
	Existing Neighborhood Network

	Chapter 3: Biking and Walking in Central Sparks Today
	Community Engagement
	Phase 1
	Community Workshops & Pop-Ups
	Interactive Map
	Steering Committee
	Resulting input map from Steering Committee #1 which helped identify existing issues within the neighborhood.
	Walk Audit

	Phase 2
	Steering Committee

	Active Transportation Plan (ATP) Process

	What We Heard from the Community
	Connectivity
	Traffic Calming
	Lighting
	Crossing Safety

	Data Insights and Analysis: Understanding Trends
	Roadway Speeds
	Safety
	Intersections vs. Segments
	Equity
	Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress
	Pedestrian Experience Index
	Active Trip Potential
	Gaps Analysis


	Chapter 4: Addressing Central Sparks Needs
	Neighborhood Network Plan Implementation Strategy
	Programmatic and Policy Enhancements
	Equity
	Education
	Encouragement
	Engineering
	Engagement
	Evaluation

	Neighborhood Network Improvements
	Existing RTP Projects
	Recommendation Selection Process
	Active Transportation Program Projects
	Long-Term Needs
	Implementation
	Stay Connected




	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix A - Central Sparks Neighborhood Profile
	December 2024
	Table of Contents
	Introduction, Plan Review, and Neighborhood Demographics
	Introduction
	Plan Review
	Chapter Four – Goal 1: Connectivity

	Neighborhood Demographics
	Data Explanation
	Demographics
	Population Density
	Median Household Income
	People without Access to a Vehicle
	Owner and Renter Occupied Household Burden

	Equity Index

	Key Neighborhood Destinations
	Schools
	Parks
	Entertainment Centers
	Employment Centers
	Community Destinations

	Existing Neighborhood Network
	Pedestrian Facilities
	Bicycle Facilities
	Network Context
	Roadway Speeds
	Bicycle Level of Traffic Stress

	Pedestrian Experience Index
	Traffic Safety
	Crash Data
	Intersections vs. Segments
	High Injury Network
	ATP Interactive Webmap Results

	Traffic Calming
	Active Trip Demand
	Bicycle and Pedestrian Activity
	Active Trip Potential

	Active Transportation Gap Analysis

	Neighborhood Profile Summary

	Appendix B - Central Sparks Engagement Summaries
	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix B - Central Sparks Engagement Summaries
	2.22.25-RTC-NNP-Pop-Up-Summary
	3.9.25-RTC-NNP-Pop-Up-Summary
	Workshop Summary- Sparks High 1_29_25
	Community Workshop #1 – Sparks High School
	Workshop Summary




	Appendix C - Central Sparks Walk Audit Findings
	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix C - Central Sparks Walk Audit Findings

	Appendix D - Central Sparks Rec Scenarios
	SparksAppendixCovers
	Appendix D - Central Sparks Rec Scenarios
	Introduction
	Recommendation Development Approach
	Addressing Identified Needs
	Scenario Themes
	Facilities
	Corridor Improvements
	Intersection/Midblock Crossing Improvements


	Recommendation Scenarios
	Scenario 1
	Theme: Exterior Connections
	Project Rationale

	Scenario 2
	Theme: Access to Schools and Parks
	Project Rationale

	Scenario 3
	Theme: Network Grid
	Project Rationale


	Scenario Comparison
	Community Access

	Appendix A – Cost Estimate Unit/Per Mile Costs
	Appendix B – Accessibility Testing Results Maps


	Appendix E - Central Sparks Project Cutsheets
	SparksAppendixCovers
	CS_ProjectCutsheets_082225


	TAC Item 7- Draft Public Participation Plan- Staff Report.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

	TAC Item 7- Draft Public Participation Plan- Staff Report.pdf
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION




